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March
Shanghai Simcom Limited and Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”)
within the Group both passed the “2021 Evaluation
of Municipal-level Enterprise Technology Centres in
Shanghai” with outstanding ranking.

Apr|I May:
Strict regional control measures were implemented in
Shanghai for COVID-19. Under such circumstance, the
Group swiftly set up a designated team to safeguard
the livelihood of the staff, and help those in need to
overcome difficulties and hardship.

May:

e The 5G large-screen public network intercom terminal
designed and produced by the Group for a customer
was officially released overseas, and was successfully
shortlisted for the 2022 International Critical
Communications Awards (ICCA).

June:

e The Group entered into a cooperation agreement with a
well-known enterprise in the global payment industry to
provide it with the Original Design Manufacturer (ODM)
services of smart terminal products.

July:

e As a solution service provider for the power industry,
the Group was invited to attend the 11th China
Condition Monitoring and Fault Diagnosis Techniques
for Electrical Equipment Summit Forum and Exhibition,
and demonstrated the latest research and development
results of smart AR glasses.

e The 5G smartphone developed by the Group for an

overseas customer was released in Europe, Taiwan and
Japan met with wide acclaimed.
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August

e The Group launched a biometric (face-swiping
payment) checkout solution and won strategic
cooperation opportunities with well-known domestic
Internet customers.

September
Mr Gao Jun, the former executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Group, resigned from the
relevant positions due to other business arrangements
and work commitments.

e The Group reached cooperation with a Japanese brand
customer to tailor-made a 4G communication network
terminal project for it.

October

e The Group engaged deeply in the market of law
enforcement recording equipment, by co-operating with
a well-known customer in a domestic industry on the 4G
law enforcement equipment project, and has realized
the product layout of high, medium and low ends in the
field of law enforcement instruments.

December

e Shanghai Sunrise Simcom within the Group provided
design and production services for handheld intelligent
hardware products in the fields of retail logistics and
other fields for a well-known domestic enterprise. It
has been deeply recognized by customers and being
granted an honor of five-year partnership.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group achieved a loss attributable to owners of the
Company from continuing operations of HK$509.5 million (2021:
HK$236.6 million). The basic loss per share from continuing operations
was HK23.24 cents (2021: HK10.21 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2022, the economy of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
faced unprecedented challenges. COVID-19 lockdown was imposed in
various areas for a prolonged period. Take Shanghai as an example, the
city went into a two-month long lockdown in the first half of the Year and
a strict prevention and control policy remained in place in the second
half. With the Group’s headquarters, main research and development
(“R&D") centre and production base all located in Shanghai, the
businesses of the Group came to a standstill or a semi-standstill. Despite
the Group’s efforts to remedy the situation, it was unable to complete
its deliveries to customers. The Group recorded a sales revenue of
HK$638.0 million for the Year, a 12.0% decline year-on-year. Gross loss
was HK$12.1 million.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERB|E

Due to the low gross profit, high expenses and consecutive years of
losses, the valuation of the intangible assets accumulated by the Group
previously was subject to substantial impairment. As a result of the drop
in rental rates out of the economic downturn, the real estates owned by
the Group were revalued and thus it recorded an unprecedented loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$509.5 million during

the Year.

In addition to the impact of the pandemic, the new management team
introduced by the Group more than two years ago has formulated a very
aggressive development plan, recruited a group of senior management
talents from the industry with high salaries, built a vast group structure
and added two new product lines, all of which resulted in an exponential
increase in the staff costs of the Company. However, against the
background of the US-China tensions, the global economic recession
and the impact of the pandemic, the Group failed to make a return
despite its enormous investment, and its turnover did not rise but fell.
Some of the product lines have made a negative profit regardless of the

huge investment.

Starting from the fourth quarter of 2022, the Board reorganised the top
management team, removed the impractical structure and restored
the divisional organisation. The future staff costs were reduced by
downsizing and layoff. However, according to the labour law of the PRC,
the Group had to pay a large amount of compensation to the dismissed
staff. In the Year, the high labour cost directly contributed to the current
loss of the handsets and IOT terminals business segment, and became

a major factor of the loss of the Group for the Year.
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Handsets and 10T terminals business

Looking back at 2022, it was the most difficult year in the history of
the handsets and IOT terminals business segment. We had hoped for
an exponential growth, but it turned out to be a decline rather than an
improvement in performance. Deliveries started the Year on a positive
note, but the results took a sharp turn for the worse in March due to
the ongoing lockdown and control measures. Although the second half
of the Year witnessed a slow recovery amidst the shocks, the actual
achievement rate of deliveries was much lower than expected. Firstly,
business operations were almost completely suspended for a long
period of time due to the lockdown and control measures. Secondly,
the willingness of customers to place order became significantly weaker
due to contraction of consumption, with some orders even withdrawn.
In addition, overseas businesses could hardly be carried out because of
the closure of the PRC’s borders. As a result, notwithstanding it being
the core business of the Group, the segment only achieved a sales

revenue of HK$584.7 million in 2022, a 11.8% decrease year-on-year.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERB|E

This business segment has been the core business of the Group since
its establishment. Over the past two decades, it has accumulated leading
technologies in the relevant fields and a number of quality customers
in the target markets. Being the strength of the Group, this business
segment has been generating stable turnover and normal profit. As
reflected in the Group’s financial statement for the Year, this business
segment recorded gross loss of HK$61.2 million not because of its
unprofitability, but for several other reasons. Firstly, two new product
lines were added for network communication products and fleet
telematics equipment two years ago. As these new product lines have
yet to generate substantial sales, they are still temporarily placed under
the terminals segment which may, subject to their future development,
become a separate business segment. These new businesses required
considerable investment in their incubation phase, but they recorded an
even larger loss than the existing businesses of this business segment
in 2022, and all losses from these new businesses were recorded in the
results of this business segment. Secondly, due to the critical shortage
of electronic components in 2021, the Group took the risk of procuring a
batch of materials in advance to ensure the delivery of orders, including a
huge number of materials for the production of network communication
products. Due to the impact of the pandemic and the dramatic changes
in supply and demand in the market of these materials, a large amount
of inventories that could not be consumed in time was left in the
warehouse which had to be provided for full impairment and charged to
costs in accordance with the international accounting standards. Thirdly,
having heard of the PRC Government’s intention to change the use of the
land in Qingpu, the Group began to gradually implement the relocation
of its production lines and the severance of its staff at the Qingpu plant
since the third quarter of 2022. The expenses incurred therefrom were
high and were accounted under the costs of this business segment for
2022. In February 2023, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, received an official notice from the
PRC Government regarding the resumption of the Qingpu site. The PRC
Government plans to carry out the valuation of the Qingpu site in April
2023 and will pay reasonable compensation to the Group according
to the valuation report. The Group is currently making the relevant
coordination efforts and will publish announcement in accordance with
the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) when further

information becomes available.
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Electronics manufacturing services business

In accordance with the way in which information is now reported
internally to the chief operating decision markers for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment and the recent
streamlining of certain reportable segments, the financial information
of the Group’s “electronics manufacturing services business” segment
is no longer a separate reportable segment in the Year and has been

included in the handsets and 10T terminals business segment.

Property management

For the Year, the revenue of property management was mainly derived
from the leasing of Block A and Block B of SIM Technology Building
in Shanghai, factory units in Shanghai and Shenyang and commercial
properties in Shenyang. Total area of approximately 108,000 square
meters was leased out. To utilize our resources more effectively, the
Group is developing the property management business by leasing out

the spare space at factories and other buildings.

The revenue of property management for the Year amounted to
HK$53.3 million (2021: HK$62.0 million) with a gross profit margin of
92.2% (2021: 92.5%). In 2022, the raging COVID-19 mutant strain
broken out in different places in the PRC, several places experienced
long-term “static management” and the domestic economy encountered
unprecedented challenges. Some tenants were unable to continue
their operations and terminated their leases early, resulting in lower
occupancy rates and lower rental income. Under these circumstances,
the property valuation has also been lowered by an unprecedented
rate. The Group made provision for impairment in accordance with the
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standard, resulting in

a segment loss for the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERB|E

Prospects

Despite the unprecedented loss incurred by the Group in 2022, the
management believes in the profitability of the Group’s core business
(i.e. the handset and IOT terminal ODM business). Business analysis
indicated that this business made a normal profit on almost every
business transaction and will definitely be profitable in the future. Our
customers are still there, so as our team and the market opportunities.
The Group has accumulated experience in technology and in the market
for more than 10 years, and enjoys a good reputation in the industry.
Entering the new year, the Group will promote “practicality, attention to
details, management and profitability”. The Group will focus on its core
business, strictly control the new business investment, further optimise
its business structure and layout and redevelop overseas markets with
an aim to turn loss into profit as soon as possible in 2023. As people

say, every cloud has a silver lining, and everything will get back on track.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation
to all members of the management and the employees for their efforts
and dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the
financial institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous

support and confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the revenue from the handsets and 10T terminals business
(“Core Business”) decreased by 11.8% to HK$584.7 million (2021:
HK$662.7 million). The revenue from property management (“Non-
core Business”) decreased by 13.9% to HK$53.3 million in 2022
(2021: HK$62.0 million). The total revenue of the Group for the Year,
which included the revenue of Core Business and Non-core Business,
amounted to HK$638.0 million (2021: HK$724.7 million).

The gross loss for the Core Business of the Group for the Year was
HK$61.2 million (2021: HK$35.8 million). The gross loss margin for the
Core Business was 10.5% (2021: 5.4%) and the gross profit margin for
the Non-core Business decreased to 92.2% (2021: 92.5%) The overall
gross loss margin of the Group for the Year was 1.9% (2021: gross profit

margin 3.0%).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company from
continuing operations of HK$509.5 million (2021: HK$236.6 million)
for the Year. The basic loss per share from continuing operations for the
Year was HK23.24 cents (2021: HK10.21 cents). Such increase in loss

was mainly attributable to the factors discussed below:

One of the reasons for the significant increase in loss was the mandatory
restrictions imposed in parts of the PRC (especially Shanghai) to combat
the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic since mid-March 2022,
which had affected the Group’s deliveries. Given that the Group’s
headquarter is situated in Shanghai, the effect was relatively substantial.
Failure to reach the expected levels of turnover and average gross profit
margin in 2022, the increase in R&D expenses, selling and distribution
costs and administrative expenses all caused the significant increase in

loss.
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In 2021, the new management team formulated a very aggressive
development plan that the Group’s business had to grow rapidly in
the next few years. To this end, the Group had increased investment
in human resources, and had recruited many highly professional and
experienced talents from the industry to enrich the management and
various departments of the Group since 2021. At the same time, in
order to adapt to the reality of the soaring cost of high-tech talents in
the PRC, the Group increased the salary and bonuses of some existing
employees to increase their sense of belonging and motivation to the
Group, so that they could strive to create more profits for the Group.
However, against the background of the US-China tensions, the global
economic recession and the impact of the pandemic, the Group failed
to make a return despite its enormous investment, and its turnover did
not rise but fell. Starting from the fourth quarter of 2022, the Board
reorganised the top management team by removing the impractical
structure and restoring the divisional organisation. The future staff costs
are reduced by downsizing and layoff. However, according to the labour
law of the PRC, the Group had to pay a large amount of compensation
to the dismissed staff. In the past year, the high labour cost was one of

the major factors of the loss of the Group.

In addition, the Board concluded there was an indication of impairment
in long-term assets of the handsets and IOT terminal business.
Impairment loss on the relevant intangible assets, properties, plants
and equipment, right-of-use assets relating to the handsets and 10T
terminals business of around HK$77.8 million, certain receivables of
around HK$35.3 million and inventory of around HK$57.4 million were
made in 2022 after conducting impairment assessment on these assets.
An one-off impairment on investment properties of around HK$37.4
million was also made in 2022. These caused the significant increase in

loss but they had no effect on the cash flow of the Year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

R&D expenses

In 2022, the Group mainly focused on the development of the handsets
and 10T terminals business. The number of design and development
team members was 182 in 2022 (2021: 444). Total R&D expenses
amounted to HK$245.3 million (2021: HK$178.7 million), representing
38.4% (2021: 24.7%) of the Group’s revenue. One of the factors that
contributed to the increase in the R&D expenses was, as mentioned
above, the large amount of compensation paid to the dismissed staff in
accordance with the labor law of the PRC. The second factor was that
the amount of R&D capitalization in 2022 decreased significantly as

compared to that in 2021.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased
by 9.8% to HK$34.7 million (2021: HK$38.5 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2022 was 5.4% (2021:
5.3%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2022 increased by 31.6%
to HK$173.8 million (2021: HK$132.1 million), representing 27.2%
(2021: 18.2%) of the revenue. The substantial increase in the Group’s
administrative expenses for the Year was mainly attributed to the one-
off impairment loss of properties, plants and equipment and right-of-
use assets, which amounted to HK$59.9 million and was booked in

administrative expenses.

Segment results of core business

Year ended 31 December 2022
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Year ended 31 December 2021

BE-B--E+-AS+-HLEFE EE-T_FT-A=T-HI%E

Gross loss Gross loss
Revenue  Gross loss margin Revenue  Gross loss margin
KA EBE WA B ERX
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEBRL HEHER % BEET ASET %
Handsets and 10T terminals FHRDB AR
business 5% 584.7 (10.5) 662.7 (35.8) (5.4)
Total @5t 584.7 (10.5) 662.7 (35.8) (5.4)

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022



Handsets and 10T terminals business

The revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 11.8% to
HK$584.7 million (2021: HK$662.7 million) in 2022. Since the two new
product lines in this segment have yet to generate substantial sales,
losses in related business have led to the losses in this segment. In
addition, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the dramatic changes in
the supply and demand in the material market, the materials purchased
in advance by the Group to ensure the delivery of orders were not
consumed in time. One-off provisions for impairment of inventories
of HK$57.4 million and intangible assets of HK$17.9 million were
made during the Year which caused to a gross loss for the Year. The
overall gross loss margin of this business segment decreased to 10.5%
(2021: 5.4%) for the Year. The revenue of ODM business contributed
to approximately 86% of the revenue of this segment in 2022 (2021:
91%).

Electronics manufacturing services business

In accordance with the way in which information is now reported
internally to the chief operating decision markers for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment and the recent
streamlining of certain reportable segments, the financial information of
the Group’s “electronics manufacturing services business” segment is
no longer a separate reportable segment and has been included in the

handsets and 10T terminals business segment in the Year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DA

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$191.8 million (31 December 2021: HK$322.3 million), among
which 13.2% was held in US dollars, 86.0% was held in Renminbi and
the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, and short-term
bank deposits of HK$168.1 million (31 December 2021: HK$353.2
million), all of which were held in US dollars. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group also had pledged bank deposits of HK$165.8 million (31
December 2021: HK$16.1 million), among which 88.2% was held in
Renminbi and the remaining balance was held in US dollars, for the
purpose of the Group’s Renminbi borrowings. The Group intends to
finance its working capital and capital expenditure plans from such
bank balances. The Group has pledged bank deposits to secure the
bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings of the Group amounted
to HK$240.2 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
HK$41.9 million), all of which were denominated in Renminbi. All of the
bank borrowings were at floating interest rates and repayable within one

year.

Operating Efficiency
The respective turnover period of inventory, trade and notes receivables,
trade and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business are

presented below:

Inventory turnover period FEHEES
Trade and notes receivables turnover period

Trade and notes payables turnover period
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The inventory turnover period and trade and notes receivables turnover

period remained relatively stable in the year 2022 and 2021.

As affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, repayment schedules of certain
accounts payables were delayed during the Year as compared to that
of year 2021. As a result, the trade and notes payables turnover days

increased for the Year.

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio, calculated as current assets
(excluding assets held for disposal) over current liabilities, was 1.5 times
(31 December 2021: 2.6 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory into
cash and its sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-

term and long-term obligations.

Treasury Policies
The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The
Group’s surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits

in reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables,
trade payables and bank balances are denominated in US dollars,
thereby exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign
exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposure

in US dollars when necessary.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 2,198,525,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

The Company has issued 1,050,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
upon the exercise of share options by an employee of the Company

during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, no shares of the Company have been issued

during the Year.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$2,053.9 million (31 December 2021: HK$2,583.2 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$240.2 million (31 December 2021: HK$41.9
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank
borrowings over total assets, was 11.7% (31 December 2021: 1.6%).
The increase in bank borrowings during the Year was mainly attributed
to discounted bills of HK$173,040,000. The Group earns interest

spreads on bank deposits by discounted bills.

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
its capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue for
Shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is constantly being adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

ACQUISITION OF LAND

On 21 September 2022, EREMEHEER A F (unofficial English
translation being Guangdong SIM Technology Limited) (“Guangdong
SIM”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an assignment contract with e = T8 2 KO EEH A1+
(unofficial English translation being Dongguan City Huangjiang Town
Xingguang Stock Economic Collective Society) in respect of the purchase
of a piece of land situated at Rzem & TIRE XA (unofficial English
translation as Dongguan City Huangjiang Town Xingguang Village) in the
PRC by Guangdong SIM at the consideration of RMB38,700,000. The

purchase was completed in 2022.

Further details of the above mentioned purchase were disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not have any significant investment during the Year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 1,088 (2021:
1,651) employees from continuing operations. The Group operates
a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all of its
employees in Hong Kong, and provides its PRC employees with welfare
schemes as required by the applicable laws and regulations of the
PRC. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, may grant share
options under the share option scheme and share awards under the
share award scheme of the Company to its employees by reference
to individual performance and the performance of the Group. Total
staff costs incurred by the Group amounted to HK$348.6 million from

continuing operations (2021: HK$297.4 million) during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of

the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to factors including the
Group’s operating results, responsibilities of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of
the Group to the growth and development of the Group. After listing,
the Company has adopted another share option scheme and a share
award scheme, the primary purpose of which is to motivate the eligible
persons referred to in the scheme, which include executive Directors
and employees of the Group, to optimise their future contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of the share option
schemes and the share award scheme of the Company are set out in

notes 37 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 26 January
2021, the Group entered into a framework agreement with the People’s
Government of Huangjiang Town, Dongguan, to signify the Group’s
intention to invest an aggregate amount of RMB2,000,000,000 to
develop the Group’s own technological industrial park in Huangjiang
Town, Dongguan, thereby consolidating the Group’s operations and
maximizing its development potential. It is expected that the Group will
invest RMB1,000,000,000 in fixed asset investment and the remaining
RMB1,000,000,000 for operating cashflow.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DA

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In February 2023, the PRC Government issued a notice of house
expropriation and compensation work to Shanghai Sunrise Simcom.
The properties of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, including certain property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$50,693,000, HK$4,153,000, and
HK$148,109,000 respectively, will be expropriated. In accordance with
the notice, it is expected that the process of the house expropriation will
be completed within 2023.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology
EAREHNREER

LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term value for our customers,
Shareholders and employees.

TARGET TO BECOME MARKET LEADER

Our target is to make the Company the market leader in handset and
|IOT terminals product solutions and services. All employees of the
Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We continue to attend to, in a timely manner,
our customers’ needs through continuous innovation in technology and
management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.
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MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision,
the Group aims to make the world a better place through our continuous
efforts.

Support from the community is vital to any corporate development, thus
giving back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of
our limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take
up our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group)
should not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich
ourselves spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can
share and practice our charitable culture so as to create a better and
more harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and
started from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.

Care for our Future
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEREEAE
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DIRECTORS

=S

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”)

aged 78, is the chairman of the Company and an executive
Director and a director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited.
Mrs Wong is responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. Mrs Wong together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho
Tung (“Mr Wong”), an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong
had established a number of companies which engaged in
the electronics and telecommunications business including
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, one of the Group’s main operating
subsidiary which was established in November 1993. Mrs
Wong has over 20 years of operational and management
experience in the electronics and telecommunications industry.
Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical Department of the South
China University of Technology in 1977. Mrs Wong has been
a guest professor at Tongji University since 2003. Mrs Wong
graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang University),
specialising in electrical engineering. Mrs Wong is the mother of
Mr Wong Hei, Simon, a non-executive Director.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”)

aged 78, is an executive Director and the president of the
Group. Mr Wong is responsible for participating in formulation
of the direction, strategies and be responsible for the
development plan of the new business of the Group. Mr Wong
is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology Limited and
a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom. Mr Wong is also the
director of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”) and
Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”), both of which
are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong together with his
spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director, was the founder of
the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as
Beihang University), specialising in electrical engineering. Mr
Wong has decades of experience in the electrical, electronics
and telecommunications industry. Mr Wong is the father of Mr
Wong Hei, Simon, a non-executive Director.
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Mr Liu Jun (“Mr Liu”)

aged 50, is an executive Director and the chief technical officer
of the Group. Mr Liu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in
electronic engineering from&;2 A £ (Tianjin University) in 1994
and was awarded a master's degree in information technology
fromfg R # E 2Pt (unofficial English translation being
Nanjing Institute of Post and Telecommunications) (currently
known as R #EAKZ(Nanjing University of Post and
Telecommunications)) in 1997. Mr Liu has extensive experience
in the field of telecommunication technology and software
programmes development. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Liu
has worked for the mobile research and development centre of
Motorola in Beijing and was responsible for the development
of telecommunication software programmes. Mr Liu has also
worked for China Techfaith Wireless Communication Technology
Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ of the United States
of America (“US"), from August 2002 to March 2007, in various
positions including as a director, chief operating officer and
executive senior vice president. Mr Liu was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2015.

Mr Zhu Wenhui (“Mr Zhu”)

aged 41, is an executive Director and general manager of the
finance department of the Group’s operations headquarters.
Mr Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Tongji
University in 2004. From 2004 to 2005, he was credit manager
at the Shanghai branch of Bank of Communications where
he was responsible for corporate risk management and credit
assessment. He was responsible for leading the establishment
of a financial management control system that meets the needs
of the Group’s strategic development and improving its financial
system in terms of comprehensive budgeting, accounting
analysis and risk management and control. He also has
extensive experience in capital operations projects, international
settlements, taxation and capital management required for the
operation of PRC companies. He is a Certified Management
Accountant of the Institute of Management Accountants in
the United States of America. Mr Zhu was appointed as an
executive Director in February 2021.
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Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

aged 50, is a non-executive Director. Mr Wong Hei, Simon
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from Boston University
in 1995, specialising in electrical engineering. Prior to joining
Sunrise Technology Limited E#EFEHZBRAA] (“Sunrise
Technology (HK)") in 1995, he worked at the headquarters of
National Semiconductor in the Silicon Valley. He was appointed
as director of Sunrise Technology (HK) in 1999. He has been
director of Sunrise Technology Group Limited &Rl = E AR
7~ 7] since February 2000. He was director of Sunrise Electronic
Industry Limited E#EEFITEHRAF from February 2000
until 2013. Mr. Wong Hei, Simon was appointed as managing
director of Chinatronic Technology Limited from 2001 to 2003.
He was the managing director of SIM Technology HK Limited
(BB EBBBR A R]) from 2004 to 2009. During the period
from October 2003 to 2007, he was director of /@28

REHE AR A A (Shanghai Sunrise Electronic Technology Co.,
Ltd.). He was director of Simcom International Holdings Limited
and Suncom International Holdings Limited from 2004 to
2013. He was director of X&=HBRAF] (Max Vision Limited),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from
2006 to 2013. He served as executive Director and president
of the Company from 2005 to 2013. At present, Mr. Wong Hei,
Simon is a director of multiple investment holding companies.
He has more than 26 years of experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry and extensive experience in
investment and business management. Mr Wong Hei, Simon
is the son of Mrs Wong and Mr Wong, who are both executive
Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company. He is
also a shareholder of Info Dynasty and Intellipower, both of
which are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong Hei, Simon
was appointed as a non-executive Director in December 2021.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu”)

aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board (“Audit
Committee”), the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and the chairman of nomination committee of the Board
(“Nomination Committee”). Mr HH Liu is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr HH Liu now
runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has
over ten years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing
and corporate finance. Mr HH Liu is also an independent non-
executive director of Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock
code: 887), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from May 2017. Mr HH Liu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2008.

Mr Wu Zhe (previous name Wu Aihu)
(qu WU”)

aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Wu
has been the professor at Beihang University in the PRC
since October 1993 and the deputy principal at Dongguan
University of Technology in the PRC since 2015. During the
period from May 1991 to October 1993, Mr Wu was the lecturer
and the associate professor in aircraft design of Beihang
University. From 1997 to 2004, he was the deputy principal
of Beihang University. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Wuhan Institute of Construction* ( EZZEM Z6T) (currently
known as Wuhan University of Technology) in 1982, a doctoral
degree from Harbin Institute of Architecture* ( MGEIERE T £
F%) (currently known as Harbin Institute of Technology) in 1988
and a postdoctoral certificate from Northwestern Polytechnical
University in 1991 in the PRC. Mr Wu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2017.
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Mr Li Minbo (“Mr Li")

aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Li
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Nanjing
University of Aeronauticsand Astronautics in 1991, a master’s
degree in engineering from Beihang University in 1997 and
a doctor’'s degree in engineering from Tsinghua University
in 2001. He worked as Postdoctoral Fellow at National
University of Singapore from 2001 to 2002. From 1991 to
1994, he was college teacher at the worker college of Changhe
Aircraft Industries Company* (E/A 7R T2 A 7]). He was a
researcher at Kingdee International Software Group Company
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 00268), from 2003 to 2004 and has been associate
professor of the School of Computer Science and Technology
of Fudan University since 2007. At present, he is the director
of the Manufacturing Data Research Office of the Shanghai
Key Laboratory of Data Science. Mr Li was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2021.
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Ms Chan Chi Yin (“Ms Chan”), CPA

aged 44, is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”). Ms Chan joined SIM
Technology (HK) on April 2017 and is responsible for the
financial reporting of the Group. Ms Chan was appointed as
the Company Secretary on 28 June 2017 and appointed as the
chief financial officer of the Company on 29 June 2018. Ms
Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over twenty years of experience in the
field of accounting. Ms Chan obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree with majoring in Accountancy and a
Master of Science Programme in Finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 129.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/she/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2022 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 are set out on page
303 of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has issued 1,050,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
upon the exercise of share options by an employee of the Company

during the Year.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, with a view to enhancing the net asset value per share,
the Company repurchased 70,616,000 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange and all the shares repurchased were cancelled during

the Year. Details of the repurchase were as follows:

Month of

repurchase

e A5

January 2022 —ZT-—_F—AHA
May 2022 —E-—FTFA
June 2022 XA
July 2022 —E-F+A
October 2022 —Z-—%+A
November 2022 T ZF+—A

Other than the shares repurchased by the Company as disclosed above,

neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

Number of
shares
repurchased
BEROHE
'000

FB

20,648
3,260
6,686

11,966
9,418

18,638

70,616

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2022 were approximately HK$296,388,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and retained

profit of approximately HK$102,540,000.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this Report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Mr Liu Jun (Chief technical officer)

Mr Zhu Wenhui

Mr Gao Jun (Chief executive officer)(resigned with effect from 30
September 2022)

Non-executive Director:

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wu Zhe

Mr Li Minbo

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

ESERTETHAERRMG ZE
wmRAXR

R-TE-—F+—-F=+—H 2FKARQA
FETHRABRARBISKEFMEREERZ
Rin - HERMD RESF (EERFLHRPEE
BIEXVER (BEEMIE5718) ([FH KR
I P HEERIERE F LA E 52535260 8%
RARBATHEF BT SiRE TR
RIFTEX107F LT AESRITHES T HHER
PRI ([MZ2ESPR) ) BAIE AR R BT 2
TEmRKBIT -

FREXRARARGZER

Approximate

Total number of percentage of

Name of director

EEHR

Mr Wong Cho Tung

THREE

Ms Yeung Man Ying
XL+

Mr Liu Jun
REHE

Nature of interest

EEME

Corporate interest (note 1)
NAVER (Matl)

Personal interest
EAER

Total
wmE

Corporate interest (note 2)
NEEm (Hit2)
Personal interest

B A=

Total
HBE

Personal interest
EAER

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

ordinary shares of interest in
the Company the Company
AN LERANEIE:
EZERA BHAESE
(note 3)

(H1723)

1,209,084,000 55.00%
3,098,000 0.14%
1,212,182,000 55.14%
734,857,000 33.42%
3,418,000 0.16%
738,275,000 33.58%
1,000,000 0.05%



Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting
power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty
in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr Wong is the sole director
of Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited
(“Simcom (BVI)") is wholly-owned by Mr Wong. Therefore, Mr Wong is deemed
to be interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by
Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong"), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,198,525,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022.

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details
of movements in the share options are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share award scheme and details of
the share awards are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 37 and the
share award scheme disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the Year nor at the end of the Year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
in the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any

time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the

Group was entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there is
no contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling Shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any connected

transaction.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this Report, permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is being

in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

IRER A fEEME

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(Htiz2) B A=

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(H13£3) B A

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued

share capital of 2,198,525,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong are disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in
Shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there is no other
substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out

in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for 47.85% of the
Group’s total sales and the largest customer accounted for 14.88% of

the Group’s total sales.

For the Year, the five largest suppliers accounted for 38.11% of the
Group’s total purchases and the largest supplier accounted for 13.64%

of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in

any of the Group’s five largest customers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication of
future development of the Group for the Year are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” in this Report. That discussion forms part of this report of the

Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of

the Group. Major risks are summarized below.

Fluctuations in the production capacity of the upstream supply
chain of terminals as a result of the long-lasting COVID-19
pandemic, structural shortages of raw materials due to
unbalanced production capacity, high inventories caused by
the failure to supply full set of materials for some projects
on schedule, and risk of collapse of upstream supply chain
companies, especially peripheral custom-made materials supply
companies, and interruption of supply:

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 led to
instability in production around the world, particularly in countries
and regions severely by hit by the pandemic. As the pandemic
continued into 2022, the output of the global supply chain
fluctuated greatly. For instance, the sudden shutdown of factories
in the domestic supply chain, the uncertainties in logistics time
and the doubling of orders by large-volume customers in the
industry in 2021 led to an increased output of the upstream
supply chain, while the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic restrained
consumption demand, resulting in a serious inventory backlog
of the entire industrial chain since the second quarter of 2022.
The Group also saw a decline in demand from its customers
and therefore a slowdown in their pick-up rate, resulting in
an increase in the Group’s inventory. The small and medium-
sized enterprises in the upstream supply chain, particularly
peripheral custom-made materials suppliers, have comparatively
weaker risk aversion abilities. They may encounter cash flow
problems and thus are more exposed to collapse of business and
supply interruption due to backlogged inventories as a result of
customers’ failure to pick up goods, which may also interrupt the
Group’s production. The Group have started to identify additional
secondary suppliers since early 2020 but still cannot fully
eliminate their exposure in supply and delivery. To this end, the
Group kept enhancing its supply chain management and spent
considerable effort to monitor the delivery capabilities and quality
of upstream suppliers. To minimize the risk of delayed delivery,
the Group has been actively identifying additional secondary
suppliers and preparing their replacement certification so that
they are able to replace any custom-made materials suppliers that
may expose the Group to any risk.
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Property leasing: Certain tenants may experience insufficient
cash flow amidst the novel coronavirus outbreak and there will
be risk of lease termination

The COVID-19 outbreak, which has lingered for three years,
has affected various industries, especially the service industry.
Therefore, the commencement of business of various companies
that leased buildings of the Group was delayed and its results
were adversely impacted. Especially, most of the leased shops on
the ground floor of the Group’s headquarters on Jinzhong Road
are restaurant enterprises and the impact on them is particularly
significant. For small enterprises with weak risk aversion abilities,
their cash flow is prone to shortage and they may go bankrupt.
The Group may therefore lose tenants and rental payments. In
2022, the Group offered to reduce rental fees and postpone the
payment of the same for some tenants so as to help them ride out
the storm. Even so, certain enterprises decided to terminate the
lease.

In 2022, the Group’s refined management structure, optimised
personnel costs as well as high material inventory which
occupied large amount of capital led to a substantial decrease
in capital flow

As for its self-owned brand routers and IP cameras and POS
ODM services, in April 2022, the personnel of its supporting
marketing, research and development, delivery, quality and
other departments reached the greatest number in 2022. As
Shanghai entered a lockdown for more than two months at the
end of March 2022, the turnover and gross profit could not reach
the targets set at the beginning of 2022. Although the Group
optimised its management structure and personnel and reduced
its personnel costs, it incurred a large amount of personnel
optimization compensation. In 2022, the Group’s router and IP
camera business continued to fulfill their order obligations and
was affected by the market. The outbound number of routers
and IP cameras failed to meet expectation, resulting in a further
increase in inventory. In 2022, we made investment in the R&D
projects for POS ODM products. The transformation works for our
production and operation in accordance with the requirements
for the safety of POS financial equipment, which was originally
scheduled to carry out in 2022, was postponed to 2023 as a
result of the pandemic issue. Given the long product life cycle
of POS, it is expected that the investment in R&D and material
preparation will continue to increase in 2023. It is expected that
the Group’s own liquidity will continue to decrease in the first half
of 2023, and will then increase in the second half of 2023 as its
inventory reduces.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1. Employees
The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company. The
Group pay attention to self-improvement of staff and give them a
working environment full of fairness, openness, sincerity, warmth
and opportunities. The Group’s competitive remuneration system
brings long-term and stable return for staff and also takes into
account the long-term and stable development of the Company.
The Group determine staffs’ remuneration and promotion based
on their capacity and contribution to the Group. The Company
sees staff with outstanding performance who share the same
values with the Company as valuable assets. We keep trying our
best to provide promising career prospect and a platform for
them to display their talents fully. Therefore, the Company not
only helps our employees to improve their knowledge, skills and
experience through performing their own duties, but also creates
good conditions in facilities and environment suitable for their
development. To facilitate the proper allocation and development
of high caliber talents, the Company has set up an employee
career development system which focuses on both management
and technical skills. Through this system, each outperforming key
member can seize the opportunity to improve overall abilities by
various ways. The Company aims to create conducive conditions
for talents to demonstrate themselves and grow through career,

and also build solid team with talents.
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Suppliers

The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle of
mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards such
as 1S09001, 1S014001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict social
responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the supplies meets
our requirements and that their production management systems
also comply with requirements on environment, occupational
health and safety management system as stated in relevant laws
and regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance

to meet delivery demand.

Customers

The Group establish complete management systems in
compliance with national and international standards, as well as
well-known clients’ requirements, which cover product quality,
environment, occupational health and safety, information
security and product safety management. Through survey on
clients’ satisfaction we conduct every year, our clients express
their positive feedback on quality, logistics, cost and service.
Among our clients all over the world, both new and old well-
known clients supervise and inspect each management system
of the Company every year. Apart from this, our Company also
implements Key Performance Indicator (KPI), internal control
scheme, management appraisal program in every aspect. In order
to continuously enhance management systems of the Company,
we set up a specific department to supervise operation and pass
the results to the management of the Company on a regular basis

to review.
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Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,
but the responsibility of each of us. The Group initiates and strives to
minimize our environmental impact by using water saving facilities,
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. The Group also operates in strict compliance with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess all necessary
permission and approval from the PRC regulators. The Group also has
environment policies in place to reduce emission, raise efficiency use of

resources and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the Year
and up to the date of this Report, the Group have complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact to the Group
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the Year, the Group did not have any

material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2023
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
the Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasise a quality Board with sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules during the Year.

According to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. On 30
September 2022, Mr. Gao Jun resigned as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. Ever since the resignation of
Mr. Gao Jun, the Company has not been able to identify a suitable
candidate for the position of the chief executive officer and the office of
the chief executive officer therefore remains vacant. This constitutes a

deviation from code provision C.2.1.

However, a management team which takes up the roles and duties of
the chief executive officer has been set up by the Group since Mr. Gao
Jun’s resignation. The team comprises five members, including three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Cho Tung, Mr. Liu Jun and Mr.
Zhu Wenhui, and two members of the management of the Company,
namely Mr. Zhu Qi (the chief operating officer of the Group) and Mr.
Yang Hanjie (the chief marketing officer of the Group). In light of the
above, even though the Company has not been able to appoint an
individual to take up the role of the chief executive officer since Mr. Gao
Jun’s resignation, the Board considers that such a deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code is appropriate under

such circumstances.
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THE BOARD =g

Board functions EES R

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the EEeAaTERUANASSBIELTRER
Company by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and BRZIEBRAES| - EVARB 2K - EE

effective manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in SREBETUNER B8 BEEFEEAA
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the RAIRERR Z &EFMZZ ARITE -

Company and its Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include: BREZEIEL 2RAERIE

1. setting the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and ensuring 1. HEARRIZER BEKEKE  WLFE

that the Company’s culture aligns with them; RARRB UL EFE B

2. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance 2. EHRIESITESRR: XREXEEEK
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate EBETBREDERE
performance;

3. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between 3. EEREETEEREFENE 2EE
management and Board members; and ER=EEE: &

4. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial 4. WRARFZ G RMBREE (R
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that WY EZ) C TEANEEIEE 215
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems % FRIREERE - BgES RE R
for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law. FHE e
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Mr Liu Jun (Chief Technical Officer)
Mr Zhu Wenhui

Non-executive Director

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wu Zhe

Mr Li Minbo

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 28 to 32 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with
each other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the

Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms Yeung
Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and strategies of
the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was performed by
Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating the direction,
strategies and the development plan of the new business of the Group.
As stated above, up until 29 September 2022, the role of chief executive
officer was performed by Mr Gao Jun who took up the responsibility of
the overall management of the Group’s product and business planning,
including management of product definition, sales, procurement,
production and delivery. The roles and duties of the chief executive
officer have been taken up by the management team set up by the

Group since Mr Gao Jun’s resignation.

The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management
including the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by
the Board and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board

before public reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). All Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s
businesses, including relevant rules and regulations. Directors shall
have full access to information on the Group and are able to obtain
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors. No request was made by any Director for such independent
professional advice during the Year. The Company Secretary shall
prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for inspection by

Directors upon request.

The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in the Year. The following is the attendance record of each
Director at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company

for the Year:

Number of Board
meetings attended/
Number of Board

Number of general
meeting attended/
Number of general

Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 171 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 1/1 4/4
Mr Zhu Wenhui 1/1 4/4
Mr Gao Jun

(Resigned with effect from 30

September 2022) 1/1 33
Mr Wong Hei, Simon 11 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 171 4/4
Mr Wu Zhe i 4/4
Mr Li Minbo 171 4/4

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance,
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board. The
Company has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with the

Corporate Governance Code (“Board Diversity Policy”).
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According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board takes into account
various elements of diversity including but not limited to age, gender,
race, cultural and educational background, skills, professional
knowledge, and industry experience in determining the appointment
and reappointment of the Directors and proposed candidates. All
Directors appointments are based on merits and due regard is given to

the Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can benefit from it.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives, skills and experience
within the Board, a range of measurable objectives will be considered
when deciding on appointments of directors and the continuation
of those appointments, including but not limited to gender, age,
race, cultural and educational background, length of service, skills,
professional experience, regional and industry experience and any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate from time to time. To
implement Board diversity, the Company shall not only appoint directors
of the same gender. In addition, in forming its perspectives on Board
diversity, the Company will also take into account its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The Board was satisfied
with the diversity of the Board composition during the Year. As at the
date of this Report, there was one female Director on the Board, namely

Ms Yeung Man Ying.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board Diversity Policy and its implementation and

effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.

The Company also recognises the importance of diversity at the
workforce level. As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio of the
workforce of the Group (including senior management) was 62:38 male

to female.
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INDEPENDENT VIEWS POLICY

To ensure that independent views are available to the Board, the
Company is required to have at least three independent non-executive
Directors and has adopted a policy (“Independent Views Policy”) in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, pursuant to which the

independent non-executive Directors are required to, among others:

(i) keep up-to-date with the Company’s business affairs and be
involved in scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance

reporting;

(i) bring independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct, and help review some of the Board’s major
decisions and the Company’s performance in relation to corporate

goals, and monitor performance reporting;

(iii)  take the lead where potential conflicts of interest arise; and

(iv)  serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and other governance committees of the
Board, if invited.

According to the Independent Views Policy, the independent non-
executive Directors shall allocate sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities and should not accept an invitation to serve as an
independent non-executive Director on the Board unless they can
devote adequate time and effort to the work involved. Independent
non-executive Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient time and
dedicate adequate attention to each board and board committee. In
addition, the independent non-executive Directors shall at least annually
attend meeting with the chairman of the Board without the presence of
other Directors. The Independent Views Policy and its implementation

and effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board met once
with all Directors present to review the policies and practices and
compliance by the Company and reviewed and monitored the training

and continuous professional development of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Further explanation as to how the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company'’s objectives is set out under “Chairman’s Statement” from

pages 4 to 10 of this annual report.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that
they complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Mr Liu Jun, Mr Zhu Wenhui, Mr
Gao Jun (resigned on 30 September 2022), Mr Wong Hei, Simon, Mr
Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo, participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such
as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

During the Year, the Company Secretary fully complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of professional

training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for

the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time; (iv) assessing performance of the executive
Directors; and (v) reviewing and approving matters relation to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board are available on

the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior

management of the Group. The attendance record is as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe 1/1
Mr Li Minbo 1/1
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo, and one executive Director being Mr Wong
Cho Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources
management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing

Hung.

In addition to considering the performance of individuals and the
profitability of the Group, executive Directors, who are assisted by the
Group’s human resources department, are responsible for reviewing
all relevant remuneration information, obtaining market conditions and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee remuneration packages
for Directors and senior management for consideration and approval.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.
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The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options and share awards.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

serving every period of 12 months.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options and/or share
awards to executive Directors in accordance with the share option

schemes and share award schemes adopted by the Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by
the Remuneration Committee based on the performance of the Group

and that of the individual Director.

Mr Wong Hei, Simon entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company to serve as a non-executive Director for a term of one year
commencing from 31 May 2022, unless terminated by not less than
one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other and
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other related

provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing from 25 January 2023,
unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws

and the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process

and other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met three times in the Year to review
with senior management and the Company’s external auditors the
internal and external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory
compliance, and discussed auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters (including the 2021 annual financial
statements and 2022 interim financial statements before recommending

them to the Board for approval).

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 3/3
Mr Wu Zhe 3/3
Mr Li Minbo 3/3

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has professional

qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules

and the Corporate Governance Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i) reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; (iii) assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
(iv) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and their succession planning, in particular
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the
Board are available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock

Exchange.

The Nomination Committee members held one meeting during the Year
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and matters

relating to the re-election of the retiring Directors.

The following is the attendance record of each member at the

Nomination Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Li Minbo 11
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Liu Hing Hung and Mr.
Li Minbo, and one executive Director being Mr. Wong Cho Tung. The

Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hing Hung.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company endeavors to ensure the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
required to support the execution of its business strategy and ensure it is

effective.

According to the nomination policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of the Board will be made on a merit basis and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria. The selection criteria used

in assessing the suitability of a candidate include:

° the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and knowledge which

are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy);

° the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;

° the candidate’s character and integrity;

° the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote adequate time

in discharge of a director’s duties;

o whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and length of service;

° (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the candidate is in
compliance with the criteria of independence under the Listing

Rules; and

o any other factors as may be determined by the Nomination

Committee or the Board from time to time.
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In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director, or the Nomination
Committee may invite nomination from members of the Board for
consideration. The Nomination Committee will then evaluate the
personal profile of the candidate based on the criteria set out above,
undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. For the
nomination of independent non-executive Director, the Nomination
Committee will also assess the candidate’s independence in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules. For re-
appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee will
review the candidate’s attendance at the Board committee meetings,
Board meetings and general meetings of the Company, his/her
level of participation and performance in the Board) and make
recommendations to the Board and the Shareholders for re-election at

the general meetings of the Company.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”). A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director
throughout the meeting at which he retires. The Directors to retire by
rotation will be those who have been longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment but as between persons who become or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day those retire will (unless they

otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$2.2 million as audit fees and HK$0.45 million as non-
audit fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2022.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 121 to 128 of

this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review

them at regular intervals.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the Year, through discussions
with the management and external auditors the Board has conducted
assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review
covers a whole financial year. However, such systems are designed to
limit the risks to which the Group exposes to an acceptable level but
not eliminate them. Hence, such systems can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements in financial

information and record or loss.
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A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by
key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top down
approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified,
prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish

the Group’s objectives.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking into
account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the Year, the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
material internal controls system and is of the opinion that the resources
for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function are adequate and sufficient. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with
the present risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and up to
the date of this annual report, nothing has been found which requires

substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all
other major components of the internal control system of the Group for

the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) in
compliance with code provision F.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. Declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Byelaws and any applicable laws,

rules and regulations.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company can declare dividends
from time to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the financial performance of the Group, the Group’s expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans, retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group, the Group’s
liquidity position, the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group, and any other factors that the

Board deems relevant.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time by
the Board and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be proposed

or declared in any given period.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds
to requests for information and queries from the investment community

via the investor relations personnel.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) which provides for different
communication channels between the Company and the Shareholders.
According to the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, in order to enable
the Shareholders to engage actively with the Company and exercise
their rights in an informed manner, the Board is committed to providing
clear and full information of the Group to Shareholders in a timely and
effective manner through sending the Shareholders the Company’s
interim and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and
when appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders

in the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.
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Shareholders are provided with designated contacts, email addresses
and enquiry lines of the Company and may at any time make a request
for the Company’s information to the extent that the same is publicly
available. In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend or appoint
proxies to attend on their behalf the Annual General Meeting to raise
their enquires. The Annual General Meeting provides a good opportunity
for communications between the Board and Shareholders. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and related papers are sent to the Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and the said notice
is also published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. The Chairman and Directors (if applicable), or the duly
appointed delegate will answer questions from the Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting about the Group’s business. The Company’s
external auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting. During the
Year, the Company held its Annual General Meeting on 16 June 2022,
which was attended by members of the Board and the Company’s

auditor.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s share registrar and the results
of the poll will be published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Financial and other information are made
available on the Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

In light of the above, the Board was satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy during the

Year.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS

A.
1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit

of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or

more of those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing
Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a

special general meeting will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as
Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).
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The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
and the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, (i) the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general

meeting will not be convened as requested.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company amended its Bye-laws to give effect to,
among others, the following: (i) to bring the Bye-laws to conform to the
core shareholder protection standards that apply to all issuers to provide
the same level of protection to all investors as set out in Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules; (ii) to allow general meetings of the Company to be
held as a physical meeting in any part of the world and at one or more
locations, or as an electronic meeting or as a hybrid meeting; (iii) to
allow the Directors to postpone or make changes to a general meeting
when they in their absolute discretion consider it is inappropriate,
impracticable, unreasonable or undesirable to hold the general meeting
on or at the scheduled date or time or place or in the scheduled form,
for example, in case of bad weather conditions or other similar events;
(iv) to provide for more physical and electronic channels for the giving
or issue of any notice or document by or on behalf of the Company; (v)
to modify the definition of “associates” into that of “close associate”,
and making corresponding changes to the relevant provisions (including
the provision providing that a Director shall not vote on (nor be counted
in the quorum) in relation to any Board resolution approving any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which he or any of his
close associates is materially interested and the provision in relation to
prohibition of loan to Directors); and (vi) to make other housekeeping
amendments, including making consequential amendments in line with
the above amendments to the then Bye-laws and bringing the Bye-
laws to be aligned with the latest Companies Act of Bermuda. These

amendments became effective on 16 June 2022.

The adoption of the amended and restated Bye-laws were duly passed
by the Shareholders as a special resolution of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting held on 16 June 2022, further details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 20 April 2022,
the circular of the Company dated 28 April 2022 and the poll results

announcement of the Company dated 16 June 2022.

The amended and restated Bye-laws can be found on the respective

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
SIM Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present

the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (the “Report”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (“2022" or the “Reporting Period”). This
Report describes the Group’s management measures and performance

in environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects.

REPORTING SCOPE

All information contained in this Report reflects the Group’s performance
in environmental protection and social care in 2022. The management
of the Group determined the scope of disclosure of this Report after
considering the Group’s resource allocation and the operation of its
different segments. The general scope of disclosure of this Report
includes all existing business segments of the Group, namely handsets
and Internet of Things (“IOT”) terminals business and property
management business. As far as environmental data is concerned, this
Report includes entities in all segments that have significant revenue
contribution to the Group and relevantly significant ESG impact, namely
the headquarter in Shanghai, and factories in Qingpu of Shanghai,
Shenyang and Tongcheng. As compared with the last reporting year, the
Group continued to expand the scope of disclosure to cover the relevant

data generated by the Shanghai headquarter.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Stock Exchange”). This Report provides an overview
of the performance of the Group in ESG aspects. The information in
this Report is derived from the official documents and statistical data
of the Group, as well as the monitoring, management and operation
information compiled by its subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant
systems of the Group. The last chapter of this Report contains a

complete content index for easy reference.

The Group also attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency in the preparation of this Report. The Group
has applied these reporting principles in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide, details of which are as follows:

Materiality: During the Reporting Period, the Group analysed its material
ESG issues through materiality assessment, and regarded the identified
material issues as the focus of the preparation of this Report. The
materiality of different material issues has been reviewed and confirmed
by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and senior
management. For further details, please refer to the sections headed

“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: This Report, where appropriate compares quantitative
key performance indicators (the “KPIs”), and explains the standards,
methods, assumptions, and sources of key conversion factors when

calculating relevant information.

Balance: This Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s
performance and avoids selections, omissions, or presentation formats

that may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the reader.
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Consistency: This Report describes the information about changes in
the public domain and calculation methods as appropriate. During the
Reporting Period, the environment data generated by the Shanghai
headquarter was added to this Report, and the relevant changes are

listed in the section of affected information with explanatory notes.

If you are in doubt or have any recommendations in regards to this
Report, or the Group’s ESG plans, you are welcome to email us at

karen.chan@sim.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Group has established an ESG structure to ensure that ESG is in
line with the Group’s business strategy and integrated ESG into the

Group’s business operations and decision-making process.

The Board is fully responsible for the Group’s ESG matters, including
formulating strategies, monitoring the Group’s ESG performance,
ensuring the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, and reviewing and approving the disclosures in the ESG
reports. To promote a consistent ESG management across the Group,
the Group has established an ESG working group (the “ESG Working
Group”) to handle ESG-related matters on behalf of the Board. The
ESG Working Group is composed of senior management responsible
for ESG matters and general staff from different departments including
operations, human resources and finance. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for implementing the Group’s ESG measures, collecting and
analysing ESG information, making recommendations to the Board on
ESG matters, reviewing the implementation of ESG-related matters by
different departments of the Group, as well as reporting to the Board
on the progress of its work at least once a year at a Board meeting and
advising the Board on ESG matters as and when appropriate. The Board
has the appropriate skills and experience required to meet the Group’s
business needs, including ESG related issues. The Group has also
engaged the ESG consultant to facilitate the collection and analysis of
relevant data of the Group and to provide advice on ESG management

and practices.
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To further enhance the Group’s ESG performance, the Group set
environmental-related targets for the year ended 31 December 2021
(“2021"). The Board would arrange meeting and reviews the progress
of achieving the relevant targets at least on an annual basis for the
discussion of ESG relevant topics, review and approval of the ESG
report, and ensure that the ESG Working Group has sufficient resources
to achieve these targets. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
reviewed its four environmental targets set in 2021. The Group believes
that through setting targets and implementing relevant measures,
the Group will continue to raise the ESG awareness of employees,
promote behavioural changes, and ultimately integrate the concept of

sustainability into the Group’s operations and development.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s stakeholders refer to groups and individuals that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business or would be affected by the
Group’s business. The Group’s stakeholders include not only internal
directors, management and employees, but also external shareholders
and investors, customers, suppliers and partners, regulatory authorities
and government agencies, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”),

media and other various types of community groups.

The Group is committed to achieving mutual benefits and joint
development with its customers, staff, shareholders and other
stakeholders, so as to benefit the society by sharing the fruits of
its growth. Thus, the engagement of the stakeholders is a crucial
component to the Group’s business development and fulfilment of

corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group interacted with stakeholders
through a number of channels on both regular and ad hoc basis. The
following are the communication channels between the Group and
different stakeholders during the Reporting Period, and the expectations
and requirements of stakeholders that the Group understands through

these channels:
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Stakeholders Expectations and Requirements
& HASE B ER
Directors and management ° Compliance operation
o Economic performance
EENEEE o RS
o BRI
Employees o Remuneration and benefits
° Development and training
° Employee care
° Employee communication
° Occupational health and safety
BT . HrEN e
o BERKIEI
e EBIMWE
J BIEA

o BEREEZRZE

Shareholders and investors o Return on investment
° Improving product and service
quality

° Market position

° Compliance operation

o Information transparency

° Risk management

° Corporate governance
fREFLEE o RE R

s RAERERBEE

J i

o ARKE

o EEEAE

o [ f i 1R

e XER
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Communication channels

BEEE

Internal training and seminars
Intranet

Regular meetings
WEBE IR & &
B4 RS

e

Internal system
Staff meetings
Training
Annual meeting
Notice board
MBS

i TER

7
=]

o

\

e
hell]

i

5
ofF

Social media
Mass media

Shareholders’ meetings

Annual reports, financial reports and

announcements
Website

HRIREE
KRB
BREH
FIR - PR
Ak

If
X
oy
of



Stakeholders
HhE

Customers

0%
i

Suppliers and partners

HERETA (R

Regulatory authorities and
government agencies

B ERBBUA S

NGOs and media

FEBUT AR AN 5S

Expectations and Requirements

HEEER

° Customer privacy protection
° Stable relationship

° Customer service quality

o Business integrity and ethics

° Health and safety

s REFFPLRE

e  BEBRE

s  EPRBEE

o EEMEHER
o REHEHZE

° Business ethics and reputation
° Long-term relationship
° Fair tendering

s BmEREmEEE
o REIBIEEE
o DFRE

° Regulatory compliance
o Policy implementation
o Tax payment

° Responding to national strategies

o EWER
o HBURETT
o BB
o EEBIZKME

° Environmental protection
° Health and safety

o Giving back to society

° Social welfare

o RERH#E
o REFEHEZE
e [EHE®
o HEREA
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Communication channels

BEEE

o Mobile applications

° Social media

° Website

° Hotline

o Satisfaction survey form
° Direct communication
o FiEMAIER

o HMAER

J )

e HURES

s  REEMAEBR

. BHEBER

° Direct communication

° Regular review

° Performance assessment

o On-site inspection

s  HEKEBR
o EHTE
o EHFHE

o  BHER

° Qualification review
° Meetings
o Direct communication

. BETE
. md

s EREB

° Mass media

° Mobile applications
° Website

° Social media

. Visits

s KREHK
o FHEMEN

.
. RmE
.« RUED

BANMEEBERAR — T - —FFF

77



78

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HERERRS

The operation of the Group affects its stakeholders who have different
expectations of the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to maintain and enhance its communication with stakeholders, collect
opinions from stakeholders through various channels more extensively,
so as to present the content and information of the ESG reports in a way
that meets the expectations of stakeholders better.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group determines the scope of its ESG disclosures with reference
to the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide. The Board and the
ESG Working Group identify a series of material ESG-related issues by
regularly considering the Group’s business operations and industry
standards, and regularly inviting the Group’s stakeholders to conduct
materiality assessment. The priorities of these material issues are
assessed based on their importance to the sustainable development of
the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment relates to the current
stage of development of the Group and may change in the future. The
following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

AEENEBRETRFHNE  MBHEHA
SEHATRAL - KK - AEBEREEESS
Whnsg R ERER - BB TRTAREZ
HWRERNHENER  WERAHEREN
AAZRRE  HEREARENABTRGE
B o

EEHERTMG

REFERRRE - G NEAMERSINEL
ETHERE HekEARBRFEANGE &
FERRE  HERERTIE)EEEREE
AEEORBEERITRIFRR - MR —
ZINBENRY L REAEBERE - LF
BB ARENSN EETEE N HETME -
HEERUZEENBLAFIREHARER LA
FIEAREERNEREE TANZ - 186
Az AR B E AT R AR - SRR
HREE c UTEEAASEERRE e
REAHRBNHE

Materiality Assessment Matrix

BRI AERE

Prohibition of child Labour and forced labour
b E T RSEHIS5T

Greenhouse gas emissions \

RERBIR

Diversity and equal opportunities.
LR TFERE

=4
%1

L E S

m
x

Waste management
BEYER

Community engagement
HEem

Emissions management

HmER

Influence on stakeholder assessment

Training and development
BIIRER

Energy and water saving
FHIREIR B A7k

Countermeasures to climate change
FELRIREL

Privacy protection and data security:

Anti corruption
REH

Occupational safety and health
BERERiER

ARREAYEZS
Customer service quality
FERRBRE

Product design and lifecycle management
Em R R ERERER
Supply chain management
HEREE

Salary and benefit of employees
BTHBRARR

Influence on the Group’s business

HAREEHHYE

The Group regards the results of the materiality assessment as an
important indicator for the Group’s future ESG planning and policy
formulation, and continuously promotes the Group’s sustainable
development process based on these material issues.
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ENVIRONMENT
EMISSIONS

As an industry-leading mobile communication and 10T enterprise,
the Group insists on operating its business in an environmentally
responsible manner, adheres to the concept of sustainable development
and adopts various measures to reduce the potential impact of
production and business activities on the environment, so as to achieve
harmonious coexistence between the society, the environment and
different stakeholders. We strive to integrate innovation and green
concepts into the entire product life cycle, as well as the whole process
of research and development, production, logistics and customer
service, and make unremitting efforts to reduce energy consumption,

resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

In view of the global trend of emission reduction, the Group has
established an environmental management policy, including the
“Management Manual” that is in compliance with ISO9001 and
ISO14001, as well as a set of rules and regulations, to monitor the

environmental impact of the Group’s activities.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the “Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the “Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”. To this
end, the Group regularly evaluates the sources of factory emissions, and
collects data on welding tin emissions and domestic sewage discharge
for monitoring and analysis. In terms of factory air emissions, the Group
turns on the ventilation device over its production line at appropriate
time, organises qualified entity to monitor the industrial gas outlets, and
regularly inspects and maintains the exhaust pipe to ensure that the
exhaust gas meets the emission standards. The air emissions from the
factory were not significant. The Group’s air emissions! mainly come

from the fuel used by vehicles owned by the Group.
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The Group’s air emissions are as follows:

Indicator! Unit

BE B

Nitrogen oxides tonnes

=ty NI

Sulphur oxides tonnes

ety NI

Particulate matter tonnes

sy kY| NI

Note:

1. The information with reference to the air emissions data includes but is not

limited to “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly come from
direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions generated by the fuel use of vehicles
and other machinery owned by the Group, the use of refrigerants, and
the use of natural gas and LPG in staff canteens, as well as energy

indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions from the purchased electricity.
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2022 2021
—E-CF —E-——F
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The Group’s GHG emissions are as follows: AEBERBREREHROT ¢

Indicator? Unit 2022 2021

B2 By —E-CfF —E-—F

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 113.59 212.46

BE (EE ) AEREHNE D —SLIREE

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions  tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 9,177.89 10,102.03

e (FE =) R EREHME D —SLIREE

Total GHG emissions?® tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 9,291.48 10,314.49

BERBBHERAES D —SULIREE

Average GHG emissions generated per tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 12.98 7.19
full-time employees* generated per employee

BE2BEETFHEANAZTREFNE AE_SikEE (B8

Average GHG emissions generated per tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 0.010 0.012
square foot of factory area® generated per square foot

BYHFREBEFHEENAZREINES AE_atikEE TR

Average GHG emissions generated per tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 0.016 0.016
HK$'000 revenue® generated per HK$'000 revenue

FTETUE FHEENRERBINE MM _AtiREE TETka

ERNBEBEERAT T F5R 81
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Notes:

This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s tenants.
GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and
is based on, but not limited to, “The GHG Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by
the Stock Exchange, 2019 baseline emission factors for regional power grids
in China for emission reduction project issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, “Guidelines for Accounting
Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Electronic
Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National Development and
Reform Commission of China, “Gasoline for motor vehicles” (GB17930-2016)
and “Automobile diesel fuels” (GB19147-2016) issued by Standardisation
Administration of China, “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report, 2014 (ARb), and the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by
the International Energy Agency.

Total GHG emissions include GHG from factories in Qingpu of Shanghai,
Shenyang and Tongcheng (2022: 8,092.84 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent;
2021: 10,314.49 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent) and GHG emissions
(2022: 1,198.64 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent; 2021: not disclosed) of
the Shanghai headquarters.

The number of employees used by the Group to calculate this GHG emission
intensity was the number of its full-time employees as at 31 December 2022,
which is 716 (as of 31 December 2021: 1,434 full-time employees), it will
also be used for calculating other intensity data. Against the background of
the US-China tensions, the global economic recession and the impact of the
pandemic, the Group underwent organisational restructuring by downsizing and
layoff, starting from the fourth quarter of 2022. This change led to a significant
decrease in the number of full-time employees as at 31 December 2022
compared with that as at 31 December 2021, resulting in significant increase in
the average intensity of environmental data per full-time employees in 2022.

In 2022, the area used by the Group to calculate this GHG emission intensity
is the factory area and the office area of the headquarter, i.e. approximately
902,694.24 square feet (2021: approximately 841,475.27 square feet), which
will also be used for calculating other intensity data.

In 2022, the Group’s revenue used in calculating this GHG emission intensity,
which is the revenue generated from the handsets and 10T terminals business,
amounted to approximately HK$584,673,000 (2021: HK$662,728,000), which
will also be used for calculating other intensity data.
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The Group set its first GHG emissions target in 2021, aiming to reduce
GHG emissions intensity (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$'000
revenue) by 5% by 2025 as compared to the level in 2021. As the
Group has added the environmental data of the Shanghai headquarter
in 2022 after improving the data collection system, the Group uses
the environmental data intensity of the three factories in 2022 to
compare with the level in 2021 in terms of target setting, so as to
make meaningful comparison against the target. The GHG emissions
intensity of the three factories of the Group in 2022 (approximately 0.014
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$’000 revenue) decreased by
approximately 13% as compared to the level in 2021 (approximately
0.016 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$'000 revenue). This was
mainly due to the impact of the pandemic-related policies, the normal
production activities of the three factories of the Group have been
severely disrupted for a considerable period of time. The Group will
continue to review the Group’s GHG emissions intensity and implement
GHG emissions reduction measures to ensure that the GHG emissions

intensity remains up to standard in the next reporting year.

To achieve the target, the Group actively adopts electricity saving and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions, including strict
control on the use of air conditioners, lighting facilities and office
appliances. Specific measures will be described in the section headed

“Use of Resources”.

In addition, the Group has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations and has formulated safe operating procedures for the
collection and storage of hazardous waste. The waste generated should
be placed in special collection points and temporarily stored by trained
specialists in temporary storage of hazardous waste equipped with fire
extinguishers, storage boxes and water sources. The Group also has
stringent requirements and rules for the disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Group would only enter into agreements
in relation to waste disposal with companies that meet its standards.
The Group collects the relevant licences of such companies, such
as business license, the Shanghai Dangerous Materials Business
License, Road Transportation License of the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the amount of hazardous waste generated by the Group was
insignificant, so the relevant data was not disclosed in this Report, and

the target related to hazardous waste is no longer applicable.
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In addition, as the Group actively implements policy on pollution,
emissions and wastage reduction, it has signed relevant undertakings
with the suppliers. The suppliers also actively cooperate in minimising

unnecessary plastic packaging of some components and parts.

The performance of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is as

FE - AARKEEBHETES « WHE - B
RYER - REEE DR TARARE - £ &
TRAFEHOIME EHEROEGRLES - &
PTIVENBBEE - REB B ER
TR B W EE M BB R -

AEEELANTEEEERZYRANT

follows:

Indicator Unit
EBE By
Waste paper boards’ tonnes
REARARY NI}
Waste plastics’ tonnes
REEERE NI}
Total amount of non-hazardous waste 78 tonnes
BmEBEEYAES NI

Average amount of non-hazardous waste
generated per full-time employee

BEERESTHELANESERYE

Average amount of non-hazardous waste

generated per square foot

kilogram per employee

Tr/lEE

kilogram per square foot

BYFREEFOMEENESEEDE F7/FEAR

Average non-hazardous waste generated per kilogram per HK$'000
HK$’000 revenue revenue

BTFATWETHEANEESREENE F5e,/ TR

Notes:

7. In 2022, the Group improved the data collection system to exclude the data of

non-hazardous waste generated by the Group’s tenants, while the data in 2021
still included the non-hazardous waste generated by tenants.

8. Since the operation of Shanghai headquarter does not generate waste paper
boards and waste plastics, the total amount of non-hazardous waste only
includes the amount of non-hazardous waste generated by factories in Qingpu

of Shanghai, Shenyang and Tongcheng.
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2022 2021

s F —E-—fF
15.20 20.48

7.53 30.60

22.73 51.08
31.75 35.62
0.025 0.061
0.039 0.077
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The Group set the target for non-hazardous waste for the first time in
2021. The target is to reduce the non-hazardous waste generation
intensity (kilogram per HK$'000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared
to the level in 2021. During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous
waste generation intensity (approximately 0.039 kilogram per HK$'000
revenue) of the three factories of the Group decreased by approximately
49% as compared to the level (approximately 0.077 kilogram per
HK$'000 revenue) in 2021, which was mainly due to the improvement
of the data collection system by the Group, the non-hazardous waste
generated by tenants was no longer included in the data in 2022, as
well as the negative impact of the pandemic-related policies on the
normal production activities of the factories. The Group will continue to
review the emission intensity of non-hazardous waste and re-establish
quantitative targets in the years when production activities return to
normal. Therefore, the Group has set a directional goal for the next
reporting year, namely holding at least one waste reduction related

activity to raise employees’ awareness in this regard.

To achieve this target, the Group reduces the generation of waste
through the adoption of automated testing robots, technological
innovation, replacement of aging equipment, personnel integration, and

addition of automated assembly lines.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any incidents
of noncompliance with laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
including but not limited to the “Air Pollution Control Ordinance” and
the “Waste Disposal Ordinance” in Hong Kong, and the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and

Control of Water Pollution”.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is of the view that efficient use of resources is one of the
development priorities in sustainable development. Thus, improving
the efficiency of resources utilisation not only enhances environmental
performance, but also lowers cost and optimizes operational efficiency

in the long run.

The Group’s main energy consumption comes from direct energy
consumption of fuel, natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas used by

vehicles and other equipments, and indirect energy consumption from

purchased electricity.

The performance of energy consumption by the Group is as follows:

Indicator® Unit
=g B
Direct energy consumption MWh
HERRER KB
Indirect energy consumption MWh
AL IR E#E NS
Total energy consumption© MWh
BEIREREE S JKELBF

Average energy consumption per full-time

MWh per employee

employee
BREBERTIRRERE KRR 1BE
Average energy consumption per square foot MWh per square foot
ST HREET R AR KFE,FHR

Average energy consumption per HK$'000
revenue

FTRETRE FHREREREE

Notes:

MWh per HK$'000 revenue

KEE,FiETdas

9. This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s tenants.

The data used in the calculation of energy consumption conversion include,

but are not limited to: “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting

Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange and the

“Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of GHG Emissions from

Electronic Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National Development

and Reform Commission of China.
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10. Total energy consumption includes the energy consumption of factories in
Qingpu of Shanghai, Shenyang and Tongcheng (2022: 9,862.68 MWh; 2021:
12,103.80 MWh) and the energy consumption of Shanghai headquarters (2022:
1,578.44 MWh; 2021: not disclosed).

The Group set its first target for energy use in 2021. The target is to
reduce the energy consumption intensity (MWh per HK$'000 revenue)
by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in 2021. During the Reporting
Period, the energy consumption intensity (approximately 0.017 MWh
per HK$’000 revenue) of the three factories of the Group decreased
by approximately 6% as compared to the level of 2021 (approximately
0.018 MWh per HK$'000 revenue), which was mainly due to the impact
of the pandemic-related policies, the normal production activities of the
three factories of the Group were severely disrupted for a considerable
period of time. The Group will continue to review the Group’s energy
consumption intensity and implement energy-saving measures to
ensure that the energy consumption intensity remains up to standard in

the next reporting year.

To achieve this target, the Group has strengthened internal efforts on the
promotion and control measures of energy conservation. For example, it
reduces electricity consumption of air conditioners in winter by utilising
the residual heat of patch production lines, while adopting cold-water

air-conditioning and energy saving lighting systems in summer.

The Group maintains strict compliance with the “Directive on the
Restriction of the “Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment” (“ROHS”) and “Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals” (“REACH”) in product
design and manufacturing, so that its products meet the environmental

quality standards for exportation to the European Union.

The Group consumes water supplied by the municipal tap water
company and has not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is

fit for purpose.
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The performance of water consumption by the Group is as follows:

Indicator

B

Total water consumption!!

FkpE!

Average water consumption per full-time
employee

BREBER TIFEKE

average water consumption per square foot

Y AREEFIFEKE

average water consumption per HK$'000

revenue
FFATNETEFEKE
Note:

Unit
By

cubic meter
SR

cubic meter per employee

SR RE

cubic meter per square foot
SRS FRR

cubic meter per HK$'000

revenue

SR T TR

11. This information does not include water consumption by the Group’s tenants.

The total water consumption includes the water consumption of factories in

Qingpu of Shanghai Shenyang and Tongcheng (2022: 80,884.94 cubic metres;

2021: 99,658.50 cubic metres) and the water consumption of the headquarters
in Shanghai (2022: 12,325.93 cubic metres; 2021: not disclosed).

The Group set the target of water consumption for the first time in

2021, which is to reduce the water consumption intensity (cubic meter

per HK$'000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in

2021. During the Reporting Period, the water consumption intensity

(approximately 0.14 cubic meter per HK$'000 revenue) of the three

factories of the Group decreased by approximately 7% as compared
to the level (approximately 0.15 cubic meter per HK$'000 revenue)
in 2021, which was mainly due to the impact of the pandemic related
policies, the normal production activities of the three factories of the
Group were severely disrupted for a considerable period of time. The
Group will continue to review the water consumption intensity of the
Group and implement water conservation measures to ensure that
the water consumption intensity remains up to standard in the next

reporting year.
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To achieve this target, the main water efficiency initiatives of the Group

are as follows:

° We do a good job in energy and water conservation promotion
and education, so that every employee of the Group can fully
understand the importance of water conservation, their sense
of responsibility is enhanced, and we widely encourage every
employee to actively and consciously achieve and develop a habit

of water conservation;

o Promote the use of water-saving sanitary ware in the Group to

reduce waste and save water; and

° A regular inspection system has been established, and designated
personnel are responsible for inspecting and recording the water
supply facilities within the Group to ensure normal use of water
by the Group. If problems are found, measures will be taken to

prevent water leakage in a timely manner.

As for the consumption of packaging materials, the recyclable packaging
containers and packaging component materials of all the Group’s
finished products have identification marks and labels in accordance
with the requirements of “GB/T 18455-2010 Packaging Recycling
Marks”.

The performance of consumption of packaging materials by the Group is

as follows:

Indicator Unit
BE B
Total packaging material consumption'? Tonnes
BEMEERRER NI

Average packaging materials used for finished kilogram per finished mobile
mobile phones per unit phone

FEMFHRIKQOTFHREMEREE TR/ FREKR
Note:

12. In 2022, the Group calculated the packaging material intensity by using
approximately 738,000 (2021: 891,000) mobile phone finished products.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The factories of the Group are primarily engaged in manufacturing
handsets, 10T terminals and EMS, the process of which may give rise
to noise pollution and chemical leakage. To reduce the impact of noise
pollution and to aim at complying with the noise emission industry
standards, the Group educates employees on the prevention of diseases
caused by noise pollution, supervises employees to equip themselves
with the necessary ear plugs, earmuffs, cotton balls and other protective
equipments at work. At the same time, the Group also regularly
monitors the noise in the workplace. In terms of chemical leakage
management, the Group has also formulated a series of management
measures, including checking whether there is any sign of chemical
leakage and ground hardening at any time. Once a chemical leakage
is found, the Group will rectify it in a timely manner in accordance with
its “Chemical or Oil Leakage Emergency Plan”. In addition, the Group
has also established relevant guidelines for the collection, storage and
transfer of hazardous waste, and regularly inspects the disposal of waste
chemicals. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any

issues related to chemical leakage.

In order to control the environmental impact of its business activities,
the Group has formulated a number of procedural documents, namely
the “SC22-QP5.04 Procedures for Identification, Evaluation and
Control of Environmental Factors” and “SC22-QP5.06 Procedures for
|dentification, Evaluation and Control of Laws and Regulations and Other
Requirements”, as well as to ensure the effective implementation of this

environmental protection system.
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The Group has also formulated the “SC22-QP8.10 Monitoring,
Measurement and Control Procedures for Environment and
Occupational Health and Safety” to closely monitor and assess the
environmental impact of its business activities, so as to facilitate timely
identification, monitoring and management of material environmental
issues. The Group also ensures that all products designed and
manufactured are in compliance with the requirements under the
internal document “SC22-042 Restricted Use of Hazardous Substances
Management Regulation”. To reduce impact on the environment and
natural resources, all of the production processes of the Group are in
compliance with the ROHS green standards, including the utilisation of
materials that are of ROHS green standards in the process of mounting
with the surface mount technology, the testing of printed circuit board

assembly and the assembling and packaging process.

The Group adopts a green management system in various business
aspects, including research and development, resources development,
standardisation of materials, supplier management, product
development and quality management, and establishes green indicators
to enhance the safety, environmental friendliness and energy saving
performance of its products, services and operations, as well as to

facilitate effective utilisation of resources.

The Group strictly follows and implements the requirements and
standards of various laws and regulations of the European Union such
as ROHS and REACH. The Group has also set up internal management
standards in compliance with the national limits on toxic and hazardous
substances in electronic information products in the PRC. In addition,
the Group has introduced comprehensive assessment procedures for
new materials that take into account the environmental requirements,
their price and quality. The Group estimates the feasibility of designing
using green materials when sample raw materials are delivered and
attaches extra care and attention to the specification of restricted
materials in design, research and development, so as to minimise the use

of restricted materials.
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CLIMATE CHANGE

The impact of global climate change on the global ecology and different
industries is becoming increasingly significant, and the Group is fully
aware that climate change will affect its business operations in different
aspects. Therefore, while practicing green and low-carbon operations,
the Group has incorporated climate-related topics into its internal control
procedures, and formulated “Climate Change Policies” to identify,
monitor and manage climate change-related risks, assess relevant
impacts, and formulate response strategies. Based on these policy

procedures, the Group has identified the following climate-related risks:

Physical risks

First of all, climate change has brought about more frequent and more
severe extreme weather events such as typhoons, floods, heavy rains,
etc., which may cause interruptions to transportation services, resulting
in delays in delivery of raw materials and the Group’s products. At the
same time, the rising global temperature may lead to an increase in
electricity consumption in the production process, which will in turn
drive up the cost of raw materials. The Group’s supply chain may be
adversely affected in view of the possible increase in raw material costs
and transportation disruptions due to climate change. In addition,
flooding caused by extreme weather or rising sea levels may also cause
physical damage to the operating sites owned by the Group, increasing
the Group’s maintenance, disaster response and insurance related
expenses. In serious cases, the normal operation of the Group may be
affected, and the personal safety of employees may also be threatened.
If the Group does not deal with such incidents properly, it may also have

a negative impact on the Group’s reputation.

In response to these physical risks, the Group has purchased insurance
for employees and its related assets to protect related interests and
reduce potential financial losses. In addition, the Group has backed
up the IT system and job-related files stored on the server and offsite
locations to minimise the potential impact of business interruption
events and their impact on the Group’s business. In addition, the Group
reviews and updates its business continuity plan on a regular basis to
ensure the normal operation and proper execution of core business

functions in case of any significant events.
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Transition risks

In addition to the physical risks mentioned above, the Group is also
exposed to transition risks arising from the transition to low-carbon
economy. The transition to low-carbon economy, which is subject to
constantly evolving and more stringent environmental regulations,
and the related innovations in energy-saving materials, processes and
methods of operation, may lead to an increase in the cost of goods and
services. Such transition risk may increase the cost of raw materials
used by and production of the Group. In addition, more stringent
environmental laws and regulations may increase the risk of claims and
litigation arising from its failure to comply with compliance requirements,
which may in turn affect the Group’s reputation. As a result of these
risks, the Group’s related capital investment and compliance costs may

also increase.

In response to these transition risks, the Group regularly monitors
current and emerging climate-related trends, policies and regulations,
and is prepared to alert senior management where necessary to avoid
reputational risk arising from increased costs, non-compliance fines
or delayed response. The Group has also set targets to reduce energy
consumption and GHG emissions in 2021 to facilitate the Group’s
sustainable development progress. In addition, the Group also actively
explores low-carbon and energy-saving materials and production
methods in order to seize any opportunities arose during the transition

to low-carbon economy and to maintain competitiveness in the market.
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards its employees as its greatest asset. Thus, it fully
respects and protects their legitimate rights by establishing relevant
rules and systems. The Group issues the “Staff Manual” to employees
when they join the Group to ensure they are fully aware of their rights

and duties.

The Group treats all employees equally and provides them with
opportunities to develop their talents. When recruiting new staff, the
Group comprehensively analyses and gives fair consideration to each
applicant’s knowledge, abilities, experience, integrity, health conditions
and suitability to the position. As for remuneration and promotion,
the Group takes into account the abilities, efficiency, development of
abilities and knowledge as well as future development potential of each
employee based on his/her performance evaluation, thereby offering
employees the appropriate remuneration and development. The Group is
of the view that diversity in gender, culture, background and experience
will bring vitality and creativity to the development of the Company. The
Group has implemented related policies on compensation and dismissal,
working hours and holidays and anti-discrimination in compliance with
the relevant laws of the PRC and Hong Kong as stated in the section of
“Labour Standards” in this Report, such as providing sufficient notice
upon dismissal, providing statutory compensation and holidays. The
Group is also against discrimination on the grounds of religion, race or

gender, details of which are set out in the “Staff Manual”.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of noncompliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, including but not limited to the “Employment Ordinance” in
Hong Kong and the “Chinese Labor Law” and “Chinese Labor Contract
Law” in PRC.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,088 employees (as RZEZZF+—A=+—H1t ' XEEH
at 31 December 2021: 1,651 employees). The number and proportion BlLOBZLETI(R—E-_—F+=-_A=+—H

of employees by gender, employment type, age group and geographical 1F : 1,6514) @ &R - EEEA - FHc4a R
region are as follows: M@ EIDHE T ASFEL BT -
2022 2021
B fF s —F
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Gender employees (%) employees (%)
4 Bl BIAE B2tk (%) BT A B2t (%)
Male B 670 61.6 979 59.3
Female g 418 38.4 672 40.7
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Employment type employees (%) employees (%)
EEER BIAE B2t (%) BT A B2 (%)
Full-time 28 716 65.8 1,434 86.9
Temporary/part-time ERRSFehk 372 34.2 217 13.1
2022 2021
s F B
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Age Group employees (%) employees (%)
FHeE B BTIAE B2t (%) BT A B2 (%)
Under 30 years old 30B%A T 394 36.2 908 55.0
30 - 50 years old 30-507% 649 59.7 705 427
Over 50 years old HBiB505% 45 4.1 38 2.3
2022 2021
—E-—F B —F
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Region employees (%) employees (%)
& BTAH B 7tk (%) BT AH B2 (%)
Mainland China R B K 1,085 99.7 1,648 99.8
Hong Kong, PRC FEIEE 3 0.3 3 0.2
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s employee turnover rate!3 RIREBE - AEEMRAERBLAE193.3%
was approximately 193.3% (2021: approximately 37.1%), the main (ZZB=—F : 437.1%) » TBRAREFE
reason is that against the background of the US-China tensions, the RE - BHEERRR » LEKFTEEE E’Jwa
global economic recession and the impact of the pandemic, the Group T AEER=E __E%@ [EFIE -
underwent organisational restructuring by downsizing and layoff, starting MRmRBEBIEAR BT TAHABEED .ﬂ%é o
from the fourth quarter of 2022. The employee turnover ratel® by SIRMR - FER ,ZHEU&P&E%J SHY B TRk R
gender, age group and geographical region is as follows: BIAR -
2022 2021
—EBF -5
Number of Number of
employee Turnover employee Turnover
Gender turnover rate (%) turnover rate (%)
4 Bl MEABTAE MK E(%) MEABTAZ MK E(%)
Male B 1,350 201.5 367 37.5
Female 7t 753 180.1 244 36.3
2022 2021
B fF —E-—F
Number of Number of
employee Turnover employee Turnover
Age Group turnover rate (%) turnover rate (%)
Fiea R RERETAE MK E(%) REETAE k(%)
Under 30 years old 305RA T 1,100 279.2 300 33.0
30 - 50 years old 30-505% 965 148.7 310 44.0
Over 50 years old HRIE5075% 38 84.4 1 2.6
2022 2021
—EBF g5
Number of Number of
employee Turnover employee Turnover
Region turnover rate (%) turnover rate (%)
&= P =NPN MK E(%) REETAE K (%)
Mainland China Fh B R 2,103 193.8 611 37.1
Hong Kong, PRC RREEE - - - -
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Note:

13. All turnover rates of the Group are calculated by dividing the total number of
employees in the category who left the Group in the financial year by the total
number of employees in the category as of the end of the financial year and
multiplying by 100.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

In product design and manufacturing, the Group attaches great
significance to the aspects of product quality and safety, environmental
protection, energy conservation, comprehensive utilisation of resources
and public health. It adopts a green management system to ensure a
safe workplace for staff and protects them from occupational hazards.
The Group has also developed robust monitoring and assessment
procedures in relation to environmental protection and occupational
safety and health. According to relevant procedures, the Human
Resources and Administration Department is responsible for the
supervision and inspection of the prevention of fire and danger,
hazardous substances and safe production, as well as the regular
assessment of compliance with laws and regulations, cooperating with
the supervision, review and assessment of the government and relevant
departments, as well as the inspection of labor discipline, position and
staffing, and the awareness and training of employees and related
parties. The Manufacturing Department is responsible for the safety
management of production sites, daily supervision and inspection of
environmental and occupational health and safety conditions and safety
of production equipment. The person in charge of each department also
regularly conducts self-inspection and supervises the implementation
and effectiveness of the environmental and occupational health and

safety activities of the relevant department.

The Group acts in a socially responsible manner and takes responsibility
for its staff’s health and safety. It maintains strict compliance with laws
and regulations while adopting a “green” management approach. It
also diligently implements the 1ISO9001:2008 quality management
standards, 1SO14001:2004 environmental management standards,
IS045001:2008 occupational health and safety management standards
and ROHS directive.
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In the spring of 2022, confronting the onslaught of new Coronavirus
variants, there were many outbreaks in the PRC, with Shanghai
being the center of the pandemic, the entire city was subject to silent
management. For more than two months, the city’s residents did not
leave their homes, all traffic and logistics were halted, and businesses
were completely shut down. In the face of Shanghai’s strict regional
control policy, the Group strictly followed the pandemic prevention
policy, overcame the difficulties in logistics and transportation to deliver
the pandemic prevention supplies to each employee with emergency
needs in a safe and orderly manner. At the same time, the Group made
use of internet tools and various information means to implement the
“work from home + closed-circuit production” working mode and made
efforts to save itself and minimise the impact of the closure control

management on the Group and its employees.

During the reporting period, the Group recorded 83 days (2021: Nil) lost
due to work injury in two cases, both of the two employees involved were
injured as a result of accident. The Group provided assistance to them
by arranging sufficient leave for work-related injuries in accordance
with the relevant policies and both of them were paid a one-off disability
employment benefit in accordance with the relevant national laws. In
addition, there were no work-related fatalities recorded in the past three

years including the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases” and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact

on the Group.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group advocates the corporate culture of “attracting talents with
success and pursuing success with talents”, which promotes staff
enhancement driven by business growth while supporting corporate
development with staff enrichment. The Group has a comprehensive
training system in place that establishes a network-based career
path for its employees. It also creates ample learning opportunities
and a knowledge sharing environment for its staff through a series
of measures, including position and ability management, skills
enhancement programme, various training opportunities, online learning
programme, internal promotion system, key employees development
programme, succession plans for key positions and leadership
development programme. Such comprehensive training system allows
employees to improve their abilities comprehensively and acquire more
opportunities of personal development in the process of promoting the

development of the Group.

The Human Resources Department keeps a personnel file for each
employee since the day of interview. Meanwhile, the Group’s internal
human resources consultants carry out career planning through
communication with staff. Depending on the development needs of
different departments and businesses, career plans of the employees
are subject to changes from time to time. In terms of staff education and
training, on one hand, the Group offers generic courses and trainings
based on the operational needs and job requirements; on the other
hand, it customises employees’ career planning by offering focused

courses and trainings.
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The Group provides company-level and departmental-level courses and
training to its employees. In addition, it arranges external courses and
training largely based on the stages of development of the employees.
Junior staff and technical management personnel are offered with
various trainings on technology and skills which primarily address the
operational needs and project requirements of the Company. In most
cases, employees are able to tackle actual problems at work after they
have completed the training. Hence such training enable employees to
achieve growth and enhance skills as well as resolving work problems.
For managerial positions, company-level training are offered in general,
where staff members are equipped with management skills required for

their positions through training that address specific issues at work.

Apart from internal training, the Group also invites external trainers to
conduct training and arranges out-of-office trainings, as well as going
out and utilising external faculty to meet the training needs of the Group.
The multidimensional, multi-perspective and multi-tiered training system
allows staff members to attain their goals in relation to operational

needs, career development and skills enhancement.

During the Reporting Period, the number of the Group’s employees
trained was 876 (2021: 1,651), representing 81%!* (2021: 100%) of
the Group’s employees, the average training hours of each employee
was approximately 0.3 hours!® (2021: approximately 6 hours), the
decrease in the number of training hours was mainly due to the fact
that as the Group was influenced by the pandemic, most of the training
courses could not be carried out normally. The percentage of trained
employees by gender and category of employee'® and the average

number of training hours per employee!’ are as follows:
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Percentage of Employees Trained (%) 16
ZINEI T (%)

Gender 45l
Male S
Female g
Category of Employee EEER
Management HIEE
Managers KIBANE
General employees —MET
Average training hours per employee (hours)!”

BT AGZHIRE ()Y

Gender 45l
Male S
Female g
Category of Employee EEER
Management HIEE
Managers KIBANE
General employees —MET

Notes:

14.

15.

16.

17.

The Group’s overall percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the total number of trainees during the financial year by the total number of staff

at the end of the financial year and multiplying by 100.

The total training hours per employee of the Group is calculated by dividing the
total training hours in the financial year by the total number of trainees in the

financial year.

The Group’s employee training percentage by category is calculated by dividing
the total number of trained employees of that category during the financial year
by the total number of employees of that category at the end of the financial

year and multiplying by 100.

The Group’s average training hours per employee by category is calculated
by dividing the total training hours of employees of that category during the
financial year by the total number of employees of that category during the

financial year.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to taking up social responsibilities. It complies
with and incorporates relevant laws and regulations into the rules and
codes of the Group. Apart from the “Staff Manual”, the procedures of
the Group also stipulate specific requirements on prevention of child

and forced labour.

To prevent child labour, the Group has clearly specified that all
employees must be 18 years old or above in its recruitment and
employment management system. During the recruitment process,
the Group requires candidates to provide true and accurate personal
information, which shall be handed over to personnel responsible for
recruitment for a rigorous examination, including academic credentials,
identity cards, etc. The Group has set up an established recruitment
process that requires checking of candidates’ backgrounds and a formal
reporting procedure to deal with any exceptions, it would also conduct
regular reviews and checks to prevent any child labour in its operations.
If a child labourer is found to have been wrongfully employed, the Group
will immediately stop the child labourer’s work and follow up on the

situation.

In order to protect employees’ entitlement on rest hours and holidays,
it has expressly stipulated relevant provisions relating to working hours,
rest hours and holidays, labour protection and working conditions in
the employment contracts and attendance system. The Group currently
implements a five-day work scheme with 8 working hours per day,
and prohibits forced labour and forced overtime work. When any
violation is discovered, the Group will promptly investigate and report
the investigation to the management for appropriate punishment or
dismissal of the employees concerned. If necessary, the Group will

further improve the labour mechanism for violations.
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The Group follows the relevant employment regulations, policies and
guidelines of the jurisdictions in which it operates, including but not
limited to the “Employment Ordinance”, “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong
Kong and the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the
PRC” and “Law on the Protection of Persons with Disabilities of the
PRC” in the PRC, to protect the human rights of the employees and

prevent child and forced labour.

In 2022, the Group was not aware of any incidents of noncompliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group requires upstream suppliers to follow its policies on
environmental protection and sustainable development. To uphold
the Group’s reputation, suppliers are requested to give undertakings
regarding environmental protection requirements as well as health,

safety and social responsibility standards.

The Group has a supplier assessment team, comprising staff from the
Purchasing Management Department, the Resources Department,
the Research and Development Department and the Supplier Quality
Management Department. This assessment team strictly enforces
supplier-related policies and systems such as the “Supplier Evaluation
and Control Procedure”, “Procurement Control Procedure” and “New
Materials Introduction Procedure”, and requires suppliers to comply
with relevant policies to ensure the implementation of measures such as
environmental protection, health and safety. Pursuant to the procedures,
the Group will inspect and evaluate each of the suppliers to monitor
and ensure their compliance with the relevant standards, laws and
regulations. In case where suppliers are in breach of such regulations
or standards, they will be removed from the suppliers list of the Group

unless they rectify the breaches within a prescribed time limit.
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The Group attaches great significance to the management of potential
environmental and social risks in the supply chain. In the procurement
process, the Group evaluates the environmental and social performance
of suppliers to ensure that suppliers understand the social, ethical
and environmental issues related to their business, and requires major
suppliers to have a management system to deal with relevant issues
and risks. In addition, the Group is committed to supporting the local
economy and giving priority to local suppliers to reduce carbon footprint
during transportation. The Group also has strict requirements for
selecting and evaluating qualified green suppliers, and has established
a management system for suppliers’ environment and hazardous
substances matters, implemented a special inspection and evaluation
process, required suppliers to provide green compliance test reports
and hazardous substance data summary forms, and sign the “Green
Supplier Commitment Letter” to ensure that the materials supplied must
meet the requirements of restricted substances. The Group will continue
to review regularly the performance of its suppliers along the supply
chain and the environmental and social standards in order to minimise

the potential environmental and social risks in the supply chain.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 538 major
suppliers (2021: 664 suppliers). All major suppliers have passed the
review of the above practices during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any major suppliers
having any significant negative impact on business ethics, environmental

protection, human rights and labour practices.
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Number of suppliers of the Group by geographical location is as follows:

Location of suppliers

HERitE

Mainland China AR RE
Hong Kong, PRC FREE
Taiwan, PRC FE A&
Other countries HEmBExR

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has always been customer-oriented, actively developing
products in multiple fields, focusing on industry applications, and
creating 5G + Al scenario solutions, including but not limited to express
logistics, financial payment, aviation and heavy industry inspection,
smart home, police affairs, elderly care management, education,
medical health, among other fields. In addition, the Group independently
developed a big data platform to provide customers in various industries

|n

with integrated “cloud + terminal” system solutions.
The Group and its products received the following honours during the

Reporting Period:

° Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited, a subsidiary of the Group,
was awarded the honor of “Five-year Business Partner” by its

customer.
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The Group strives to ensure product safety. The Group’s main
businesses, namely handsets and |OT terminals business, EMS
business, 10T system and operation business, as well as the intelligent
manufacturing business, place product safety as their first priority. In
the course of production, the Group always adheres to stringent product
quality and control standards, so as to maintain product quality and
safety as well as compliance with the ISO9001 quality management
standards. During the Reporting Period, none of the products produced
by the Group and sold was recalled for safety and health reasons.

The Group values customers’ feedback and complaints, which serve
as an important reference to improve and enhance product quality and
corporate competitiveness. The Group has a set of rules and procedures
designed for managing customers and product complaints, which are
handled by a dedicated department. Customer feedback received
during the course of product design, research and development is usually
addressed in a timely manner. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not receive any material complaints regarding product quality and

services.

In relation to observing and protecting intellectual property rights,
the Group has assigned dedicated personnel to take charge of the
management of intellectual property, maintenance of a list of intellectual
property, filing and classification of intellectual property based on its
actual value-creating potential, materiality to the Group’s development
and maintenance costs. The Group has its own intellectual property
data platform, enabling it to closely monitor the latest international
and domestic developments so as to avoid waste of resources due
to repeated research efforts and prevent infringement of intellectual
property rights. The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding
the Group’s interests by the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual
property rights. With reference to cost and expected return analysis,
the Group applies for registration of intellectual property rights that
may have material impact on the Group, such as trademarks, patents,
copyrights and domains, thereby protecting the Company’s interests
as far as possible. When cooperating with other entities or individuals,
provisions regarding the ownership, scope of authorisation, term,
allocation of subsequent research outcomes of the intellectual property
involved are set out in detail in the relevant legal documents to be
entered into between the Group and other entities or individuals. In
practice, the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual property rights
effectively protects the interests of the Group.
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The Group has established regulations on product quality assurance
and recall procedures. The Group has established various control
procedures for design, development and production processes, such as
“Environmental and Occupational Health Monitoring and Measurement
Control Procedures” and control procedures for logistics, storage,
packaging, protection and delivery, which sets out the requirements
for raw materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials, semifinished
products and various inspection items of finished products,
inspection methods and contents. Its Inspection Department, New
Product Introduction Department and Manufacturing Department
also follow rigorous quality assurance procedures to facilitate timely
identification of quality issues and hidden risks by such departments.
These departments will also address those issues promptly, if any, to
ensure the product pass rate is in compliance with the contractual
requirements. In recent years, the Group has also actively carried out
digital transformation and recorded all the data of each procedure in
the production process in the database to achieve process traceability.
Through big data analysis and mining, the direction of improving
product quality is exported. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations

relating to product and service quality.

The Group’s policies in connection with advertising and labelling of the
Group’s products and services are in compliance with all the laws and
regulations, such as “Advertising Law in the PRC” and “Law of the PRC
on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”, to ensure that they are
not misleading to the Group’s customers. The Group provides users with
clear instructions manual and labels to facilitate their understanding
of its products. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any matters of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters concerning the Group’s

products and services.
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The Group puts great emphasis on information security and
confidentiality, especially those related to clients and consumers. The
“Staff Manual” sets out strict and clear regulations on confidentiality,
intellectual property, business rules, professional ethics of employees,
conflict of interests and relevant awards and penalties. In addition, the
Group has also established the “Information Security and Confidentiality
Regulation”, which includes details of related descriptions and
requirements of information security and confidentiality so as to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations such as “Regulations
of the PRC on the Prohibition of Infringements upon Trade Secrets” and
“Regulations of the PRC for Safety Protection of Computer Information
Systems”. All employees have entered into information security and
confidentiality agreements with the Group, under which they are
obliged to keep the information of clients and customers private and
confidential. Every year, the Group organises a number of trainings on
confidentiality, ensuring that every staff member is involved and trained.
The Information Department of the Group attaches great importance to
the security of the information system. Thus, dedicated personnel are
assigned for the system’s maintenance to ensure a safe and effective
operation of the system.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has established relevant systems such as “Business and
Ethics Requirements Control Procedure”, “Anticorruption Operation
Control Procedure”, while the Group’s “Staff Manual” also sets out its
anti-corruption rules and guidelines. The Legal Affairs Department of the
Group supervises the implementation of procedures with reference to
relevant standards and legal requirements, such as “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery” while the Human Resources and
Administration Department of the Group handles complaints of
behaviours that are in breach of the Group’s rules and regulations on
anti-corruption, with the aim of stopping unethical behaviour arising
from the Company’s operation. Each year, the Group provides its
Directors and employees with anti-corruption training or learning
materials. During the Reporting Period, 5 Directors and 57 employees of
the Group received online training courses in relation to anti-corruption,
of which the total number of training hours for Directors amounted to
approximately 10 hours and the total number of training hours for staff
amounted to approximately 114 hours. Through the relevant training,
the Directors and employees at different levels have more clearly
defined their corresponding roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption
and business ethics, as well as the precautions for compliant operation.
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The Group has in place detailed whistle-blowing procedures. Employees
can report any fraudulent activities for seeking illegitimate benefits
by means of telephone, email, letter, etc. The Group is responsible
for managing the relevant reports, conducting internal assessments,
carrying out investigations and preparing written records, and reporting
the investigation results to the management or the Board in a timely
manner for proper handling. The “Whistle-blowing Policy” also ensures
the protection of whistle-blowers, including confidentiality of identity and

personal information, against reprisal for reporting in good faith.

The Group also has set out detailed regulations and clear requirements
on anti-corruption, prevention and investigation of bribery, extortion
and money laundering, in the “Staff Manual”. It also implements the

following measures to fight against corruption:

1. enhance promotional efforts to create a suitable environment for

efficiency monitoring.

2. improve investigation and adopt active monitoring in replacement
of passive monitoring. The Group focuses on monitoring key
areas in production and operation, such as major projects,
material procurement, waste disposal and writing off of bad and
doubtful debts, thereby further enhancing efficiency monitoring
on specific issues. The Group also actively participates in major
management activities so as to gather information on operational

and management decision-making and implementation.

3. establish rules and procedures for comprehensive governance,
with a view of treating both the symptoms and the root cause

instead of just treating the symptoms.

4. attach importance on rectification, directly identify and close the

loopholes in management through investigation and prevention.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or

other employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to the “Criminal Law
of the PRC”, the “Company Law of the PRC”, the “Bidding Law of the
PRC”, the “Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC” and the “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong” that would have a significant

impact on the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has a long-standing commitment to serving the community
and creating positive value, and has established a set of “Community
Investment Policy” to encourage the Group’s employees to actively
participate in social and community activities, understand the needs
of the society where they are located, and create effective and lasting
benefits for the community by considering community investment.
Ms. Yeung Man Ying, the Chairman of the Board of the Group, was a
recipient of the China Charity Award which was awarded by the Ministry
of Civil Affairs of the PRC in recognition of her outstanding achievement

to support the community.

Ms. Yeung Man Ying, the Director of the Group and the founder of
the Shanghai Sunrise Charity Foundation, founded the Shanghai
Sunrise Charity Foundation in 2021, along with other employees
who are passionate about charity. During the Reporting Period, the
Shanghai Sunrise Charity Foundation donated a total of approximately
RMB1,171,000 and the relevant donations were used to support the

following projects:

o Purchasing rice, vegetables and meat among other living supplies
during the pandemic, providing assistance to elderly people and
groups in difficulty who are short of living supplies, while donating
urgently needed pandemic prevention supplies to the front line of

the fight against the pandemic;

o Cooperating with the Luxin Ecological Tea Co., Ltd. to promote
the development of tea industry in Lichun County by purchasing
local tea products, creating conditions for tea farmers to increase

their incomes;
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Providing funding support for project activities at the Vibrant
Parent-Child Garden project sites in 11 key counties/areas for
national rural revitalisation support, providing early parent-child
education services for children aged 0-6 and their families,
helping to revitalise villages with education and filling the gap in

early education for migrant and left-behind children;

Rewarding outstanding students from Lichun County High
School and outstanding graduates who have been admitted to
undergraduate programmes to inspire more people to study hard

and pursue ambitious aspirations; and

Establishing a long-term talent cultivation cooperation mechanism
with the Health Care Commission of Gansu Province and Ruijin
Hospital of Shanghai Jiaotong University Medical School to train
outstanding primary care doctors and high-quality backbone
specialists for the healthcare industry in impoverished areas
of Gansu Province, fully enhancing the comprehensive service
capacity of hospitals across Gansu and improve the quality of life

and medical standards of the local population.
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In addition, a total of 13 employees of the Group provided approximately

26 hours of voluntary service for park cleaning in Honggiao Linkong
Park, Changning District, Shanghai in 2022.
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THE CONTENT INDEX OF “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
GUIDE"” OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG

KONG LIMITED

#ol&

5 HEgRE

EBBMERZMAERAANCER
AREESD AR

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Section/Statement

BREIN RS E

BB

Governance Structure

Environmental, Social and

Governance Structure

BRRE

RS HgREARE

Reporting Principles

Reporting Principles

FER IR A WwERA
Reporting Scope Reporting Scope
I 2 65 & HEHE
“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[REFRIREIHRI Ha EH/EH
Aspect Al: Emissions
BEAL : HiMY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

nonhazardous waste.
—RRHER BRAERLAERBEN - M/KETaEEs - BERESE | B

FEEYNEEZEH

(@ BE: R

(b) ETFHEITABERZENRBERELAEN

BER: -
KPI'Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BRERUEFALL PER e R S AR R B AR R o BEn)
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ REFRARRE R iR EH/EH

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse | Emissions
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RS IETREAL2 HE(BELD RLRMEE (FE2) RERELNE CAMETE) | BEW
R Em) =mE (A SESEN - §IEREAE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RS IEIRAL3 FELEEEEYRE UNEHE) K (ER) BE (AT | Y
E28A - BERBH)

KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FRERUIEFALA FIESREZEEYRE UNEAHE) K (ER) BE (AT | Y
EREBA - SERIEHE) -

KPI Al1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to Emissions
achieve them.

R4 IETRALD HIPAET IV BEE B IR R R EDEE B IRFEREE P8 « | BEW

KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Emissions
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

RAREERUEIZALG i RIE A EREEEEMN L - REMFTEIZERER | HE

BN AEREL B IRATIREH) 28 o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EmEA2 : ERERA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Use of Resources
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R HERERRS

electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ REFRERRE R Ha EH/EH
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of Resources

RS AUIEIRAZ.1

REAESMEERSEEER(WNE - meloh) eEE
UATETEEE) REE AGESEN - BIRRME

) o
Ean

BIRE A

that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Use of Resources
production volume, per facility).

RS B IRA2.2 BIKEREE (WABESEAN - BIEREAE) ° B R{E

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.

FRERUEIRA2.3 HHPTRT M BVREIR A s B 1R RaE R E L B EATERIE) | EREEA

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Use of Resources

FASRIENIRIZEA2.4

T SREGE A7KIR LRI AR - AR PIR] 269 A7k 3as

BREM

B R AEDEE BRI L5 o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of Resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
FAREERUEIRA2.5 R mATABREME NS E CAETE) R (WER) BEEE | BREA
ffhE °

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : RIERRARER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

The Environment and
Natural Resources

—RIE

REBEITASRBERAARERERERFENEER -

RERRANER
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ <7 RhFRRE |15k 3L Hat /B
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the The Environment and

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

Natural Resources

RSB RIERAS.L

ML RS IRITNAARERNEAFENCRREES
AR ENITE -

RIENRAER

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHA4 : RIRZL

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

Climate Change

—RHRER HRAREESELRAESHETAEETENEARIGER | RIEE L
EEMIBCR °
KPI'A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Climate Change

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
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Aspect B1: Employment

[EEB1 : EE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Employment

—RIEE

R MERE RELEA - TIERE - BREY - F5iK
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(b) ETHEITABEAVENBREERBRD
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KPIB1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.

Employment
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[TETH R MEX i pu EHEHA

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region.

RARENIEIEBL.2 RILR - FiRERIREEDEEEMAKLLE - EE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2 : RERZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

the past three years including the reporting year.

— MR FHERELZE2TERERREREEREEBELEEL EREET e
(@ BE: R
(b) EBTFHEITABERZENEBERELAEN
BER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | Health and Safety

BB IEIEB2.1
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KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety

RARENIEIRB2.2 ERIEEATIEAS - [ drres

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB IE1EB2.3 R

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : #EKE

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

Development and

AE e

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. | Training
— MR ERRAE S BT TIEBE A A KR MBUR - s sl | 2R RIE
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ REFRARRE R iR EH/EH

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Training
management).

BB ERUEIRB3.1 R REESRNERERE - FREERE) EHHZH | BRERKE

BEADL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. Training
RIBAERUEIRB3.2 RUEBIRESRMNES  SRESTKZINTFHRE - | EERE
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : 5 T%H|
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
— MR BREMILEE T eoaH4 T &5 TR
(@ BE: &k
(b)) ETFHBEITABERZENRERE KA
BYER o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards

avoid child and forced labour.
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KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | Labour Standards
discovered.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEB5 : ftREgEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain
supply chain. Management
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ REFRERRE R Ha EH/EH

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain

Management

RS2 4R IETEBG.1 i@ E D HEREE - HEHEE IR

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB RUEIEBS.2 HERERRERNED - MEARITHEREOIMNHEERS | fERERE
B - ARMEBESITRERGE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.

RSB RUEIEBS.3 e BRI RS EIR A IRE Rt G R aEHl - A | HEEER
RABERITREER A -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Management
and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

Product Responsibility
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ REFRARRE R iR EH/EH
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls | Product Responsibility

for safety and health reasons.

BB IE1RB6.1

EERCEXERAETRL2REFRIZEAMARKNE D
Lt o

Ema

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Product Responsibility
and how they are dealt with.

RSB RUEIEB6.2 BN E o RSB B AR EE 770% - EmEE

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Product Responsibility
intellectual property rights.

RASEAE E1EB6.3 el B TE R ARIE AR E A OB - EmAE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Responsibility
procedures.

RS A e 1EB6.4 LS SR E B2 N E fm BIEFF o EmEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Responsibility
and how they are implemented and monitored.

R ERUEIEB6.5 EmEE
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EmEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption
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brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ REFRERRE R Ha EH/EH
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | Anti-corruption

R EMIEIEBT 1

RERAARHEITAREBBIRNN D EENESRARN
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k&R

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
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KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption
and staff.

RRERUEREBT.3 fHmESEREIRHENRESE REA

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

Community Investment

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

interests.
—RAHER BN ESERBERESEMTMRTEEMNBREER LY | HEKRE
BE R RFEAIBER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community Investment

BRERIE1RB8.1
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KPI B8.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

Community Investment
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TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
EAMEKRERRAH

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENHRE

)

BEANKREBERATKRR
(REFZEZMA LI BRI F])

=R

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 129
to 301 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

AizEE CAT R [3HF1) DEAIBRNE 129 =
301 EMRAPHREEER AR CATEME [EAFE)
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M EBRERBER "S- —F+=—A=+—ANK4
MEARKREBEZ A ILFENGEEERFEA1E
SN EMEEEEE  GERREBRNGFARDR
BXR  UREEMBHREAME  BRETESH R

Eo

BMRE  ZEREVBRERERE (BEBRTERS
EAD(BEBEGERELNNEEMF 5T &
EERN T - —F+ - A=+ HARNEEHERIE
HEZALFENGAMBRARGEESRE © I
EERER (RalEH) MEEEREZ AEE -

ERMER

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HMERE (BEFRF LD (BFRF L) E1T
it o WMEZSEATAENEEEERRS [
AN B SR & IS MR AR B S P IE#E—
FRA - RIBEERSETEERRBEZ B RMN (F
Xgrtenamsl) () BfIBIR &E8E-
WEEITTRIF R EMERE E - FIUEE - FiFIPT
ERNETREERE LEE AR MNETERE
B

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F

121



122

Independent Auditor’s Report

B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREEITEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as

a whole and the significant estimates
associated with the determination of the
fair value of investment properties.

All investment properties of the Group
are measured at fair value based on the
valuations performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer”) engaged by the Company and
the chief financial officer of the Group
works closely with the Valuer to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs. The valuer
adopted income capitalisation approach
to arrive at the valuation of investment
properties as at 31 December 2022.
Details of the valuation techniques

and key inputs, namely capitalisation
rates and market rentals used in the
valuations are disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements. The
Group's investment properties amounted
to HK$664,865,000 as at 31 December
2022. Loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties of HK$37,422,000
was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2022.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of investment properties included the
following:

. Understanding management's
process over the valuation of
investment properties, including the
involvement of the Valuer engaged
by the Company;

. Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer engaged by the Company;

J Understanding the valuation
techniques and key inputs applied
on selected investment properties
by holding discussion with the
management and the Valuer, with
the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists;

o Checking, on a sample basis, the
tenancy information included in the
valuation models with underlying
lease contracts; and
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Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties
(contiuned)

Impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment, right-of-

use assets and intangible assets in
handsets and IOT terminal business

We identified the impairment
assessment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives
allocated to the single cash-generating
unit (“CGU") of handsets and 10T
terminal business as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the
balances to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the
significant degree of judgement made
by the management in determining
the recoverable amounts of these
assets in handsets and 10T terminal
business.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

J Assessing, with the involvement of
our internal valuation specialists,
valuation techniques and the
reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation on selected
investment properties including
on capitalisation rates, and market
rentals of similar properties.

Our procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets in handsets and 10T
terminal business included:

o Understanding management's
process over the impairment
assessment, including the
involvement of the Valuer
engaged by the Company;
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Key audit matter

Impairment assessments of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-

use assets and intangible assets
(contiuned)

As disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements,

the management concluded that
there was an indication of impairment
in the handsets and 10T terminal
business and performed impairment
assessment by estimating the
recoverable amounts based on value-
in-use calculation. The key inputs and
assumptions adopted by the Valuer
engaged by the Company engaged by
the Company and the chief financial
officer of the Group works closely
with the Valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs including
budgeted sales, gross profit margin,
annual and terminal growth rates

and discount rate. Based on the
result of management's assessment,
impairment loss of HK$53,839,000,
HK$6,056,000 and HK$17,918,000
were recognised against the carrying
amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful
lives, respectively during the year
ended 31 December 2022. After the
impairment assessment, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of the Group were
HK$82,218,000, HK$67,196,000 and
HK$565,000, respectively.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer engaged by the Company;

o Understanding the valuation
techniques, key inputs and
assumptions applied in the
value-in-use calculation by
holding discussion with the
management and the Valuer, with
the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists;

o Assessing, with the involvement
of our internal specialists, the
valuation techniques and the
discount rate applied; and

o Assessing the reasonableness
of the budgeted sales, gross
profit margin and annual and
terminal growth rates against
historical and current financial
performance of the Group, and
with reference to relevant market
information.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R RS

Ht &

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

BERARESFHHMENAR - HtEMSETIEHN
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ESMAEERGS M HRRAEE
HEE

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

%Eﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%%‘l‘ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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B B R RS

e FHME EBEAREEMRASSAEREMRELER
R SRR AR M S I -

s HEERARKEKLLSERNRERELS
o RIBFIERNETRE  BEREFILHE
ZRABERBENEATEEN - TS
HY BERENBELLRENELEREE-
IRBEMARRFEEATEEN - MAEVER
ZHENRE P IRFBEAETEEEVHRRTD
MAEREREE - REBMNIETR - AIFMIE
ERFOGFBREER - HANEREENZE
MR B EATES R BATERE - A - KRE
BERBERATEEH BEEETRFELE

o FESSMBEHMROERIHIN  ABNA
R BEEE  URGEAMBHREREETER
BRZ HANEIR -

o 3 EREAEREIERLHNIEERMER
R BENETER - AERE M HRRE
XER -BMAEE BEXEFAFANTR - BEE
METT - RIFIAEABRAERNERE -

BrEARIRIN HMEDRIRERR TN EEE -
BEZH  ERFAERE - RRRFIEFTHEA
HH P BB i ) (A ARG ©

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F

127



128

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R RS

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Pik Fung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross (loss) profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Impairment losses under expected credit
loss model, net of reversal

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to the owners of
the Company
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE-_ -+ -_A=+—HItEE
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wit FHx FAT

BEREER
ON 5 638,017 724,709
SHE K& IRISAA (650,107) (703,207)
E (18)F (12,090) 21,502
Hbug A 7 30,474 47,597
H b res & B 18 7 (28,619) (5,929)
T EEEEEA T Z

REESE - FIBREE D 8 (35,292) 31,823
MRk HEER (245,282) (178,692)
SHE Mo HR A (34,724) (38,504)
TR (173,806) (132,081)
PaK[aY T ANCI 23 4,940 15,024
REE RN 9 (4,916) (3,219)
FRESRTE 1 (499,315) (242,479)
1| 11 (8,507) 6,788
FEREEBNAFEERE 14 (507,822) (235,691)
BRIEEEEK
EAR | F A Y

NEEEE 12 - (9,831)
AEFE 18 (507,822) (245,522)
RARBEE AEGER

REFELEETR (509,453) (236,555)

REBRIHCEER - (9,245)

(509,453) (245,800)

FEF A e RS FE AR )

REFEEEET 1,631 864

REBRIECEES - (586)

1,631 278
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

Total (loss) profit for the year attributable to: T3l &IBE(GFE 4 (E18)

s
Owners of the Company ZIN/NG |8
Non-controlling interests IR
Loss per share (HK cents) SREE GBL)
From continuing and discontinued operations 2R BB L% N B AR I E L %75
Basic B
Diluted e
From continuing operations REAFECEERS
Basic B
Diluted e
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HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(509,453) (245,800)
1,631 278
(507,822) (245,522)
(23.24) (10.60)
(23.24) (10.60)
(23.24) (10.21)
(23.24) (10.21)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBEsRHMEE SR

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)
Items that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

during the year:

Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment
to investment properties at fair value

Fair value gain on investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax relating to items that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation currency

Other comprehensive (expense) income
Total comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive (expense) income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2022 2021
B T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(507,822) (245,522)
96,685 30,967
630 1,932
(21,786) (7,940)
(122,784) 18,300
(47,255) 43,259
(555,077) (202,263)
(556,269) (203,935)
1,192 1,672
(555,077) (202,263)
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e BRI R

At 31 December 2022
RZBZ_F+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Interests in associates
Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Consideration receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Trade and notes receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Consideration receivables

Amounts due from associates

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Assets held for disposal

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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19
20
22
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24
27

25
26
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2022 2021
—ECCF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAET
664,865 793,755
82,218 205,990
67,196 44 802
565 60,561

- 68,824
60,056 59,613
61,376 63,112
17,227 34,443
953,503 1,331,100
185,779 244,761
8,093 9,613
77,803 98,244
67,418 159,980
25,147 23,214
5,772 20,485
1,602 4,152
165,846 16,145
168,122 353,177
191,814 322,309
897,396 1,252,080
202,955 -
1,100,351 1,252,080




Current liabilities
Trade and notes payables
Deposits from tenants
Deferred income
Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities
Tax payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Deposits from tenants
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income

The consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to 301 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
FHE

DIRECTOR

EF

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2022
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2022 2021
—E-CF —E—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAET
157,160 218,852
2,242 5,468
1,136 1,307
48,919 48,016
105,893 126,412
240,240 41,851
6,884 6,019
33,981 37,311
596,455 485,236
503,896 766,844
1,457,399 2,097,944
219,852 227,977
1,074,361 1,653,275
1,294,213 1,881,252
14,123 12,931
1,308,336 1,894,183
6,666 7,620
6,234 8,554
96,555 143,158
39,608 44 429
149,063 203,761
1,457,399 2,097,944
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Attributable to owners of the Company

KTEEARE

Statutory Share hased ~ Employee  Properties Rssets  Capital Non-
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year,
the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net
profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where
the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
(the “Directors”) of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority,
to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the considerations
paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon the acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Bt -

(a)

(b)

REERSEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-_A=t+—HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain arising on early termination of
lease contracts
Write-off of trade receivables
Write-off of trade and other payables
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment loss)
on financial assets and
other items under expected credit loss model
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on financial assets at FVTOCI

Share of results of associates
Allowance for inventories
Changes in fair values of investment properties
Fair value change on financial assets at
FVTPL
Interest income
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in inventories
Decrease in properties held for sales
Increase in trade and notes receivables
Decrease in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Increase in amounts due from associates
Decrease in amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
(Decrease) increase in trade and notes payables
Decrease in deposit from tenants
Decrease (increase) in deferred income
Decrease in contract liabilities
Increase in other payables,
deposits received and accruals

Cash used in operations
Interest received
PRC tax (paid) refunded, net

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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2022 2021
—EC-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
(499,315) (252,310)
4,916 3,219
21,834 39,539
9,992 13,034
45,127 44 021
1,977 221
(229) =

- 4,884

(8,057) =

- (4,100)

35,292 (31,823)
53,839 -
6,056 -
17,918 19,000

- 384

(4,940) (15,024)
57,447 48,335
37,422 3,028
2,550 2,423
(14,316) (26,273)
(327) (332)
(232,814) (151,774)
(17,659) (91,670)
736 171
(625) (18,634)
77,928 80,765
(3,026) (4,124)

- 4,248
(36,809) 52,602
(3,192) (4,387)
(1,179) 1,077
(10,233) (5,626)
4,950 28,714
(221,923) (108,638)
14,316 26,273
(109) 987
(207,716) (81,378)




INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and
equipment
Purchases of land use right
Proceeds from disposal of
— financial assets at FVTPL
— equity instruments at FVTOCI

Purchases of
— financial assets at FVTPL
— equity instruments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
Development costs paid
Investment in an associate
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Placement of short-term bank deposits
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits
Receipt of consideration receivables
Reduction in registered capital in
a non-wholly owned subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Repurchase of shares
Purchase of shares under share
award scheme
Repayment of lease liabilities
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Interest paid for lease liabilities

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
(53,818) (47,653)
(46,318) =
- 294,738

3,884 -
- (287,493)
(6,972) (48,308)
6,324 727

- 1,212
(7,756) (55,741)
- (9,807)
(171,334) (15,942)
15,338 5,894
(168,122) (109,200)
349,537 39,000
14,137 31,639

- 3,937
(65,100) (196,997)
249,249 41,896
(39,761) (36,732)
(4,400) (2,071)
(31,135) (35,588)
- (13,4306)
(8,472) (11,816)
365 745
(516) (1,148)
165,330 (58,150)
(107,486) (336,525)
322,309 667,935
(23,009) (9,101)
191,814 322,309
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-_A=t+—HILFE

—REHR

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of
the shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are disclosed in note
43.

During the year, due to the mandatory restrictions imposed
in parts of the PRC (especially Shanghai) to combat the
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic since mid-March
2022, the Group’s operations were substantially affected and
the turnover of the Group dropped significantly compared
with Year 2021.

The management of the Group had reassessed its forecast
and concluded there was indication for impairment in
the handsets and Internet of things terminals business
(“handsets and IOT terminals business”). It conducted
impairment assessment of the single cash-generating unit
and an impairment loss was recognised for certain long-term
assets. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in
note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

8RB A (A
B kR |) o B3

8

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Amendment to IAS 37

Amendment to IFRSs

In addition, the Group applies the agenda decisions of the
Committee of the International Accounting Standards Board.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs and the Committee’s agenda
decisions in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

e R 8 5% B %5 3 o 2 R ([ I e Bt
B|ERER ) 2 1E87T (F)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRSs Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The annual improvements make
amendments to the following standards:

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“IFRS 9”)

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per
cent” test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or the lender on the other’s
behalf. In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged as at the date of initial application, 1
January 2022.

IFRS 16 “Leases” (“IFRS 16”)

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.

The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

A 8 5% B 05 3 o 2 R ([ I PER
B|ERER ) 2 187T (F)

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of the
Committee — Cost necessary to sell inventories (IAS 2
“Inventories”) (“IAS 2”)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda decision,
clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the
net realisable value of inventories. In particular, whether
such costs should be limited to those that are incremental
to the sale. The Committee concluded that the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale should not be limited to
those that are incremental but should also include costs that
an entity must incur to sell its inventories including those
that are not incremental to a particular sale. The Group’s
accounting policy prior to the Committee’s agenda decision
was to determine the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration incremental costs only. Upon application
of the Committee’s agenda decision, the Group changed its
accounting policy to determine the net realisable value of
inventories taking into consideration both incremental costs
and other cost necessary to sell inventories.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.
The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has had
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. FEFABRREIEHREZER ([EFRE
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL BEEAED]) 21&5T (48)

REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective B MM 1o R A R 2 $7 5T R ARAS BT B B B 7% 3R
H2R|
The Group has not early applied the following new and ARES B AR IZ A LA T BB ME H R EBE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet Fra] RS ETBIRR B 5 e 5 228
effective:
IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and Insurance Contracts!
December 2021 Amendments to IFRS 17) RG89

BB mEEAF LR (BER_E_EFAR=T
Z—F T Az BRI EERE L7 2185])
Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
RS ERIE 105 R BB & s RIS 285R 2 {85]  Associate or Joint Venture?
FEEEHENBENBREECEZHNEELEFTE?

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
BB B 745 i 5 2RI B 165 2 18 5T ErREENEES R
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
e TR 19E 2 185] B ED B RMEKIEREN?
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®
BRI 15 2 55T HHRERIERB AR
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
BIRR e s RIS 155 R B M A i R B S s FEHBURR KRR
F5R2AEFT
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates!
BIRR & 5 AERIE 85 2 18T GEHhETHER!
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Bl @ ERIE 1257 2 85T Single Transaction®

HE-XSEANEENBEGRNETNIA

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. L R-B-_=F— A A&z EEHME
o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 8 RFEETE A sk 2 %G 2 FEHMAER -

determined.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. g R-T-—NE— A — Az BBz EEHME
o

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application RAREETEG - ERAAA G REIEFT R

of all new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material RS E R ] ARG T2 RS IR

impact on the consolidated financial statements in the REABATE -

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

A 8 5% B 05 3 o 2 R ([ I PER
B|ERER ) 2 187T (F)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that the
classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within
12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

e R 8 5% B %5 3 o 2 R ([ I e Bt
B|ERER ) 2 1E87T (F)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (coNTINUED)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date
of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2022, the application of the 2020 and 2022
Amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
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Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 “Income Taxes” (“IAS
12") so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with the right-of-use assets and the
lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual
reporting period beginning on 1 January 2023. As at 31
December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to HK$13,609,000 and HK$12,900,000
respectively. The Group is in still the process of assessing
the full impact of the application of the amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
periods as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” (“IFRS
2"), leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in
use in “IAS 36 Impairment of Assets”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (conTINUED)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE
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3.2 Significant accounting policies

3.2 FEEHEXR

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (conTiINUED)
When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting
policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (conTiNUED)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (conTINUED)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills knowledge
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or cannot be replaced without
significant cost effort or delay in the ability to continue
producing outputs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)
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Business combinations (conTINUED)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Conceptual Frameword for Financial
Reporting issued by International Accounting Standards
Board in March 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except
for transactions and events within the scope of IAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
(“IAS 37”) or IFRIC 21 “Levies” (“IFRIC21"), in which the
Group applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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Business combinations (coNTINUED)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

e =C )
RUFE R - P Ry RI R R & B K P AR R
BETVIZAERR - HEATERSN

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12
and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Business combinations (conTINUED)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Business combinations (coNTINUED)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
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RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Revenue from contracts with customers (conTINUED)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in electronics manufacturing services contracts
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer, as in contracts for sale of handsets and 10T
terminals and own-branded products manufacturing.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, as in contracts for electronics
manufacturing services and procurement agency services, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided by the
other party.
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Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises and warehouse
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (coNTINUED)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates followings a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (coNTINUED)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at
amounts equal to net investments in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial
direct costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or
dealer lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the
net investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (coNTINUED)

Lease modification (conTinueD)

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants where primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EERA

BN ZESILEREREEERBRAZE
ERADBTEERN  (ERAFEEZR DMK
Ko BEERBAEERERBAAHIEE
B ZEERERTETBRERER -

%*H%@ﬁ?"ﬂ’ﬂiﬁiﬂ iﬁQZ%mﬂiE‘%
REAEFRIE K - —REFWEAR X
Rt A— F““IEE %rﬂ%%ﬁﬂfﬂ'ﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
J‘E/‘AQT&E’J§EZH\JFW’EE’JEuuﬁﬁx;éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂlé’\]
REWA - AREMEMEERAR IR

FrEREMEERADERE L MERNBEAE

n«mu"

BFIE B KA

TEAIBIIRTE AN 65 B & B <F BUR I B Y AR Ff
WAL S &S EIMBNE - BFEB WA

2T AR ©

BURFTE B AR AN SR B 5t P (el B O /i RA AR
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁumﬁﬁﬁimﬁﬂFﬁﬁ%%ﬁi‘ﬂﬁf\TﬁﬁﬁE
R ABME @ TRHRMIR/ASEERE
=.aﬁzuﬁﬁﬂﬁtﬁ%/\#m@;é?#ﬂﬂzﬁlﬁE 1451
AREGFEMBARARPERSETRA - W%
BREENT AFNERERS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

RERBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Government grants (CONTINUED)

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis in the period in
which they become receivable. Government grants relating
to compensation of expenses are deducted from the related
expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income”.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares/share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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Share-based payments (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(cONTINUED)

Share award granted to employees

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in employee share trust reserve. The cost of acquisition of
the Company’s employee share trust for the share award
scheme is recorded as treasury shares (shares held for
share award scheme). At the time when the awarded shares
are vested, the amount previously recognised in share award
reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury shares will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revisits
its estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share trust reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Taxation (coNTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Taxation (coNTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use asset and the related lease liability, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use asset or the lease liability.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liability, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use asset and lease
liability are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use asset over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liability resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.
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Taxation (coNTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

BiIE ()

BTN IR A B ) BE R FE AN AR IR & B AR H
BAREAAQENITHRMNEAREE - URHEE
Rl — SRR AR — SRR ERBMH A ETRA
BART - T IAEH -

A RAEERIAN B SR - HEE H BN A
EHNEERNERRN R CBEEGH
o FEULERT - A RRLERIA TS D IR
Hitv 2 RS RS B R R ER o

=

EHAFTS R BT A 2 TR A REE R - &
SEFH A AR S HE DR AR X AR &
E‘&EE%%REE#&ﬁqﬂ%FH& SFEIRANEFRE
PHEEMEPIISHEIE - BRAEES - IR
EL%RIEE’JEEE?@F)’T %REM&EP R 5 BE FE —
o M AARIBER R - RIERRATEEM SR
?E,Hﬂ{%@&ﬁﬂil,ﬁ?ﬁ& MERRE o

¥ BERRE

ME - BEREE (BEBIEEESIREEY
IR BUREEY) IR AR EL 18 2T ITE A K
H&RFTRERBE  REETHRTRIE
(wA) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

RERBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Property, plant and equipment (coNTINUED)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position,except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Property, plant and equipment (conTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Intangible assets (coNTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use asset and intangible assets other than goodwill
(CONTINUED)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position in include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include inventory costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

RERBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Inventories (CONTINUED)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land,
development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value is
determined based on price ultimately expected to be realised
less applicable selling expenses.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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RERBRREREERTES
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Financial instruments (conTiNuED)
Financial assets (conTINUED)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (conTiNUED)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

(i)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)

Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (CoNTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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RERBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including
trade and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivables, amounts due from associates, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances or credit
impaired and the remaining balances are collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)

Financial assets (conTiNUED)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTINUED)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

REMBBRRGREAERTES
FTBUR (&)

Financial instruments (conTiNuED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTiNUED)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instruments to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understand
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)
Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (conTINUED)

(ir)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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RERBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Financial instruments (conTiNuED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (conTiNUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (conTinvED)
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a finance lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the finance lease receivables
in accordance with IFRS 16.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration of the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

RERBRREREERTES
FTBUR (&)

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (conTiNUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (coNTINUED)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, but transferred to retained
profits.

£RT A (@)

EHEE &)

EHEERAMIE A FEX R SRS ER

B9 BB FTAER ()

() FBHEEERAERER (&
ERETHEMOETTE  URREA
BIEAERC IR B R O E R RS
e

FEMA RS BAENBERETE
WS BAERGERREAIRI - M
ZERT - FBRA RS HEENS
SR AEH -

RIUTEREHEZE
HHEEERBRSRNEOENCEE - A%
EhEBURERZEREE °

ERIFERIZBHEN A EZ SREER @ &
BEZEAEES KRB ERN ZHENZE
N RERIER -

AEBR NG HER R R AR AT EF AR
2HKEENED TARERIEERE @ R
ERENEESGHFHRENRTREIBIETS
B o RERD  MEBAREBRM -

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F

189



190

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F-—6+-A=+-ALEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

RENBBRREREERTES
FTBUR ()

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables, accruals and bank borrowings) are initially
measured at fair values and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

4.

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASE S o BT R (A5t A REE MY
FERR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

4.

BASEE ot H B I (5t A REE MY
FERIR (&)

Key Sources of estimation uncertainty
The followings are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The management estimates the fair value of the investment
properties with reference to fair value determined by the
Valuer as defined in note 17 using income capitalisation
approach. In making the valuation, the Valuer used key
inputs including capitalisation rates, market rent of similar
properties and growth rates. The key inputs used are
intended to reflect conditions existing at the end of the
reporting period. Where there are any changes in the key
inputs used, the estimated fair value of investment properties
may be significantly affected. As at 31 December 2022, the
fair value of investment properties is HK$664,865,000 (2021:
HK$793,755,000). Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 17.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets in handsets and
10T terminal business

The recoverable amount of the handsets and IOT terminal
business is estimated based on value-in-use calculation
with key inputs and assumptions adopted by the Valuer
engaged by the Company and the chief financial officer of
the Group works closely with the Valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs including budgeted sales, gross profit margin, annual
and terminal growth rates and discount rate. Changing
the inputs and assumptions could materially affect the fair
value. Impairment loss of HK$53,839,000, HK$6,056,000
and HK$17,918,000 were recognised against the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with finite useful lives, respectively
during the year ended 31 December 2022. Details of the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets in Handsets and
|OT terminal business are disclosed in note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

BASE S ot H B X (A5t A REE MY
FERR (&)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and/or slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production or sale.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such finished goods and raw materials primarily based on
the latest selling and purchase prices and current market
conditions. If the market condition was to deteriorate,
resulting in a lower net realisable value for such finished
goods and raw materials, additional allowances may be
required. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$185,779,000 (2021:
HK$244,761,000). During the year ended 31 December
2022, allowance of inventories of HK$57,447,000 (2021:
HK$48,335,000) was charged to profit or loss.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on past-due status of individual
debtors or as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The individual assessment and collective
assessment are based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the
ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes
42 and 27 respectively. The net carrying amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2022 is HK$73,123,000 (2021:
HK$90,625,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE

A

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Continuing operations

Segments

Wak:

Types of goods or services Ems iR ER

Sale of handsets and 10T SHE F I R W B R i
terminals

Electronics manufacturing B RERIGHIER

services

Property rental L/ ESanpic)

Total st

Timing of revenue recognition WX A FEREASRI

At a point in time NE B

Over time BE I

Total @5t
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()  DHFELEFUA

FREEER

31 December 2022

For the year ended

BE-_B-__F+-A=+—-HLE

Handsets and

10T terminals
business Property
FHEYESA  management Total
RIRET YHEEEER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET
554,383 - 554,383
30,290 - 30,290
- 53,344 53,344
584,673 53,344 638,017
554,383 N/ATE
30,290 N/AT3E A
584,673 N/AT3E A




5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

5. WA ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

(1)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations

Segments

i

Types of goods or services

Sale of handsets and 10T terminals
Electronics manufacturing services
Property rental

Total

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Total

EmIRBEER
HETHRYERRE
ETRERG R
St

st

LON: A

MR R
eliSin

sl

g

() DTEELEHAUA (B

FEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILE

Handsets and

|OT terminals
business
(restated)
FHe R AR Property
STES) management Total
(' E=51) MEHEER FeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET BT BT
567,583 - 567,583
95,145 - 95,145
- 61,981 61,981
662,728 61,981 724,709
567,583 N/ATNE AR
95,145 N/AT 3 A
662,728 N/ATNEFR

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F

195
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED) 5. WA (#&)
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)  DFEFEAMA &

customers (CONTINUED)

Geographical markets & 5
Continuing operations BESEER

The PRC

Europe

United States

Hong Kong

Other Asia countries

Continuing operations

The PRC

Europe

United States

Hong Kong

Other Asia countries
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SRIETPN 23
M
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-ZE-_—_F+-H=+—HLEFE

Handsets and

10T terminals Property
business management
FH R Y L/ E 2]
PRI 5EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
253,826 53,344
41,817 -
125,039 -
6,982 -
157,009 -
584,673 53,344
BESEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ T —F+_fF=+—HIFE

Handsets and

IOT terminals
business Property
(restated) management

F % ek
GRS e e
Ce==gl)) 58
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
312,508 61,981
94,487 -
97,517 -
50,554 -
107,662 -
662,728 61,981
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5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. WA ()

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and I0T terminals and own-branded
products manufacturing

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals and
own-branded products manufacturing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of usage, distribution and price to sell the
goods, and has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit
term is 0-90 days upon delivery. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.

Electronics manufacturing services

The electronics manufacturing services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
normal credit term is 0-15 days. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.

(i)
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HETFH R DB R BB i fERE

MIHEF R YBAKREREE RER
‘s @ WARERNIEHEER BIE
mEMMEERFHETEHE (BRM))E
R RRME  BREAIZERATEE R
MEAAN DHELREBEREEER
BAEIXEEE  WASTERSZEBD
HwERBANER - EREEHARM
£0Z90K - AEEBERHEEMATK
H30% E50% IS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

5. WA GH)

(iii)

(iv)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-
branded products manufacturing and electronics
manufacturing services, are for periods of one year or
less.

Leases

For operating lease: BHKEHE
Lease payments that are fixed TEREAEMNK

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised approximately HK$49,155,000 (2021:
HK$57,355,000) selling profit, being the difference
between gross rental income and direct operating
expenses, as a property lessor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

2EER

For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance, information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM”), focus on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

In the prior year, the Group was organised into three
reportable and operating segments, being handsets and
|IOT terminals business, electronics manufacturing services
business and property management.

In accordance with the way in which information is now
reported internally to the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment and the recent
streaming of certain reportable segments, the financial
information of the Group’s “electronics manufacturing
services business” segment is no longer a separate
reportable segment. Prior year segment disclosures have
been represented to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

In the manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the business
activities of the Group are organised into the following
operating segments:

— Handsets and I0T terminals business; and
— Property management.
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D) RENEMETRAZNIIRENE R
SRR -

REFE AEEDA=EFNE2HRREED
o OAFRRYEBELORER  BTRIERE
HEAXERMFHEEEE

RIZB AR B 2ERKE AR REERIAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) PEER (&)
Segment revenue and results PEBARES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Continuing operations

Revenue
External sales

Segment loss

Other income and other gains and
losses

Share of results of associates

Corporate expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

WA

HINHE
DEER
H AU B B Ul

K EE
EaN(aYi o NCTE S
RAEFX
B A S 1R

TRAAEEZAZHNEEDRZWMARE

BT

BE_FE_—F+-F=+—HIFE

Handsets
and 10T
terminals Property
business management Consolidated
FHER
YDEE 4R LS
Him R HEEE wa
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
584,673 53,344 638,017
(471,227) (5,834) (477,061)
(12,051)
4,940
(10,227)
(4,916)
(499,315)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

2 BER (B

Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Continuing operations

Revenue ON
External sales HINHE
Segment (loss) profit SR (E18) m
Other income and other gains E A A R E AU S
and losses KEE
Share of results of associates DILERE R T EE
Corporate expenses NG5
Finance costs ELE=Vp#N
Loss before taxation MrEERTE1E

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other
income, corporate expenses, share of results of associates,
finance costs and taxation. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

DEBAREE ()
BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE

Handsets

and 10T

terminals

business Property

(restated) management Consolidated

Fik

WEs 4

ESTES

(&7 MEHEER TE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAT FET

662,728 61,981 724,709

(301,786) 11,588 (290,198)
57,455
15,024
(21,541)
(3,219)
(242,479)

ERNEE \*EZQ#BI%EE@BH%%J%L‘
ZZJS%I SETBERAER - PERERKRET —
BEARDEMBMA - R ECHE X W EJZJES
B BAFEFAESNEREE NP EE
B ETHEMEA - AFIFAX - 2B E QR
R RERARBBEZBERTREL 2 EHM
HEE o W E RS E LKA EmMAETE
BERREERBRE 2% »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) PEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TR AEFIZT 2RI EELFEIDHNE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: ERBEIN :
At 31 December 2022 R-E-——F+-A=+—H
Handsets
and 10T
terminals Property
business management Consolidated
FHER
Y 4 LYES
HIm R HEER =a
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FExT
Segment assets DEREE 430,660 812,974 1,243,634
Property, plant and equipment L EN IS 41,580
Right-of-use assets FREEE 60,818
Interests in associates NI T 60,056
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEE
a2 AT A 61,376
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFAEZZ
DEIEE 1,602
Properties held for sale HIEHEYE 8,093
Amounts due from associates g AN E 5,772
Other receivables, deposits and HEMEWERR - HEe Rk
prepayments SELNE O 2,767
Consideration receivables RUIRE 42,374
Pledged bank deposits EEFIRITIER 165,846
Short-term bank deposits RGHRIRTTIE X 168,122
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KR 191,814
Consolidated assets e AE 2,053,854
Segment liabilities DEBE 354,897 9,889 364,786
Other payables and accruals H A ERTRR R
FERTFRIE 3,722
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,234
Bank borrowings RITIEE 240,240
Tax payables FES TSR 33,981
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 96,555
Consolidated liabilities Feam 745,518
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. DEEHE)
Segment assets and liabilities (conTINUED) ﬁﬁﬁé&ﬁ{i (#8)
At 31 December 2021 R-BE-Z—#F+A=+—H
Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business Property
(restated) management  Consolidated
FHK
bk
e
(&E3) YMEHEER RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FAT
Segment assets DREE 721,402 817,259 1,538,661
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERE 34,605
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16,732
Deferred tax assets RIEHIEEE 68,824
Interests in associates N ANCIP £ 59,613
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRATEFAEMER
Was 2 IRATE 63,112
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAERZ
SREE 4,152
Properties held for sale BIEHEDE 9,613
Amounts due from associates JE U B 2N B Z0 I8 20,485
Other receivables, deposits and HiEBERR - Ee Rk
prepayments TFIE 18,109
Consideration receivables KRB 57,643
Pledged bank deposits EEMRTER 16,145
Short-term bank deposits RERRITIE 353,177
Bank balances and cash RITERRRE 322,309
Consolidated assets IREEE 2,583,180
Segment liabilities DIEEE 438,700 16,660 455,360
Other payables and accruals H A R AR R R FERT5A0R 11,317
Bank borrowings RITEE 41,851
Tax payables FERI I 37,311
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 143,158
Consolidated liabilities IrEaE 688,997
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

2 FER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (conTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain right-of-use assets, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, interests in associates, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, amounts due
from associates, consideration receivables and certain
other receivables, deposits and prepayments.

corporate liabilities include certain other payables,
accruals, lease liabilities, tax payables, bank
borrowings and deferred tax liabilities, and

properties held for sale are unallocated since property
development is no longer classify as reportable
segment.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 BER (&)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Continuing operations

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of right-of-use assets

Additions of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment

Impairment losses on right-of-use
assets

Impairment losses on intangible
assets

Impairment losses on trade
receivables

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Impairment losses on amounts due
from associates

Impairment losses on consideration
receivables

Allowance of inventories

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in fair value of investment
properties

BESEER
HENBRRRADHEE

BREER

REME  BELRE

REERREERE
REBVEE
nEx - BERREINE

EREEERE

B EESH

WE - BERRERE
B8
ERERERERBRE

EBVBERERR

FEWE SR RME
B8
HiaEUFIAZ RERBE

FEWHEE N R S ORRE
B
B 2R ERE

FEERE
HEWE « B kR
BB
REMERTERD

Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business
FHR
LR
FSTE
HK$'000
TR

53,818
9,345
7,756

21,834
9,835

45,127

53,839
6,056

17,918

13,241

4,441

1,111
57,447

1,977

Htb o BEHR
BE—S_—Ff_F=1—HULFE

Property

management  Unallocated Consolidated

L/
HEEE
HK$’'000

TEr

RAE
HK$'000
TER

me
HK$’'000
FER

53,818
55,960
7,756

I
B
o
[}
-
o

21,834
9,992
45,127
53,839
6,056
17,918

13,241

4,441

1
—
o
Y
o
o

16,499

1,111
57,447

1,977

37,422 - 37,422
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

6.

2 FER (&)

Other segment information (coNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Continuing operations b B E
Amounts included in the measure of segment profitor - EEHEERANBEE
loss or segment assets: WRNEE

Additions of property, plant and equipment

RENE - HERRE

Additions of right-of-use assefs TEFRERE
Additions of intangible assets RERVAE

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Nz RBERREE

Depreciation of right-of-Use assets [PREEENE
Amortsation of infangible assefs BVEERH
Impairment losses on intangible assets BVAERERE
Impairment losses on trade receivables ERESER L REEE
Impairment losses on other receivables AEYGIERESE

Impairment losses on amounts due from associates

Reversal of impairment losses on entrusted loan
receivable previously recognised

Impairment losses on equity instruments at FVTOCI

EhBELAERERR
ERERETHERRED

RMEER AR AR RS

recognised in profit or oss BAIERERR
Write-0ff of trade receivables SN E 285
Allowance of inventories FERE
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BRREE
plant and equipment R
Decrease in fair value of investment properties RENELTERD

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

b5 ERH (D
— = A=t —ALEE

HEr—F—

Handsets
and 0T
terminals
business
(restated)
FiR
W
Hinzh
(te=3)
HK$'000
TiEn

47,653
13,064
55,741

33572
11771
4,012
19,000

2,000

4,884
4833

21

Property
management

NEHEER

HK$ 000
TR

3173
1123

3028

Unallocated

HK$ 000
TR

2,193
140

1,200
800

(35823)

384

Consolidated

=F
op>

HK$ 000
TR

47,653
13,064
55,741

39,538
13034
44,012
19,000
2,000
1,200
800

(35,823)
384
4,884

4833

21
3028




SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. TEER &)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on
the location of the customers. Information about the Group’s
non-current assets is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers

AREBNRPBEARERBEBEEE -

BRAKERBIINPER 2 HELEEBRA
DRBEEFP ZMEHZT - ERAAKEFREBDE
ENBERDRBEEEMGHIELERS -

Non-current assets

Year ended Year ended
REHIBEEZKA kRBEE
BETIEE BEZTIEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
B8 —E-—F —E-F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T FHET FHT
The PRC )G S 307,170 374,489 874,689 1,164,651
Europe BM 41,817 94,487 - =
United States e 125,039 97,517 - -
Hong Kong &% 6,982 50,554 211 70
Other Asian Countries BTN [T 157,009 107,662 - =
638,017 724,709 874,900 1,164,721
Note: it
Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, equity instruments at ERBEETRIEEERBEE  RAFEFTAEME

FVTOCI and consideration receivables.

B 2 IR AR T A R RIS (E -
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtBA - WamKEE

2022 2021
—ECHE — T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FET
Continuing operations HEREER
Other income: B A -
Refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT”) EER (ISEF])RE
(note 1) (Bia£1) 1,612 1,045
Government grants (note 2) ERFIE B WA (Hfat2) 13,638 19,572
Interest income earned on bank RITAERIRELZ F B A
balances 10,970 23,354
Interest income earned on consideration  AUB M E b FEU G IE BREN 2
and other receivables FEUA 3,346 2919
Dividend income from financial assets BIERATEAABZNESREEZ
at FVTPL A% B U A 327 332
Others EAh 581 375
30,474 47,597
Other gains and losses: Hih s K% B8 -
Impairment losses on equity instruments AT EFFAEMEEKEEZ
at FVTOCI xR T Bpi{EE 18 - (384)
Write-off of trade receivables i sH R E SRR - (4,884)
Write-off of trade and other payables W EH R 2 5 8RR R E A 3 IE
(note 3) (H1£3) 8,057 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BMEMEEZ
equipment 548 (1,977) (221)
Gain arising on early termination of IREXRIERES OFTE S 2 W
lease contracts 229 -
Net foreign exchange gain SN Uz 28 5,044 900
Changes in fair values of investment WEWENTEESD
properties (37,422) (3,028)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 W FEE
(note 40) (H17#40) - 4,100
Fair value change on financial assets BAFEFABR L SRMEE
at FVTPL NEEEE) (2,550) (2,423)
Others Hih - 11
(28,619) (5,929)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7.0THER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

7. EAWA - s REE ()

Notes:

1)

)

Q)

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) was engaged
in the business of distribution of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test equipment and
software. Under the current PRC tax regulation, they were entitled
to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test software in the
PRC in 2022 and 2021.

The amount represents unconditional government grants
HK3,072,000 (2021: HK$5,048,000) received during the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was granted to encourage
the Group’s research and development activities in the PRC. In
addition, the Group has received conditional incentive payments
of HK$9,314,000 (2021: HK$13,473,000) from the local
government authority in the PRC and the amounts were fully
credited to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022
upon the fulfillment of conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$72,000 in respect of Covid-19 related
subsidy that related to Employment Support Scheme provide by
the Hong Kong government.

In this year, the Group receives government grants towards the
cost of development of handsets and IOT terminals business
of HK$5,523,000 (2021:HK$1,743,000) in. The amount
received is deferred and is transferred to other income to
match actual expenditure used in research and development
activities and HK$1,180,000 (2021: HK$1,051,000) was
recognised in the profit or loss during the year. As at 31
December 2022, an amount of HK$40,744,000 (2021:
HK$45,736,000) remained to be amortised and is included in
other payables (for current portion) and deferred income (for
non-current portion) (note 29).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has written off
trade and other payables of HK$8,057,000. Given that those trade
and other payable accounts had no movement over the last three
years and no repayment request received on such liabilities from
creditors, the management considered the creditors had forfeited
the right of collecting the relevant liabilities.

Haz -

(1)

(2)

(3)

FEBEERM (L) ARAR ([ LEFEE])
REDHATREREEZRMS  UEHAZEES
{EIRBIRRME - REBEFBIRTZHREER R=F
CoER R FREPEREEETRERE
EZ®Mt - URFAEEESCRARBEHN 28
ERAZEERMN -

heEAERRE-_E-_—F+=-A=+—Hit
FREWE 2 E G BUTIE B B A3,072,000/ T
(ZZ=—4 : 5,048,000/ 7T) ' JHASEIAEE
KRB EEEHMRL o 4t - AEEEgH
B & b BT RS R S 1614 22 ) £9,314,00078 7T
(ZZ=—% : 13,473,000/%7T) ' MABBHIED
R REEREREGTABE_Z__F1+=A
=t—HIEFEZERH -

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILEE  ~%£H
MBEBBITATRE 2 R 25T BAICovid-1948 28
B FERERATIE B YR A 72,000/ 7T

RAFE  AEERRFEEMEBERREZ
B AN YR ER BR A5 38 B 5,523,000/ 70 (Z T =—4F :
1,743,000 7T)  FTRERZ S FEBELE LS » I
BEBEEHMKRANRAHEEHNERMAS -
WERFAERRPHERL, 180,000 T (= F
——% :1,051,0007T) - R=ZFE__F+=-A
=+—H - —%40,744,0008 T (ZF=—% :
45,736,000/ 7T) ) FIE AR B W B AK
fth FEASH BR R (BERNERED > 171 5 ) BB IEM A (REFERD
B|EHmE) (FifEE29) o

HE-Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE F£H
EMEHIE 1 E 5 BR K K& H fth 70188,057,0007 7T °
ERZERNEIERREMFERNBE=FA
WEEE  FEEANEZREEZSEE 12
[ R AR AT =RIBUHERE B ERRER

EARKEEBRAR —T - 555



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

8. FHEFEEEHEEXNZBEES
15 HIRREE

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET

OF REVERSAL

2022 2021
—E-CH& T4
HK$'000 HK$/000
FHEx FAxT
Continuing operations FEREER
Impairment losses (reversed) BTRZIFIE (B E) #ER
recognised on: BB
— Trade receivables —EUE Z IR 13,241 2,000
— Other receivables — Hofth JE AR X 4,441 1,200
— Amounts due from associates — PR & R R FRIE 16,499 800
— Entrusted loan receivable —ERERTER - (35,823)
— Consideration receivables —EURE 1,111 =
35,292 (31,823)

Details of the impairment losses under expected credit loss
model, net of reversal are set out in note 42.

BEHEEEEEA T ZRERBE (RED)

IESFHTEEL2 ©

FINANCE COSTS R AR
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET

Continuing operations FEREER

Interests on bank borrowings IRITIEER B 4,400 2,071
Interests on lease liabilities HEAEME 516 1,148
4,916 3,219
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

10. E% - aFHITEREEME

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms Yeung Man Ying
MrWong Cho Tung

Mr Liu Jun

Mr Zhu Wenhui (Note i)
Mr Gao Jun (Note ji)

Sub-total

uigs
€ e
THARE
BERE
RXEEE W)
BREL W)

b

ESRERYITEME

RBGER LRI REA R RHEPIPT R E 2 A
FEAABREERERATEENIENZ

e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-B--EY-A=t-ALEE

Retirement
henefits
Directors' Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
BB
Ezhe HEREE 4 DY TR aMe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Tén Tén Tén Tén
(Note j)
7]
- 690 - - - 690
- 1,380 - - - 1,380
- 828 296 - 155 1,279
- 493 116 - 157 766
- 1,168 - - 128 1,296
- 4,559 412 - 440 5411

The executive directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive Director
Mr Wong Hei, Simon (Note i)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Liu Hing Hung

MrWu Zhe

Mr Li Minbo (Note v)

Sub-total

FHUES
TRk Hiti)

BUFATES
BEMRE
RERE
FRELE WY

it

FRBTEEREFEATENSEZENE A

RARAEEEB 2 EIE

156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
156 - - - 156
468 - - - - 468

The non-executive director’'s and independent non-executive
directors’” emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Total

624

4,559

LRIFRTEFSREFATESCMEER

ERRERERRBES -

412

- 440

6,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

10. E - e ITEREEME
(&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

ESREFRIITEME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE T —&t-B=t-AILEE

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
RN
EShe FeREY fta PGS AR aie
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr TEr TEr TiEr T TEr
(Note )
W)
Executive Directors #ES
Ms Yeung Man Ying )EES = 242 = = - 242
Mr Wong Cho Tung THRF%E o 483 = o = 183
Mr Liu Jun FE - 947 183 - 1% 1,582
Mr Zhu Wenhui (Mote /) RIBSA (Hiti) - 665 - - 134 7%
Mr Gao Jun (Mot /i) Bk (i) = R = - 3 3
Sub-total NG - 2,369 183 - 289 3,141
The executive Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments FRBTEEREESITERS T BN A
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs Na R AREEERE Y & o
of the Company and the Group.
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr Wong Hel, Simon (Aote i) IEREWY 3 = = = - 3
Independent non-executive Directors B %#17ES
Mr Liu Hing Hung BRIETE 156 - - - - 156
MrWu Zhe RE%E 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Aote 1) TRELE W) 14 = = = = 14
Mr Li Minbo (ot ) SRS (Wity) 142 - - - - 142
Sub-total NGt 468 - - - - 468
The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments BT IERTES e T EEA R EET
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of AKATES o
the Company.
Total & 471 2369 483 - 289 3612
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. = EREHMITEREEMSE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (48)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED) EEREEATEMS (@)

Notes: it

(i) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the (i) FERRBEHICACHFNEESLERES
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and FERBEURAEE Z CEEEMET -

duties of directors and the Group’s operating results.

(i) Appointed as executive director with effect from 3 February 2021. (il RZB_—F-_A=BZERWPITES -

(i) Being the chief executive officer of the Company and appointed as (i) ARRAATNEREATEEYR=_ZTZ=—F+=A
executive director with effect from 24 December 2021. Resigned ZtTHEZEAMITEE - R =__FNA
as executive director and chief executive officer with effect from = THBRERTEEREFENITE °
30 September 2022.

(iv)  Appointed as non-executive director with effect from (ivy RZE_—F+-_A-t+WBHZEAEERNITE
24 December 2021. =

°

T —F-A-RRERBUFERTES -

(v) Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect from (v) P
3 February 2021.

(vi)  Resigned as independent non-executive director with effect from (i) R-ZT-—F—- A=-HEHIBIIERITES -
3 February 2021.

Employees’ emoluments EEMS
The five highest paid individuals included two (2021: one) BE—_TE-—_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE A
directors for the year ended 31 December 2022, whose HEEmTMALTERERG (ZEZ—F : —F)
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of B EMESEREXER SR T=%(CZ%
the remaining three (2021: four) individuals are as follows: Z—F  OR) AL ZEEmT ¢
2022 2021
—EZCF —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FAxT
Salaries and allowances e KR 2,726 4,675
Bonus TE4L 1,005 104
Retirement benefits scheme RIEFIFTEIHR
contributions 439 562
4,170 5,341
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. % EEBITEREEMSE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)
Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED) EEMS (@)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZ S EL TN SE:
2022 2021
—EC-CH& T4
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EEAH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T 2 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7L 22,000,000/ 7T 1 -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group REE  AEBWRAFMNESKABE= I
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals AT HERMNE - (ERAFEESZSMARSE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EENGFEINPNNSE SIEEE S N prd s N
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived 18 - SERBERFE - RREFEHEESRNR
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years. ENRBREEMME -
11. TAXATION 11. $iE
2022 2021
—E-C—fF —ET-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Continuing operations BREEER
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)  #BI{EFTSHE ([(REFTSH) 109 296
Overprovision in prior years AT FEBRE RS (1,517) -
Deferred tax charge (credit) RIERIBFAE %)

(note 22) (Hist22) 9,915 (7,084)
Taxation for the year REEHIH 8,507 (6,788)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for AR ASEBER B EEA RIS - WK
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in PMEFEIELBSFEHEME -

Hong Kong.
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11. TAXATION (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

11. %8 ()

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom”) and Shanghai Simcom are classified as
New and High Technology Enterprise and are entitled to
adopt a tax rate of 15%. The relevant annual tax rate used
for PRC EIT for the Group’s subsidiaries ranged from 15% to
25% (2021: 15% to 25%).

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

EEMESBR RIEETKEERR - EPEAE
BAE 2 BITMENE - DERESNEE
MEERAR ([ LEREARE]) R EEHE
B A EFRMEE] - WEERALS%H
HE - NEBEMBARKAZFBREEMSH
HEFERENTI5%E25% M (=T =—
& 15%%25%) ©

loss as follows:

Continuing operations
Loss before taxation

Taxation at the PRC income tax rate
of 25% (2021: 25%)

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of super deduction
for research and development
expenses (Note)

Overprovision in prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Income tax on concessionary rate

Tax expense (credit) for the year

Note: In PRC, the State Administration of Taxation has implemented

RNEEHRIBR R ELE A BERP IR BEAT
ESEERRAT ¢
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
BREEEER
BB RIE 1B (499,315) (242,479)
AR B FT{SiE 25%
(T =——% : 25%)stE 2 FiA (124,829) (60,620)
DEBE N BB TS 2
(1,235) =
DA 2 A 2 B2
13,188 20,811
BERRZ WA Z HIE 2
(12,211) (12,882)
a2 BRI I R IS 52 28 (B 22)
(33,380) (6,177)
LATE G E B R R (1,517) -
RIERPIEE R 2 RS2
68,018 34,545
B ABERBERZ BB EE
(413) (3,845)
FRERREREEB R E
76,673 (3,237)
REBMETE 2SR 24,213 24,617
RNEERIBERY HR) 8,507 (6,788)

the policies for weighted deduction of research and development

expenses. Qualified research and development expenditures are
eligible for 70% to 100% tax deduction.

Bret - R - BRBGERE B S0 kR

KK - A AR EFREXATZHF70%2100%H9H

TR, ©
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

2. BRI EK

For the year ended 31 December 2021

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of its entire 98.7% equity interest in Shanghai
Yunhao Trading Limited (“Shanghai Yunhao”) that carried
out the majority of the Group’s 10T system and 020
business. The purpose of the disposal was to generate cash
for the expansion of the Group’s other businesses. The
disposal was completed on 6 April 2021, on which date
the Group lost control of Shanghai Yunhao. The Group’s
0T system and 020 business are treated as discontinued
operations.

The loss for the current period from the discontinued
|OT system and 020 business was set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income have been restated
to re-present the 10T system and 020 business as a
discontinued operation.

BE-—E-—F+-A=1+—HLEE

R-ZTE-_—F=A=-—+=8 " A&BxH
EMENEEER EEER EEER ([ LEE
581 2 2987 B AE - MAEEAEH B
R RGBS EEY) BB B A RETT
NEBTABRSARERASEBEMmER 2R
SRMETHE - HEERZZ=_—FWMAX
A - AEBRE BREY R 2 12
T AEBBYHMBRFRELEBRIEAD

TXHIIAHEERKEEREMBRERGR R
BEXGER - REBRaREMEE KSR
RHOLBBFOES - UEOBERGEL
EBTIRERIEEEET -

Period ended

6 April 2021
Bz
g —F
MAH
1EHARS
HK$’000
FHExT
Loss of I0T system and 020 business MBS R R R B TS AR
for the period/year FEBE (9,831)
Loss on disposal of IOT system and L EMBR ARG LB R 2 BB
020 business (see note 40) (Z#1:#40) (808)
(10,639)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

2. ERIERERK (B

The results of the IOT system and 020 business from 1
January 2021 to 6 April 2021 which have been included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, were as follows:

VB RG R EEEBEN T -—F—A—H
2T - —FANHBRNES (Bt AL
clEnkEMEEKER) OT ¢

Period ended

6 April 2021

BE

B —F

HA7<H

LEHRR

HK$’000

FHxT

Revenue WA 31,146
Cost of sales SHERA (28,520)
Gross profit EF 2,626
Other income HAplA 523
Other gains and losses Eh e K B 1R (14)
Research and development expenses R LFEER (2)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R IHRA (3,792)
Administrative expenses TR (9,137)
Finance costs BhE A (35)
Loss before taxation BB RIE R (9,831)
Taxation I8 -
Loss for the period/year NERR SR (9,831)

During the period ended 6 April 2021, 10T system and 020
business contributed approximately HK$516,000 to the
Group’s net operating cash flows and paid approximately
HK$798,000 in respect of investing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Yunhao at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 40.

Eﬁz_?_*iﬂﬂ/—\ﬂtﬁﬂﬁﬁ RS R

EERBRAEEEREE RS MEFRY
516,000/571: » WK B TEB) X 147798,0007#
JG °©

EEERZ2EERAGNHE B BHMNERER
MsE40 B -

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

2. ERIEEE R ()

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations

has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in cost of

sales and services)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense (included

in cost of sales and services)
Staff costs:
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

RERE, FENERILCEEBERE
kr GEA) -

BV EE#E GIABE RRBEKA)

B BEAMENER

EREEENE
RBRAXZFERA
FFAHE RARFEKA)

BTRA :

HAth & TR
—TEREAER
— R FET B

Period

ended 6 April

2021
B=

_i_—fﬁ

—=

mAH

EHARE

HK$’000

FET

9)

726

28,520

4,623

1,022

5,645




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

DISPOSAL

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

13. 7 ERFFELEZEE

During the year, the directors of the Company have received
information on expropriation relating to the location of its
Shanghai factory. The official notice of house expropriation
and compensation work have subsequently issued to the
Group (see note 45). The assets attributable to the factory,
which are expected to be sold within twelve months, have
been classified as assets held for disposal and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position
(see below). The property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are included in the Group’s handsets and 10T
terminal business and investment properties are included
in property management business for segment reporting
purposes (see note 6). The net proceeds of disposal are
expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant
assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss
has been recognised.

The major classes of assets of the factory classified as held
for disposal are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Total assets classified as held for disposal

RAFE  ARBESEEEHRE LERHET
UIEBRAER - REBERBRERF R
BEITIEEBA (R IH5E45) - ZMFEEIHE
E BB ET_EAREE  E0BRARIE
HEZEE  YREAMBHIRAR (RT3 H
BEEY - o BERBEN - WX BELR
AN EREEE AR RE 2 F 1 K Y48
RimR > MRBEVMEAGFANEEERRER
(RHEE6) - W EMFFIRFRIATHEER
MEERBBZREFE - Rt WEERRE
BB -

ZBEAIBAHELEZTEEERAIINT ¢

2022
—E-C—F
HK$’000
FHT

ME - BB REE 50,693
FREEE
Investment properties A

4,153
148,109

DERFHELE 2 EERE 202,955

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. XEEEE
2022 2021
—ECHE T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FET
Loss for the year from continuing operations 2N & H1H 4B 48 & ¥ 15 518
has been arrived at after charging B30 GTA) -
(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREM BN & 2,650 2,300
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in G E# Gt ARE &
cost of sales and services) BRAGACAR) 45,127 44,012
Less: Amount capitalised in development B BE A AR A
cost - (163)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories W BEEAMEMER (45,127) (43 849)
Impairment losses recognised on property, SFANTEIERYE  BEX
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets R HRAREEREREE
and intangible assets included in RZBERE
— cost of sales —SHERAR 17,918 19,000
— administrative expenses —1TE RS 59,895 =
77,813 19,000
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - EREETE
equipment 21,834 39,5638
Less: Amount capitalised in development B B E AR A
costs - (1,459)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories A BEERMENEFE (14,239) (23,818)
7,595 14,261
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e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 14. XFEEEE (B)
2022 2021
—ECf T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 9,992 13,034
Allowance of inventories (included in cost of ~ 1F & &
sales and services) Gt ASHE KRS A) 57,447 48,335
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense RERAT 2 FEKRA
(included in cost of sales and services) Gt ASHE MRS A) 628,000 586,926
Cost of properties sold B EYIERBA
(including in cost of sales and services) GT ASHE R ARG A) - 170
Cost of manufacturing services BB RRASRIR AR
(including in cost of sales and services) GTASHE BRI A) - 92,485
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) 25 WE10) 6,035 3,612
Other staff costs HAh B TR
— Salaries and other benefits —TE&RAEMBER 279,317 238,909
— Retirement benefits scheme — RN R FT B K
contributions 63,297 54,862
348,649 297,383
Less: Amount capitalised in B BB AR
development costs (3,035) (37,100)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories B BERNMENTFER (34,495) (25,039)
311,119 235,244
Gross rental income from investment WEMEBHASIKA
properties (53,344) (61,981)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred for & : IREWE 7 BEKELRHR
investment properties 4,189 4,626
(49,155) (57,355)

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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)

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

15.

DIVIDENDS

. Eﬁ /%\

16.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

LOSS PER SHARE

EEVW RSN E S ER T —4&
+—A=+—RLFERMNRBBKE -

. BRIEGE

For Continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

HEERETY
AP R A B SRR R AR Th 1A
THEEE

following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company
Add:

Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share from
continuing operations

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
and diluted loss per share

2022 2021
s —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT BT
BEEFTENT :
NAREAR ANEGRFEEE
(509,453) (245,800)
o
REEREELIE
R BRI e - 9,245
ATEECEEBTN
BRERREEERE
Z B8 (509,453) (236,555)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
000 '000
TR T
R EE
ARG ESRER KB EEEN
TR IETHEE
2,192,057 2,317,901

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic loss per share has been adjusted for the
impact of shares repurchased and shares held by the trust
under share award scheme (note 38).

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options since
their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share from continuing operations.
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AR ESRERNERN T BRMEFIHE
ERtEE R H A () MARIR A (0 22 B AT &I 5 7E 4
Brhin e FEFAR (HE38) °

HE-Z-_—FR-_FT-_—F+-_A=+—H
LHFE - sTESREEERE - ARAARM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. LOSS PER SHARE (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. BREE (8)

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss B8

Loss for the purpose of basic
and diluted per share

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations
For the year ended 31 December 2022, there is no impact
on the loss per share from discontinued operation.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operations was HK0.39 cents per share in prior year, based
on the loss for prior year from the discontinued operations of
approximately HK$9,245,000 and the denominators detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the computation
of diluted loss per share did not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options since their assumed
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share from
discontinued operations.

REFECERCR ISR
ARBREEAREFBEREERD R IREER
W EREAR L SR IIRIBEA TBURRTE -

FTESRER R EEREE 2 EiE

2022 2021
—ECHf —E-—%F
HK’000 HK'000
FERT FHT
(509,453) (245,800)

B9 5 SR L E SR E AT RS EN S
48 -

REDRIEEGER
BHE_Z-_—_F+-A=1t—RBItFE  B&
ISR B TRE BT ETE -

RER IR E KR _EFEE1E499,245,000
IR XL EREAREEFE ST
FTE - FFEERIMEEXEBNERERK#E
SEEEASTAR0.39751 °

HE—Z-—F+-_A=t+—HItFE &
SREEEEER - ARARBIMREITEER
B BREITESEBREERIEFECEER
K EFRREBIR D - B R SRR IR T
fi# o
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REW*

HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—H—H 718,572
Transfers from property, plant and EREYE  BEKEE
equipment 43,195
Transfer from right-of-use assets BEATAREEE 20,005
Decrease in fair value recognised in RIEETER 2 A ER D
profit or loss (3,028)
Exchange differences [ER=R 15,011
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—4F+-_HA=+—H 793,755
Transfers from property, plant and EEBYE - BE RS
equipment 75,559
Transfer from right-of-use assets R AFERAEEE 57,888
Decrease in fair value recognised in RIBRER 2 A ERD
profit or loss (37,422)
Reclassified as held for disposal B OBERFELE (148,109)
Exchange differences [ER=R (76,806)
At 31 December 2022 R-—ZE-_—F+—-_FA=+—H 664,865
Unrealised loss on property valuation R-ZE - —FirAlBmZ
included in profit or loss in 2022 REBYEGERE (37,422)
Unrealised loss on property valuation RZBE_—Fst AB&mZ
included in profit or loss in 2021 RERYZHERE (3,028)

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
the respective dates of transfer from property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2022 (with details as set out below)
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”), independent
qualified professional valuer not related to the Group. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with the
Valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. REW* ()

During the year, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets fair valued at HK$75,559,000
and HK$57,888,000 (2021: HK$43,195,000 and
HK$20,005,000), respectively were transferred to investment
properties upon change in use of certain properties. The
management considered the end of owner-occupation when
the Group entered into various operating leases with external
third parties or when the properties are vacant but are held
to be leased out under operating leases. The management
assessed the fair value of these investment properties which
are determined based on valuations performed by the
Valuer. The valuations are carried out on the respective dates
of transfer, by using income capitalisation approach, which
was arrived at by reference to the key inputs, including the
capitalisation rates, market rent of similar properties and
growth rates.

The fair values of investment properties as at 31 December
2021 and 2022 were determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of existing lease and the market rentals of the similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rates are
determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar commercial and industrial
properties in Shanghai and Shenyang adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.
There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

NAFEE - AFED A %75,559,00078 7T &
57,888,000/ T (=& = —4F : 43,195,000/
70 520,005,000 7T) 2 ¥ 2 - BB K& s A
MEAREERE TYEZAGESMERE
BREWE - ERKEEINEE=TTFILZAL
EHEIMEEEEREEEHEREFHE
B AEEERAETHRETIEN - EBE
EHERGEMAETHENEE 2ZERE
MERHEETHE - BRAMBERSHREE
BHRARAERMOEETT - ZEEELEH
RBABE(BRENE  REYWEZTS
HeRERE)SH -

BWEMER T —FR-ZFT-_—_F+=H
=+—BZAFEIRBRAEREEE
Bt - 2 EYENRARIEESN 2 mi5HE
& WIRIR & E H YT 2 5 E R
KARIE - MIHHEE HREBEA TR KB &AL
fiy - WAIR AT EA R B AR A R kB 3 2 a5
SEXF - EANMEKRRIZESIT L8 KBRS R
HIYEHERIBL 2 WS RET © K57
BUGTAMEREENTSER  URBRASE
EREMENBTEAE - HERGHEBTFE
FTERA &R o

EMRZ AFER - WRZ2 &S REER
EREBAAR -
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 17.

BREY= ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2022

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs
AVERE BRI AYE TABERRAHE
HK$'000
THET
Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial
REBZRENE-H%
Level 3 Income 520,240 (i) Capitalisation rate
E=K capitalisation (i) EAMLE
approach
WABRLE
(if) Market rent
(i) M5 AL

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

'H

TRETEEREMERTHEMA 2 AERT
RIGERAFTAZ NI BREAZRE -

R-BZZH+Z-A=+—H

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FUEE
BANBEE

4.5%-6.0%

RMB3.50-RMB15.00
per month
per square meter
BABTAHK
ARE3S0TE
AR15.007T

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
AABE
BABEH
AFEZBRE

Aslight increase in the
capitalization rate would
result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.

B RMEGES -
SEHATENAIE
BUE R TRA o

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in
a significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa.

s HAEEM -
SRHNTENANE
- 2 IR o
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e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 17. REWZE ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant FEREXRTIEENARBETATEFEZ
unobservable input (CONTINUED) ER (')
As at 31 December 2022 (CONTINUED) R-B-_—_F+-A=+—HE#)
Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
TUERE
TABE BAZESR
AVEERE fRERIT AYE TABEBAYE BAHEEE AFEZBR
HK$'000
TET

Investment properties in Shenyang - Commercial
REGZRENE-HE
Level 3 Income 13,440 (i) Capitalisation rate 3.5% Aslight increase in the
F=8 capitalisation (i) EAML & capitalization rate would
approach result in a significant
WAB KL% decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
BAMEERNEGEE
SEHRNTEMNAE
BE - RZIA o
(i) Market rent RMB1.33 per month A significant increase in the
(i) 5 S per square meter market rent would result in
BABERXK a significant increase in fair
ARE1331T value, and vice versa.
iR SR AREM -
2EHNTENARE
T R2 IR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 17.

BREY= ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input (coNTINUED)
As at 31 December 2022 (cONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFPERRE

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

REGZREME-T%

Level 3
E=K

Valuation
techniques Fair value
fRERID AYE
HK$'000
THT
Income 131,185
capitalisation
approach
WABRMEE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

Unobservable inputs

TIBERGARE

(i) Capitalisation rate

() ER{E

(i) Market rent
(i) TiEMHE

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

NoB-—F+=-A=+—8 @)

& ()
Range of
unobservable
inputs
TABE
BAYEEE
55%

RMB0.50-RMB1.24
per month
per square meter
BRGTHA
AR¥050E
AREL 247t

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FOBRE
BABEBRE
AFEZBR

A slight increase in the
capitalization rate would
result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.

B RMEHES -
SRHNTENANE
BUE - R TR9A o

A significant increase
in the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

iniE & B AEEM -
2ERHNTENAE
B0 RZIA ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 17. REWZE ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant FHEATHREGARBETATLEFEZ
unobservable input (CONTINUED) ER (')
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=——F+=HA=+—H
Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
FUBRE
TABE BAZESH
AVERE BRSNS AYE TABERAYE BAZEEE AVEZER
HK$'000
THET

Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial
REBZRENE-B%E
Level 3 Income 530,752 (i) Capitalisation rate 4.5%-7.0% A slight increase in the
B capitalisation (i) AL & capitalization rate would
approach result in a significant
WABRMEE decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
B RMEGIES -
RN TENAE
BE - RZ IR o
(i) Market rent RMB3.94-RMB10.21 A significant increase
(i) 5 E per month in the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BRAGFAAK increase in fair value,
AR¥39%4E and vice versa.
ARE1021T MRS RAREM -
SEHATENAIRE
B RZIA

ERANBEEERAT T G458 229



230

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

17.

BREY= ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input (coNTINUED)
As at 31 December 2021 (CONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

D ERRE

Valuation
techniques

fHERT

Investment properties in Shanghai - Industrial

REBZREME-TX

Level 3
F=H

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABZ

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
57

118,690

Unobservable inputs

FURRGAYE

(i) Capitalisation rate

() ER{E

(i) Market rent
(i 5HE

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

')

R_TE_—F+-_A=+—8®#)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FUEE
BAHBEE

6.0%

RMB1.01-RMB1.43
per month
per square meter
BAGTAX
ARELOILE
AREL43T

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABE
BARESR
AFEZBR

A slight increase in the
capitalization rate would
result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.

B RMEGES -
SEHNTENKE
B RZTRA o

A significant increase
in the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

[N
SEHATENAIRE
- 2 IR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 17. REWZE ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant FHEATHREGARBETATLEFEZ
unobservable input (CONTINUED) ER (')
As at 31 December 2021 KRB —F+=—A=+—H
Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
TABE
TABE BABEH
AVERE RERT AYE TABEGAEE BABEEE AFEZBR
HK$'000
THET

Investment properties in Shenyang — Commercial
RERZRENE %
Level 3 Income 15,252 (i) Capitalisation rate 4.0% A slight increase in the
E=K capitalisation (i) BRI = capitalization rate would
approach result in a significant
WABE KL% decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
B RMERES -
SEUATENAR
B+ R TR9A o
(ii) Market rent RMB1.26 per month A significant increase in the
(i) TimHEe per square meter market rent would result in
BRETAK a significant increase in fair
ARE1267C value, and vice versa.
TSR ERATREM -
2RHNTENAE
- R2 A o

ERANBEEERAT T G458 231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

17.

BREY= ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable input (coNTINUED)
As at 31 December 2021 (CONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERR

Valuation
techniques

fHERT

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

RBS ZIREWHE - T%

Level 3
F=H

Income
capitalisation
approach

WAB A

Fair value

A¥E
HK$'000
57

129,061

Unobservable inputs

TUEERAYE

(i) Capitalisation rate
(i) AL

(i) Market rent
(i 35S

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes

are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not
pledged investment properties to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

')

R_TE_—F+-_A=+—8®#)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FUEE
BABBHE

5.0%

RMB0.51-RMB1.29
per month
per square meter
SASEIK
AREOSILE
AR®1.297T

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TAEE
BWABEHE
AFEZBR

A slight increase in the
capitalization rate would
result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.

BAMEEmMEGES
LEYATHENAR
BIE - RZ IR o

A significant increase
in the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

TR RAREEN -
SRR N TENARE
BN RZIRA °

HE_T-—"FR-_FT-_—F+-_F=+—H
IHFE - HEER @R EE = -

A A R AT
B AR R R

HERSBLERREEK

BERARFEER

STEMDEMATRIBIREE

RIBE-_—FR-F—

—F+tZA=t—8"

AEBWEEEMED TER - (ERRKERT
ER—RIRITRVE 2 ¥EfR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% » BERRHE

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor
Buildings HENE R HA BER vehicles Total
£ 3 REE W hE &5t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

COST R
At 1 January 2021 W-Z--%-A—-H 204,178 12,367 256,907 279,960 8,736 852,148
Exchange differences ExzZE 4734 358 4853 5,737 154 15,836
Additions NE (3,114) 9,620 8,267 31,164 1,716 47653
Disposals e (51) = (2,745) (2,769) (506) (6,070)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - (23,505) (1,090) (1,476) (26,071)
Transfers to investment ERSRANE

properties (46,153) - - - - (46,153)
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ—F+ZA=1-H 249594 22,345 243777 313,002 8,625 837,343
Exchange differences ERzE (14,801) (1,870) (20,906) (26,985) (656) (65,218)
Additions NE - - 3,203 50435 180 53818
Disposals e - (163) (10,980) (33,821) (1,419) (46,383)
Transfers to investment BRERENE

properties (74.004) - - - - (74,004)
Reclassified as held for disposal ~ EFABARIELE (104,586) - - - - (104,586)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—%+-A=1-H 56,203 20312 215,094 302,631 6,730 600970
DEPRECIATION AND RERAE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 W=E-—%-F—H 160,045 4,762 247,789 198,958 6,143 617,697
Exchange differences ExzZ 2,188 117 3416 7219 97 13,637
Charge for the year REE R 8945 2,260 5,733 21,863 137 39,538
Eliminated on disposals A EREH (49) - (1,78) (2,851) (434) (5,122)
Eliminated upon disposal of R EMBA AR - = (11,373) (826) (1,078) (13,277)

subsidiaries
Transfers to investment ERESRENE (21,120) = - - = (21,120)

properties
At 31 December 2021 R-F-—-F+-A=+-H 150,609 7,139 243,777 224,363 5,465 631,353
Exchange differences ExzE (8,651) (915) (20,844) (20532) (456) (51,398)
Charge for the year REE R 4898 2,564 378 1332 669 21834
Impairment e - 5,484 1,109 46,193 1,053 53,839
Disposals e = (163) (10,980) (25,585) (1,354) (38,082)
Transfers to investment ERERRENE

properties (44.901) - - - - (44.901)
Reclassified as held for disposal ~ EFT P AR{ELE (53,893) - - - = (53,893)
At 31 December 2022 W-2-—#+-A=+-H 48,062 14,109 213,440 237,764 5377 518,752
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—#+-A=1-H 8141 6,203 1,654 64,867 1,353 82218
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-%+-A=1-H 98985 15,206 - 88,639 3,160 205990

ERANBEEERAT T G458 233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

18. M3 - M= R &R (F)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

BT
HEMERES

Buildings

Leasehold improvements £

Z

i BRAREE

Equipment, furniture and fixtures

ME -~ BERREIIZERARERISRERE
WIABARER THIFRITE :

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
HEMRRSFE 2 REE

20%-25%

Plant and machinery BB K iEs 10%-20%
Motor vehicles RE 20%
19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EAEEE
Land use Office
rights Warehouse premises Total
11t f5 R EE  BAEYE wsr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—#-HA—H
Carrying amount REE 30,980 7,188 6,634 44,802
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_-F+-A=t+-H
Carrying amount REE 60,765 3,222 3,209 67,196
For the year ended BE-E-_5+-A=1+-H
31 December 2022 HEE
Depreciation charge HEEBR 1,123 3,286 5,583 9,992
Reclassified as held for disposal ENOBEBELE (4,153) - - (4,153)
For the year ended BZ-_Z-_-E+-fA=1+-H
31 December 2021 HEE
Depreciation charge HEER 1,162 2928 8944 13,034
2022 2021
—E- 8 - —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Expense relating to short-term leases %5 HATH & BRI X 2,106 2,202
Total cash outflow for leases HEZREmH R 12,511 10,382
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEENE 55,960 13,064
Impairment losses on right-of-use FREEEREEE
assets 6,056 -

234
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. EREEE (B

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 year to approximately 5 years, but may
have extension and termination options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable. The addition
of right-of-use from lease contracts with corresponding
lease liabilities during the year is HK$9,642,000 (2021:
HK$13,064,000).

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

Leases committed
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group does not
have new leases that have not yet commenced.

RAEFEE  A£EHHREZARAE BF
EREBEC R - HEANZEEFHAIFELNS
F o AR RAHHRA L - AERERIE
HERE - BESASETRNERRES - ©
B KGRI BUE M 2 RER - A%
EEAGHZEE  WET A EHTTE K28
M- AFEEMAEREABZHEANARER
FA##9,642,000/ 7t (ZZ = —4 : 13,064,000
BT °

BN AEEBRERETEAE (T2EHES
EREAIEZR) R AERT - XEEKZ
Sk (BEAEEEL) cEREE -
REBZEYERRR - B BN
Ko ZEBAYEZEE TINS5
WABRNRETEBILES -

EBREEE
R - KT —F+—_fF=+—H "
AEEWE S ARFARZFEL o

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F-—6+-A=+-ALEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 0. B EE
Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee costs know-how contracts Total
FTARE FER A BRI RPAH @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT FAT
COoST HA
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—f—H 106,531 1,224,006 71,339 27,514 1,429,390
Additions NE 14,179 41,562 - - 55,741
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBATF - (180) - - (180)
Exchange differences Exz2 2231 5,087 - - 7318
At 31 December 2021 W-E-—%#+-A=1—H 122,941 1,270,475 71,339 27,514 1,492,269
Additions AE 4,546 3,210 = = 7,756
Exchange differences EREZ (10,527) (108,811) = - (119,338)
At 31 December 2022 “E--#+-A=1-H 116,960 1,164,874 71,339 27,514 1,380,687
AMORTISATION AND BETAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 N\"Z-—F—H—H 97,383 1,166,699 71,339 27514 1,362,935
Charge for the year AEENK 8689 35,332 = = 44,021
Exchange differences ExkzZE 1,899 3871 = = 5,770
Impairment loss recognised RLREEE = 19,000 = = 19,000
Eliminated upon disposal of D EUNG [
subsidiaries - (18) - - (18)

At 31 December 2021 WZE-—%+-A=1—H 107,971 1,224,884 71,339 27,514 1,431,708
Charge for the year AEEMK 11,742 33,385 = - 45,127
Exchange differences ExkzE (9,245) (105,386) = = (114,631)
Impairment loss recognised WA REEE 5927 11,991 = = 17,918
At 31 December 2022 WZE-Z#+-A=+—H 116,395 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,380,122
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2022 W-Z-—#+-R=t+—-H 565 = = = 565
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+-f=1—H 14,970 45,591 = = 60,561

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

20.

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—F+-A=t—ALFE

BVEE (&

21.

Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of
the Group were acquired from third parties.

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
period:

Licence fee 1-5 years
Development costs 9 months-2 years
Technical know-how 5-8 years
Customer contracts 3 years

An impairment loss of HK$17,918,000 (2021: HK$19,000,000)
is recognised for intangible asset with finite useful lives. Details
are set out in note 21.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
IN HANDSETS AND IOT TERMINAL
BUSINESS

21.

AEBZFAEE  BERMATEFEAHA
BE=J7ES -

BYEECRFHRAR - BYEENERE
RAT HART# S

AR 1E=55F
R ofEl A =25
BE M BEBF
EFAH 3

BAEBRERFH B EERRRBERRE
17,918,000/ 7t (ZZ =—%F : 19,000,000/
7T) ° REEBARKIE2L

TR R M
BERDE ERAEEERENY
EEHERE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, due to the
adverse change in market condition as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic broke out in Shanghai, where the
principal activities of the Group are located, and the
excessive investments on the research and development
team, the revenue from handsets and I0OT terminal
business dropped and caused a significant operating loss.
The management concluded that there was indication of
impairment and conducted impairment assessment on the
recoverable amount of the assets allocated to the handsets
and IOT terminal business.

BE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HItFE &R
RNEEF BFTEM_EEEECOVID- 1915 BE
SRR E IR AR - 1 LS FEERBE
BE SFRRBEREERS 2 WA T
BEREAKEEE BEERATERAEDR
% WHHREFHRYBRKREENEE
Z AR E S EETRER o

EARKEEBRAR —T - 555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F-—6+-A=+-ALEE

21.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

21.

FRRYB AR IR 2 Y
BERRE EREEERER
EEREBR @

The recoverable amount was assessed based on the
discounted future pre-tax cash flows expected to be derived
from the assets. The key inputs and assumptions for the
value-in-use calculation relate to the estimation of cash
inflows and outflows, including budgeted sales, gross profit
margin, annual and terminal growth rates and discount rate
applied in the valuation conducted by the Valuer engaged
by the Company and the chief financial officer of the Group
works closely with the Valuer to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs. Such
estimation was based on the unit's past performance and
the management’s expectations on market development.
As at 31 December 2022, the calculation used cash flow
projections approved by the management covering the
following 5 years with annual growth rates estimated based
on historical records. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a 1% terminal growth rate.
The pre-tax discount rate applied was 16.8%.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management
determined that the recoverable amount of the handsets and
|IOT terminal business was lower than the carrying amount.
Impairment loss was allocated to each category of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not less than the highest of its
fair value less cost of disposal, its value-in-use and zero.
Therefore, no impairment loss was allocated to the buildings
and land use rights as their fair values less costs of disposal
were higher than the carrying amounts. Impairment loss of
HK$53,839,000, HK$6,056,000 and HK$17,918,000 were
recognised against the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives, respectively during the year ended
31 December 2022. After the impairment assessment,
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets of the Group
were HK$82,218,000, HK$67,196,000 and HK$565,000,
respectively.

A R TRIB AR B B B 2 B R KA
RIS RER L - EREEFE 2 HiE AR
BERRERSTARBEZEER - 21
AR BAERBGEMET 2 GEERZREH
TR ENE FERKREREARR
o MAKREABREEGEMEZESE - A
WS N EEE A E M BRI R RS 8 A RIE
ARG IRIEZEM BERAREIEEY
MSERZEHEL -RZT-_—F+_-A

=t—H AHERAEEEMIERER
REFZHRERETAD - WIRESL AT F

BEEX BBRAFHZRSREEM IR
IR R EIME - FRAZ AR T R16.8%

BB HER  SEEETE FE R AL
¥XzalbeERAKREE - REBED
PREAEERAUFEAFHIME - BEK
RiE FRREEREFREESEER - X
FEEEHEEZ REEMENE QA FER S
ERA - EFREBEERS 2PN ESE - B
It AR AFER L EKRARNERAE « #t
W AR SE R b RS BURERIE - #E
T —HF+-_A=Z+—HIEFE HREA
EERAEAFHZME  BERZE - &
AEEERENEEZEREE  ©95#ER
(B E51853,839,000/8 7T * 6,056,000/ 7T &
17,918,000/ 7T » £&UREFHHE - NEEZY
¥ BEIEE TRAREEREFEENIR
FE{ED 71| 482,218,000 7T + 67,196,000 7T
}:565,000/8 7T °
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22. DEFERRED TAX

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
— I+ RA=+—HIEFE

===
=

B

22. JEREBIA

The following are the deferred tax (liabilities) assets

recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during

the current and prior years.

T R RIS - AR B #R
IEIERIE (B 15) EERAMES -

Write-down of  Impairment of

Revaluation of  Development inventories property,  Revaluation of

equity cost and trade plant and investment
instrument at FVTOCI capitalised receivables equipment properties Total

BRATETA FEREN

At ENEZ BEAL Eakn W% BER RENE
RATAER BEAA R RERE Eff @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn TAn TAn TAn TAn
At 1 January 2021 R_Z2-—F—-f—-H (823) (7,950) 26,608 15,360 (105,631) (72,436)
Exchange differences ExzZ - (353) 2,068 129 (2,113) (269)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RERFTA MR - (3615) 9,542 - 1,157 7,084
Credit to other comprehensive income ~ AE 8 2 FIREPEA (456) - - - (7.484) (7,940)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (773) - - (773)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+-A=1-H (1,279) (11918) 37,445 15,489 (114,071) (74.334)
Exchange differences ExzZ 130 1,207 (2,580) (557) 11,280 9480
Credit (charge) to profit or loss PEREA G5 - 10,711 (20919) (9,052) 9,345 (9.915)
Credit to other comprehensive income  REM2ERETEA (157) - - - (21,629) (21,786)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ&+=A=1-H (1,306) = 13,946 5,880 (115,075) (96,555)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FEFRIAEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE R

AT Ot 5 5 P VR 2 IR SE B AR AT

2022 2021
—E-CF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T

- 68,824
(96,555) (143,158)
(96,555) (74,334)

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

22. IEETIE ()

Other than the deferred tax assets and liabilities mentioned
above, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$787,376,000 (2021: HK$619,556,000) available
for offset against future profit. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$787,376,000 (2021: HK$619,556,000)
with expiry dates as disclosed in the following table.

2022 T _F
2023 —E-=F
2024 :;:E¢
2025 e S
2026 :2:/\¢
2027 T tF

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$472,054,000 (2021: HK$806,084,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

B EatiRERIIEE E R AEI - $E@7ﬁ_ﬂi§f)
PR I8 E1849787,376,000/ T (- B = —4F ¢
619,556,000 7T) A 4K 85 R 2R F o AR
RAm AR AT - I B RIRERRIEE
E o RERRIEEBEEIEL787,376, ooo,%n:
(ZZ——% : 619,556,000/ 7T) 2 518 - H
FHA B N T RATHEE ©

2022 2021
—E- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FH&T

- 105,252
145,428 145,428
140,476 140,476
105,600 105,600
122,800 122,800
273,072 -
787,376 619,556

RIEPECEMEHE  URERBARNR=
TT)\F— A —BEABEUEFE RO EA
%&ﬁ,@m (R A B SRR MR A kA B R B
71% 25 A Y B £ %84 72,054,00078 7T (=
—4F : 806,084,000 7T) E i i 1T i 78
f% C REANEE AR GIZE TR EE D
Brf DA RS s A 2R 7E 0] RS SRR K Al
RERD -



23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

23. RFE N A 2w

Costs of investments in unlisted RIEETMEE AR Z
associates & Z AR
Share of post-acquisition profit pak e d L il

The Group had interests in the following associates:

Form of
business Country of
Name of entity structure incorporation
RE%R EHGRY BUEAEES
Shanghai Jizhi Automation Incorporated The PRC
Technology Co., Limited
(“Shanghal Jizhi‘)
DEREEBHRRRAT  EMAT e
(g
LERSNBENEERAT  Incorporated The PRC
(Ns:5)
ML e
Shanghai Zhenkang Electronics  Incorporated The PRC
Limited (*Shanghai Zhenkang”)
LEERETHRAT Rl Gl
wi:2 )

Principal
place of
operation

TRERE

The PRC

k]

The PRC

b

The PRC

e

Class of
share held

FrEREER

Registered
capital

HER
Registered
capital

Registered
capital

2022 2021
—E-8F —E -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
46,868 47914
13,188 11,699
60,056 59,613

REBN THIEE QR P HEE R

Proportion of Proportion
registered capital of voting
held by the Group power held Principal acivities
K&
ERERLH igstes ] IERR
% % % %
2022 201 2022 201
“E-CE -E--F ZBCCE CECE
49 1) 49 49 Development of automated
fest equipment in the PRC
49 I 49 4 ErEREE R
40 40 40 40 Software development
40 0 40 4 il
415 415 415 415 Development of handsets
(Note ) (Note /) and 10T terminals busingss
in PRC
415 415 415 415 alTEES
W) M) eEk

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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)

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTINUED)

23. REE N T 2 s ()

Note:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into a sale agreement to dispose of its 8.6% equity interest
in Shanghai Zhenkang that support the Group’s handset and
I0T Terminals business in the PRC. The Group originally owns
50.1% equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang. The disposal was
completed on 16 April 2021, on which date the Group lost control
of Shanghai Zhenkang. With 41.5% equity interest in Shanghai
Zhenkang, the directors of the Company conclude that the Group
no longer controls but has significant influence over Shanghai
Zhenkang and therefore it becomes as an associate of the Group.
The fair value of the Group’s investment in Shanghai Zhenkang on
16 April 2021 is HK$2,234,000. In addition, the Group injected
an additional RMB4,150,000 (equivalent to HK$5,007,000)
into Shanghai Zhenkang for the new registered capital issued by
Shanghai Zhenkang in July 2021, in which the new registered
capital were contributed by the shareholders in proportion of their
shareholdings.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is
not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.

Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

HiaF -
(i) HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—BItFE ' K&
B EH#E  UEEHER EEEE (ZAR

AR B R B F R P AR AR ) &)
8.6% Mk HE - ANEE R IAA LIBERM50.1% 0%
B ZEHEER -2 - —FA+NARK
REENZBREY LEERMEGIE - BRE

EBEREFILLS%RE MARRESTRAR
EETHES LSRR BHEBEATES
HitZ AR AREBEREE AR - REERZ
T_—FHOA+ANAY LDFERNRENAFE
£2,234,000/ 7T © BEAN - AREE A BT EEEN
£ & ARK4,150,0007T (#8%75,007,000/8 70)
R EBEFN -2 - —F+ARTHHTME
AN HRFEMEARBREIRE S Z R LA
ﬁ °

ﬁ%@?%ﬁ%huﬁfﬁ$ﬁlﬁ%§@¢

EEAEBREZER AR N EZE
E-pNIEYHID
EMERVBERBREIAREE - BAEEAR
SEMSIETERK °

ERRENRCUMBEREE
TX#HINAEEERHENRZHBEERE
Z - LT BEMS 2 RRIREERE RS
ERRE B E R RS RRATE RS

RERA T FERES - BEE QR JIRA
JENER ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

23. REE DT 2 s (8

Summarised financial information of material associates
(CONTINUED)

Shanghai Jizhi

Current assets MENE E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mENEE
Revenue WA

Profit for the year N g F

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of Shanghai Jizhi BB EEETE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REFR EEHE 2
interest in Shanghai Jizhi A RERE = L1
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZNEE B F/FH#E 7

in Shanghai Jizhi EmAEREE

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

ERBENRUHEREE (B

FTHRE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
133,744 116,415
10,043 13,755
(38,838) (34,064)
208,552 210,509
17,897 34,184

VA £ A 75 B T 22 BRI R 6 B 76 R o P o8
KBS R R 2 ) AR E{E AR

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
104,949 96,106
49% 49%
51,425 47,092

BRI ER B N T NAEER

2022 2021

—E- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FET

The Group's share of losses AEE E(GEE (3,830) (1,726)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBRZEBE AT

Group’s interests in these associates  fExH 425 BREIE 8,631 12,521

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

24. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/ 24. AV EFAEMEZEH KR E R
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL AIE BAFEFABENE
A& E
2022 2021
—E-CH& T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEF AR MEERERN
comprise : RATAEBIE
Unlisted equity securities outside REBUINE ETRAFES
Hong Kong, at fair value (note) (BRAFE) Kit) 61,376 63,112
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise: BATEFAEGNEHEERE !
Listed equity securities in REB EMBRAES (RATE)
Hong Kong, at fair value 1,602 4,152
Note: Bt -
The Group’s unlisted equity securities investments in 2022 represent the REBR-_ZE-—F 2k FTRAZFFRERN =FHE
2.1997%, 14.97% and 10% equity interests respectively in three private FREK ZIEBEDRIFE 22.1997% « 14.97% &
entities established in PRC. The directors have elected to designate these 10% % - EEREEBZSREBTEAERATETA
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Hit2EBam s RATE -
25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
2022 2021
—E-CH& T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Raw materials B 130,959 184,062
Work in progress ERE 29,811 25,320
Finished goods 25K M 25,009 35,379
185,779 244,761
26. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 26. FIESHEME
The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the AEEFEHEMELMAP R - FIBEIFIEH
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of EWFEL AR K ] I8 FE 2 BIREFIE -

cost and net realisable value.
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27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

7. R B S MEE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to handsets and IOT terminals business and Electronics
manufacturing services business is 0-90 days. A longer
period is granted to a few customers with whom the Group
has a good business relationship and which are in sound
financial condition. There is no credit given to sales of
properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for credit losses, as well as notes receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of
the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 8RR
0-30 days TEI0K
31-60 days 31 £60K
61-90 days 61290k
91-180 days 91£180K
Over 180 days HBiB180K

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE

Trade receivables FEUCE ZERR

Notes receivables (Note) FEWERIR (H752)
0-30 days T E30K
31-60 days 31£60K
61-90 days 61E90K
91-180 days 91£180K
Over 180 days HBAE180K

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks
received from the customers.

S BT R B AR AR S B T RS R TS
HEREBABCERZ —REEHATED
R o PEEAKEARFRBRE AR
REZEFEERRZEEH - WEMKHEY

RRTEEH -

AT RIS IR (REERRAZ BHIREE) &
WE 5 ER (MR EEBERRR URBKERE

RER AL ZBREEDHT

2022 2021
—EC-CH& T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
35,399 57,907
7,746 6,356
1,894 7,289
814 15,408
66,133 30,955
111,986 117,915
(38,863) (27,290)
73,123 90,625
994 5,034

48 495

818 13
2,708 1,832
112 245
4,680 7,619
77,803 98,244

Hiet - BIREBRRRESWERRITE 2 AR -

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

7. Et R B S B E E ()

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due characteristics and
on management’s judgement including creditworthiness, the
past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$50,186,000 (2021: HK$42,208,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$ Nil (2021: HK$1,156,000) has been past due
30 days or more and is not considered as in default because
there was no historical default of payments by the respective
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables of
HK$20,490,000 (2021: HK$6,031,000) are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD"), which are not denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 are set out in
note 42.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EWMEMHEPA  AEESHEEETPH
FEERIRETPNEERSE - TFPRES
FEAMAK - ARBEAREK - RESHEEK
B 5 MR B 2 AT E AR A Ad S Bk ik D AT
(MEREHIREEE K erEE AR BE
HOB)AREEE 2 HE (BREEFE - B
EERCERAELEN)  BEHEEEE
BBEBYE -

R-ZT-—F#+-F=+—H KEENHE
WESERREHBEERBEEHEBHW
BRI 4218 450,186,000/ 0 (ZE = —%F
42,208,000/ T) H) FE UK BR X o 7R HA 45 &4
o EBRTT(ZEZ—%F : 1,156,000 T) B
EHASOKR S A H B EWAR BEL - TIHRAE
BREIWERELNFEL - AEBWERZE
EHRFBAMEER - AEEWERZSEH
BAEAEER -

RZZZ_F+ZH=+—8H - 20,490,000%
T (ZE=—% : 6,031,000 ) I EKE 5
BRASETT ([T ) FHE - WIFARRESREE
BBHInaE EHEHE -

HE-_Z-_—FR-_ZF-_—F+-_A=+—H
I FERKE SRR REMGFBEH AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

27. EtREEMEE (@)

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be
settled within twelve months after the end of reporting period.
Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to third

parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits

and prepayments:

VAT recoverables

Deposits paid to suppliers for
purchasing inventories

Prepayments

Rental and utility deposits

Other receivables

AT Bl (A
RBEEFENT
HEBmZZE

FBERIR
HERKEEZES
Hitb YRR

HAb R IR AREIEIR - 28 MR IREH
BT_EARNEE - RETERINTE=

ZERE -

AT REMEKRER ReRENFKEBEZD

#r
2022 2021
—EC-CH& —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FHT
27,480 69,386
25,595 58,188
8,471 9,323
1,063 2,390
4,809 20,693
67,418 159,980

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

HttREBEREE (@)

The following is the breakdown of consideration receivables:

Current BNHA
Non-current JEBNHR

The consideration receivables represent the sales
consideration from the disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries
in which the amounts are repayable in accordance with the
terms of sales and purchase agreements. Details are set out
in note 40.

Amounts due from associates
Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of other financial assets

for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set
out in note 42.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

AT AU BERA -
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
25,147 23,214
17,227 34,443
42,374 57,657

RRRERELEANEENBARMNHERE
HAZEFRARBEERRIGHEE - 715

FAKIEE40 ©

PEM B D R FOR
BRFRAEER  REREEREE -

HE-_T-—"FR-_F-_—F+-_F=+—H
IEFEEME S EMRETGFBEHRM T
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e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT- 28. B HIRITER /%_Lﬁﬂﬂﬂ'{’_ra'k
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK RRTHEGBRIRE
BALANCES AND CASH
The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly AEBZIRTEBEIRETEUARE BT
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances NETTEHE o IRITHEBRIDFEF R L - F15
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2021: FREBIBE(CZE=Z—F : 1[E) - RITEHK
1%) per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash, Re  BHRTERARBERRITERAR
short-term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits was FE—EUARKEZKIE311,372,000/8 T
an amount of HK$311,372,000 (2021: HK$268,325,000) (ZZE——14 : 268,325,000/ 7T) * ZSHIH
denominated in RMB, which is not freely convertible into TR ERERSHME o
other currencies.
The Group’s bank deposits of HK$165,846,000 (2021: REBR B _F+-_HA=+—HBZRITHF
HK$16,145,000) as at 31 December 2022 were pledged £165,846,000/8 7T (ZZ = —4F : 16,145,000
to secure the short-term general banking facilities granted BT B TR ERIRTTE TR E—MRIR
by banks and the issuance of discounted bills (2021: short- TRERETURER(CE—F : R1IK
term general banking facilities). R B — MR TREE) 2 3 o
At 31 December 2022, short-term deposits receive fixed RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H " RIHEAE
interest rates range from 1.25% to 5.64% (2021: 1.45% to = @A EZ TR EURF K125 EFE
4.02%) per annum with original maturity over three months. 5.64B(ZZT-—4F : 145FEE4.02E):tE 2

LT -

At 31 December 2022, bank balances, short-term bank RZZEZ—_F+—RA=+—H " UETFHEN
deposits and pledged bank deposits of HK$213,234,000 IRITES  HARTHERRERRPRITERE
(2021: HK$279,791,000) are denominated in USD, which 213,234,000 T (ZZE = —4 : 279,791,000
are not denominated in the functional currency of the BIT) c BRARENIEARBEEEERAIE
respective group entities. HEEHE -

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2. emEE

Trade and notes payables, other payables and accruals,
deposits from tenants and deferred income principally
comprise amounts outstanding for trade purposes and
ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

BN E SRR N RE - RN RREIE R
B MAEREMEERATERREBEIRGEZ
AENFIAARFFHERA o

ENEZRRARRE
BNEZERNEBEIRERAEEZEIR
BoE - BHRBZ—MREEHARIVEIX °
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. TRA & ()

AT RRBERRIEE 2N ESRARE
BRENBESRACBEEAHAENER 2%

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the

invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes o BHATED 2 BRER AT ¢
payables is as follows:
2022 2021
—EZCF —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
0-30 days TE30K 94,444 124,475
31-60 days 31 260X 10,581 3,144
61-90 days 61290k 4,202 4,844
Over 90 days HiBI0K 13,116 46,027
Trade payables B E SRR 122,343 178,490
Notes payables FE
0-30 days FTE30K 34,817 40,362
157,160 218,852

As at 31 December 2022, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$26,633,000 (2021: HK$16,834,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other payables and accruals, deposits from tenants and
deferred income
The following is the breakdown of other payables and

R-Z-—F+-F=+—H ENZEZEX
MEERNBIEAEITAHE 2 50IH26,633,00078
TT(ZZE=——4 : 16,834,000/ 7T) * BREZIE
WIEA RSB TR ERTE -

HttENRRARESTRE HEREE
WA
AT REAMENRSR LB E - AERER

accruals, deposits from tenants, and deferred income:

Deferred income (note) B A (H122)

Payables on acquisition of property, IWEEMIZ ~ BB &
plant and equipment R 2 FETBR R

Accruals FERTFIE

VAT payables FERHGET

Other payables E b R AR R

Deposits from tenants HREE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

FABEFERA Z 5T

2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT BT
40,744 45,736
- 2,566
38,948 30,236
566 4,193
9,405 11,021
8,908 13,088
98,571 106,840
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e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

29. TR A E (@)

2022 2021
—E-CF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Deferred income EIEW A
Current bink)] 1,136 1,307
Non current IERED 39,608 44,429
40,744 45,736
2022 2021
—EC-CH& T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Deposits from tenants HEZRS
Current e 2,242 5,468
Non current IERE 6,666 7,620
8,908 13,088

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$40,744,000 (2021:
HK$45,736,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting
to HK$39,608,000 (2021: HK$44,429,000) represented the
income that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within
12 months of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates
of the related assets and therefore has been presented to non-
current liabilities.

Bt RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 AEEERF

18 B A Z IR E WA 40,744,000 T (ZF = —
4 : 45,736,000/ 7T) - BFHEBKRATI AR
I EEEFRE LM 2 - ARKEY
¥ BERRE - A5 M EERE WA
R BRI RN AR EE 2 R
EiE5 c BNBEBRAZELERATRIE—2
39,608,000/ 7T (= ZF = —4F : 44,429,000/ 7T.)
ZHE - BEEEEECTER - HHARMHNA
TERRERBRI2EAARBERTEER - A
I RFRBAME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

30. BNAE

Sale of handsets and |OT terminals ~ $5& F# & WIE 48 4% i

Electronics manufacturing services & FEUE RIS L ERS
Sale of properties HEMZE

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$129,615,000.

Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within the
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and
2022, the entire balances are recognised as revenue to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2022
and expected to be recognised during the year ending 31
December 2023, respectively.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and IOT terminals

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—fF
+=A=+—-8B +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
105,893 123,232

- 2,730

- 450

105,893 126,412

R-ZTE-_—F—F—H &H8EA
129,615,000 7T ©

BEHMERAKELREERANEENANEA
BERBEAREREFERE RIRFHZE
BEEDBRAHERE -

R B —FR = _—F+_A=+—H
MWENBEMS @ 2BEHRHEDINREBEZZ
—oF+ A=+ HIEFENBETERE
WARBHEREBE T _=F+-_A=+—H
IEFERER -

HEERENEBENSREEZEN RN
T

HEFERRMBRR IR
HARERHEERATKIUZE - EKRE
HFBERBEEANEE  BEEABAKM
ERZWABBREFIARLE - AEEBRER
HEE@ATER30% E50% H RS
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

30. WA E @

31.

Sales of properties

The Group receives a percentage of contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The percentage are specific to
each contracts based on the location and selling price of
the properties. The deposits result in contract liabilities
being recognised until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

BANK BORROWINGS

HEME

AEERBEFPEF EEBARARSURAL
BEMNEX-BDLIERZE - BHEKIR
EYEONEREEREREEME DL
BRELANAERNEFPRBHERIMENE
42 B T LARERR. ©

31. SRITEE

B HIRITER
(Hfa£1)

Unsecured short-term bank
borrowings (Note 1)
Secured discounted bills (Note 2)

Notes:

1. The short-term bank borrowings are unsecured, interest bearing
at China Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) minus base point of 55% and
LPR minus base point of 50% (2021: London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) plus base point of 70% and LIBOR plus base
point of 90%), respectively and repayable within one year from
the date of withdrawal. The bank borrowings are denominated in
RMB (2021: USD). The LIBOR loans were fully repaid during the
year, therefore there is no impact to the Group from the interest
rate benchmark reform.

2. As at 31 December 2022, discounted bills included an amount
HK$173,040,000 denominated in RMB, which was the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group, and were secured
by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 28. The average
effective interest rates of the discounted bills at 1.95% per
annum. Bills were issued through intra-group transactions and the
relevant group entities discounted the bills to independent third
parties. The bills receivable and payable issued between group
entities were fully eliminated on consolidation.

BEMURER (HiZ2)

2022 2021
—E- —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT BT
67,200 41,851
173,040 -
240,240 41,851

Wikt

1. BHRTEEREER RPEERTIZRE
F = ([LPRJ) B55% H B B LPRIFIS0% EE (=
T —F : RBRITEZEFFERN X (TLIBOR]) AN
70% 52 R LIBORANOO% £ 2) 5t & » ZAMNIREL
AHREI—FAEE - RITBEEUAARE (ZF
Z—% : 7T)5HE ° LIBORE B MAFEEEE
B8 ARMEEENFHAEELELE -

2. R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 HREERF
NEEEEER IR EBARBEZSH
173,040,000/ 7T, + M LABT 3328 F7 4 55 2 B 4
RITERIEREIR - BRIRERZ THERFR X
R1.95F - REZHRBBEBNILRZFHEIT - M
HRSEEREERRRTELIE=) - £EE
BEMETZ BB RENEERGE ARK2E
HH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

32. HEEE

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years

Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under
current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 2.90% to 5.66% (2021: from

2.90% to0 5.66%).

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

As at 31 December 2022
As at 31 December 2021

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
ERHESE
—FR 6,884 6,019
— B ERE A
4,216 3,834
W14 T TL4E A HAR]
2,018 4,720
13,118 14,573
B RBBEFRR 12E A BIEEE
2B
(6,884) (6,019)
FERBEEARNI2MEA B S E
Z50A 6,234 8,554

FERAREEABENNETLHEEEENXA
290EES66E(ZZE-—%F : 290EE5.66
[E) -

T ESIA RS EERNINEEBININZE

WEHENRERLT
HK$’000
TR
R-—B-—_%+-A=+-H 218
R-ZB-_—%+-A=+—H 72



33. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2021,
31 December 2021 and
31 December 2022

Issued:
At 1 January 2021
Exercise of share options (Note 37)
Shares repurchased
and cancelled

At 31 December 2021
Exercise of share options (Note 37)
Shares repurchased

and cancelled

At 31 December 2022

BREEC.1ETT LR

BT

RZE=_—F—HF—H

TTERERHE (12237)
v $AEPSEE SN )

WoB=—#+=A=

TTLRERAE (B2237)

- SAEYSEEE Sl
RZZE-_—F+=-A=

33. ®RA
Number Share
of shares capital
RHEE €S
'000 HK$'000
T FAT
%
E| N
=+—HEK
=+—A 3,000,000 300,000
2,362,546 236,254
2,153 215
(84,922) (8,492)
=+—H 2,279,777 227,977
1,050 105
(82,302) (8,230)
=+—H 2,198,525 219,852
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 33. BRA& (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company BE-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE &R
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock AIRBE R FTIEA T AR BEARA G E@A

Exchange as follows:

Number of Aggregate

ordinary consideration

shares paid (before

Month of repurchase repurchased Purchase price per share expenses)

EfERE

| A 4 BEEBEREE BREEE (RHNERBER)

000 Highest Lowest HK$’000

TR BS &K FET

HK$ HK$
BT BT

January 2022 20,648 0.480 0.455 9,685
—E-_—_F—H

May 2022 3,260 0.320 0.290 1,006
—E- A A

June 2022 6,686 0.370 0.330 2,397
ZECZCFRA

July 2022 11,966 0.345 0.300 4,001
R FERA

October 2022 9,418 0.305 0.270 2,763
—E——#+A

November 2022 18,638 0.335 0.290 6,019

ZEZF+—A
70,616 25,871

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company BE_Z__F+_A=1+—HILFE ' &Q
repurchased 70,616,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate AIARRAE 25,871,000/ 0B [2170,616,0000%
consideration of HK$25,871,000, all of which were cancelled LB TEZERMHEERFRTE - 82
during the year. None of the Company’s subsidiaries —E-—F+-A=1+—BIEFE  ARFH
BRAIMERE  LEXBOARTEM LW
securities during the year ended 31 December 2022. T o

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
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SHARE CAPITAL (conTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. A& (@)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as

BE-_BE-_—F+-_A=1+—RHItFE  &Q
FEREHMRATIRA T A RER B H/H ¢

follows:

Aggregate
consideration
paid (before

Number of
ordinary
shares
Month of repurchase repurchased
fBE A 47 BEEBERHE
000
TR
July 2021 8,286
—E-—F+tA
September 2021 28,094
—E=—FNA
October 2021 11,812
—E-—F1+A
November 2021 12,598
—E—F+—H
December 2021 35,818
—E-—%+=A
96,608

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
repurchased 96,608,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$40,853,000 including which
84,922,000 ordinary shares are cancelled upon repurchased
and the remaining 11,686,000 ordinary shares are cancelled
in January 2022. None of the Company’s subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s list
securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Purchase price per share expenses)
EfERE
BREBEE (RHERBER)
Highest Lowest HK$’000
BS 454(: FET
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0.440 0.400 3,544
0.415 0.380 11,426
0.420 0.400 4,877
0.430 0.405 5,334
0.460 0.410 15,672
40,853

BE_E-—S+-A=1+—HILFE &2
T LA 48 (E40,853,00078 7T 3% [2196,608,0004%
TBA% - Hrh84,922, 000A% & A BE (] A 51
85+ #2417 11,686,000f EBRAIN =T =4
— A o BE—TE-_—F+=-A=+—H1t
FE ARAINBARMEREE HEXERD
RNRABMEA ETHEES
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F-—6+-A=+-ALEE

34. RESERVES

34, #E

Properties revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2021
Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

At 31 December 2021
Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

At 31 December 2022

Assets revaluation reserve
At 1 January 2021
Fair value change on investments

in equity instruments at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2021
Fair value change on investments
in equity instruments at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2022

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

MEEMRE

R-_F_—%—F—H
EMEREREEE K

R-FZ—HF+ZA=+—H
BEMRRERERE 2K

KRB —_F+-_A=+—H

BEEHRER

R=F=—%—A—A

REREAFEF AR M2 EK S
MR T B AT EES

R-B-—F+=-A=+—H
WERIR A ET AR MR
BT B2 A TEEEE)

‘\—7——@5—'— H + E

HK$'000
THETT

234,396

23,804
258,200

75,056
333,256

HK$'000
TAETT

1,945

1,449
3,394

473
3,867



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

34.RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34. #E (&
HK$'000
FAET
Translation reserve BEHE
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—HF—H 188,183
Exchange differences arising on BMEZZY|EBEENEXER
translation to presentation
currency 16,612
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB R A 1,075
At 31 December 2021 Rn—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 205,870
Exchange differences arising on BMEEZ2Y|ERELNERER
translation to presentation
currency (122,345)
At 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—F+—-HA=+—H 83,525
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 5. R&EBEELTHE
The Group as lessor AEEERHEA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for FBERAEZYENEREAEYN—EAZELE
approximately 1 month to 7 years (2021: 6 months to 8 CE=—F: XMEARENF) -
years).
Minimum lease properties receivables on leases are as EHAMHERWNRERSENRIBAT
follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CH& T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Within one year —FR 43,368 5,293
In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_EERF(HEEMFRIEEN) 96,249 116,758
After five years RF% 8,372 13,584
147,989 135,635
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

36. RIKFHETE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to
join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$63,737,000 (2021:
HK$55,884,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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REBRBRBMEABSTEENAEEMBER
BIEBRY —HBESE - MTBERBENR
EEREHAEMARESTE - HFIZESE
REHFEME—BHLLIEL - WIRKRBE TS
ZIRBIRE T 2R AR & B R R - 988
CEElCEERASBNAEMEES FER -
H—BUBREsEESRR - ERRESFTEIH
R AEEEEHZEE2HEBREEM
B RZEZZFRZZFE_—F+ZA=1+—
A - WESLU 2 AR BRI AS S B R AR 2R
FEZENMER

AEERPEZHBRARERTEZERR
A 28 —IREZE I A E BT E R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. BT E

The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively.
The major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set
out below:

(A)  Post-IPO Options
(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i) The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as
the Directors may consider appropriate.

(iii)  On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000
shares) and in any event the total maximum
number of shares which might be issued or
issuable upon exercise of all outstanding options
should not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

(iv)  The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. No consideration is required to be paid
by the grantee for the grant of options.

(v)  The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

o the nominal value of the share.

ARBEMBRBRETE - BRERAREE
BBEAEA B (AR AFBERBRETS))
KBt 8 (B RERT3)) - BRAR
BERBRESE BRSO IR _F
ZERFRAR=TERZZE—RERNA—BER
o MIERTEIZ T2 HFHENT

(A) BRAMBERBRETS
(i) BRMERZEERHEHE -

(iy 2HEEBFEEAREREINITES "
ARBESAIRERREBELEMA
A

iy RZZTZENF+=ZA+=H - &F2
AIRRIEN BB —TBRRRE TS
XA EREREE210%—
B ER o IRIBE X AFREERER
TEETEIR] T 15 A ARAE AT Y
ERRHEE  THBAR-ZZ
NE+—B+—_RDBTRGH
10% (BN151,749,0008% &%) - M
EATEFTA MR T 2 B A i o]
BEE BT BITZRERMNEA
o ERMATEREANA BT
RHRE 1 TARA 230% ©

(iv)  FERRAE 2 B (BB ) W ERE
L HBEAEEEBANED -
AR A DEGER 2 BRES AR
{g °

v) BREZTEENERNUTZES
x
. R B EARR 9 2 W T (B

e EERREBHFAERKZH
Befn 2 FHWTHE : &

s RipZEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

37. BBRERT 8 (80)

(A)

Post-IPO Options (CONTINUED)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015. No further option can be
granted thereafter but provisions of the Post-IPO
Options shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Options to eligible participants
thereof, including certain employees and
business partners of the Group (“Grantees”).
The Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 63,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company upon exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.
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(A)

BRORBERBRESS (B

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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- BEERAHEERERES
ZIEXERB R EIDA T 'R
AR

RZF—=FtHThB QA
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. BB 8 (30

(B) New Share Options

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other eligible
participants as set out in the scheme rules.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Options and any
other scheme of the Group must not exceed
255,789,630 shares, being 10% of shares in
issue on the day which the New Share Options
was approved by the shareholders, unless
approval of the shareholders has been obtained,
and which must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares,
which represents 11.63% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the
grantee an acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less
than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects.

(B) #rREIR#ESHE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BRER2EERIAE -

2EEQRIMREINTES
ARGt BIR RIS 2 bR ER S
B o

RTS8 R AN SR B T A
fOETEING TR 2 BT A AR T
FEmA] FEITZESRMNEE TE
B38255,789,630/% i1 + BN#TEE
AR SIS A BT
7210% * BRIEBEVSARERBLAE -
MEZERT - BEINRTEBBT
B B3 1TD 230% » RANTRE
BH - RN AERT B AT (3877
AR B 255,789,630 A%
7 BERAREBHPARFE R
TN 211.63% °

B 2 2 (TR B 1) W BIR
B HIREA A X B AR - &%
BRAREXBEEASNREDE

JG ©

BRIEZTEELATIRUATZ

o
BX =)

o REHAMBROZIWKHE :

o EEREAHFAERKZH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

37. BBRERT 8 (80)

(B)

New Share Options (coNTINUED)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

No share options were granted or cancelled
under the New Share Options during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—F+-A=t—ALFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 37. BBIRAERTEI (&)

The following table disclose details of the Post-IPO Options TRFEBAFARBEE R AFARERERET
held by the grantee and movements in such holdings: S 2B B RS R B
Outstanding at
Exercise Outstanding at 31 December
price 1 January 2022 2022
Category of Name per share R=B=Z% Exercised Lapsed during R=B=Z%
participants of scheme  Date of grant Exercisable period B -A-A during the year the year +=B=1-H
SHEERR STEER RHAH s i@ HRITHE R EREY HRITHE
(Note) HKS
i) BT
Employees of the Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023
Group 0.346 7,146,000 (1,050,000) - 6,096,000
r5BES BERAREER  -F-=F C—Z-nEmATRAZ
BRETE  tAthB  ZEZ=£tAt/\A
Consultants Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023 0.346 45,400,000 - - 45,400,000
el BRORRER T _E-TENATREAZR
BREE  tAThE ZE-=FtATAR
Total 52,546,000 (1,050,000) - 51,496,000
@t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 51,49,000
RERA T
QOutstanding at
Exercise Qutstanding at 31 December
price 1 January 2021 2021
Category of Name per share j———a Exercised Lapsed during WE-—F
participants ofscheme  Date of grant Exercisable period i —R-A during the year the year +=A=+H
SEERH HE 2 b=k 168 1B WAL FRTIfE ERER WAL
(Note) HKS
i) B
Employees of the Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 15.4.2015-18.7.2023
Group 0.346 9,896,000 (2,153,000) (597,000) 7,146,000
r5BES BRARRER  —T-=f _E-TENATHEAZR
BREE  tAThE  ZE-=FtATAR
Consultants Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 15.4.2015-18.7.2023 0.346 45,400,000 - - 45,400,000
el BRORRER T _T-TENATREAZR
BREE tAthB  ZZZ=£tATNH
Toal 55,296,000 (2,153,000) (597,000) 52,546,000
&5t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 52,546,000
RERT F3fE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

37.

BT 8 ()

38.

Note: In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the

four year from 15 April 2014.

In respect of the options granted on 19 July 2013, the closing
price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$0.335.

In respect of the options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2022, the weighted average closing price of the shares
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised
was approximately HK$0.44.

The grantees who were consultants of the Group are Mr Lin Bifen
and Mr Tang Yuanyi. The share options were granted to them so as
to incentivise them to contribute to the research and development
activities of the Group.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no share option expense with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the Group’s share option reserve has been
recognised.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

38.

B - BRBERARABERBREABN " —=F
TtATHAERERE 2 SLZEARAMS - B
Z—ENA+ R ARNEFESFFIEHF25%
2R HERE

BR-ZFB—=FtATHhARLNERENS -
PRAD PR BRI B HIRT MU /B /80,3358 7T

MEE-—T-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEFERTE
RREIRIE S - REEARETE B IR M &0
EFHRTTEL A0.4478TT °

MBEFERBE TR G E RN EBERNFAR
A o RRERDERES EHBRS RAEEN
MEEBEL TR -

RELBHFETRREERE 2 BREL AT
EREEHX  WeRALEE > BREEE
ERERAR BE_T_—_SKR_T_—%F
+-—A=1+—HLLFE  VEBRIENLTER
IR AR R AR AR 2 PR AR 1 o

eI R

On 30 September 2020 (“Date of Adoption”), the Board
adopted the Share Award Scheme of issued shares of the
Company for the purposes of recognising the contributions
by certain employees, Directors, and consultants of the
Company (“Eligible Persons”) and giving incentives thereto
in order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group and attracting suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

The total number of the shares to be awarded pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the Date of
Adoption (i.e. 236,509,030 Shares). In any 12-month period,
the maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a
selected person shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the Shares as at the Date of Adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

38. KRR B EE (8

39.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing on the Date of Adoption,
after which period no further awards will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Award Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
vesting of any awards granted prior to the expiration of the
Share Award Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share of the
Company was awarded under this share award scheme. As
at 31 December 2022, there are 41,630,000 shares (2021:
41,630,000 shares) held for such scheme, representing
1.89% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of
this report with carrying amount of HK$16,623,000 (2021:
HK$16,623,000) accumulated in employee share trust
reserve.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

SO8

BROFEESRIBR D REF BN G MR TR
#21E - B BIR 2R AT 188 B R Am B B AT+
FRABRALAER - HmE NG — SR RE
(EEATX) - L R Bl EmAT 21X
HAERRB A AREREN S ERBUZNER
TR AR BB 8] 2 R & B R E AT
T B SRR B IR ID A 2B B KA
R o

BE-BE-_—_F+-_A=1+—RHIEFE AR
AL EAR PR AR (0 SR ED AT 21 1E D (AT ARt 2R -
R-ZB-_—F+—-A=+—0  #%t2HE
41,630,000/ %17 (ZZF =—4F : 41,630,000
MR D) - HERARGRAIRE HHHE 8
ThB21.89%  NEBRGETHEEBRST
ZBEEEA16,623,0008 T (2= —4% :
16,623,000/ 7T) °

B fp SRR Bl 2 RN AR R B A —FT =
ZENR=THZRE °

BEALRS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

pSEEER]
BERIZ AR A

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

TEEEAS ZHM
RAEE G FIOMEBERREFTMENE
ZEBRABMEMT

2022 2021
—E-CHf —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FHT
5,595 3,323

440 289

6,035 3,612

EENTETBRABZMERTFHEZESRKE
BAEBKEREE BAARREZEERER
BETIZBERETE °
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

40. HEMNE L F

For the year ended 31 December 2021
a) Disposal of Shanghai Yunhao Group

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement to disposal of its entire 98.7% equity
interest in Shanghai Yunhao, indirect subsidiaries of
the Company, to an independent third party of the
Group, at a cash consideration of HK$40,811,000.
The disposal was completed on 6 April 2021, on
which date when the control of Shanghai Yunhao was
passed to acquirer. The Group’s 10T system and 020
business are treated as discontinued operations.

b) Disposal of Shanghai Zhenkang

Tthe Group has entered into another sale agreement
to dispose of its 8.6% equity interest in F/EZ=FE
FABR A F(unofficial English name being Shanghai
Zhenkang Electronics Limited) (“Shanghai Zhenkang”)
that support the Group’s 10T system and 020
business, to independent third party of the Group, at
a cash consideration of RMB800,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,032,000). The Group originally owns 50.1%
equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang. The disposal
was completed on 16 April 2021, on which date the
Group lost control of Shanghai Zhenkang. With 41.5%
equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang, the Directors
conclude that the Group no longer controls but has
significant influence over Shanghai Zhenkang and
therefore it becomes as an associate of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. HEME AT (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (coNTINUED)

c)

Disposal of Shenzhen Kongtop

On 26 November 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement to disposal of the entire equity interest
inFEHRE ZE OFYI) AR A (unofficial English
name being Kongtop Industrial (Shenzhen) Co.,
Limited) (“Shenzhen Kongtop”), indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company, to independent
third party of the Group, at a cash consideration

BE-B--—F+-A=t—-RLFEEH)
) HERIER

R-FBE-_—F+—HA=+H A5E
RV HHEARR 2B BARER
FE(FRINARAR (TFRIERD B2
HEETAEENBYE = BeX
{8/43,000,000% 7T (1§55 7423,400,000
HBIT) c HEEHEER -_T——%+—A8
“t+ZHEK - BERMEGERZBEE

of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately BEWIER -
HK$23,400,000). The disposal was completed on
22 December 2021, on which date the control of
Shenzhen Kongtop was pass to acquirer.
Consideration received: BUWARE :
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EBER bsEER RYIEHR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FAT FAT
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 3,341 1,032 4,680 9,053
Deferred cash consideration EERESRE 37,470 = 18,720 56,190
(Note) ()
40,811 1,032 23,400 65,243
Note: izt -

The deferred consideration of Shanghai Yunhao will be settled
in cash by the buyer on or before the year 2026. The remaining
90% deferred consideration is separated into six instalments with
7% interest per annum.

The deferred consideration of Shenzhen Kongtop will be settled
in cash by the buyer on or before the year 2023. The remaining
80% deferred consideration is separated into two instalments with
LIBOR +1% interest per annum.

EEERNELEREBEHETR T _RFhZ
AIABR SRS - R TI0%BRIEREN RN
- FRRBT% o

RYEANELERBHHETR T _=Fk2
AIABR SRS - R TB0%RIEREN RMHIX
- ZEBERTRER B+ 1%F KGR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

40. HEME Q7 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (cONTINUED)

BE-E-—F+-A=+—HLEE@#@

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: EAREEHENEERERSN
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EEER LBEE FIYIER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE K 736 94 11,964 12,794
B
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 1,878 = 17,904 19,782
Intangible assets mEEE 162 = = 162
Deferred tax assets R IHEE 498 - 275 773
Inventories & 7,072 12,412 3,156 22,640
Trade and notes receivables BUKE SRR X 14,349 132 15,417 29,898
N EE
Other receivables, deposits and HbpeUgskIE - 33,273 4,840 3,510 41,623
prepayments e RIER
FRIA
Bank balances and cash IRITEHRRIRE 699 4,064 3,078 7,841
Trade and notes payables B E SRR (15,702) (11,812) (9,776) (37,290)
JERT IR
Other payables, deposits received, Efh et 508 - (1,781) (4,280) (6,011) (12,072)
accruals and deferred income BdRS
FEETER K
FEIERA
Lease liabilities HE&E (2,002) - (19,430) (21,432)
Net assets disposal of BEHEEEFE 39,182 5,450 20,087 64,719

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuep)  40. HEME A 7 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (CONTINUED) BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+t—HLFE@#)
(Loss) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (BB k=
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EBER be=ERE RYEH st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FH&T FAT FAT
Consideration received and receivable = YR 4 M EI 40,811 1,032 23,400 65,243
RE
Fair value of residual interest REBERZ = 2,234 = 2,234
AE
Non-controlling interests disposed of & & JF%A% (2,464) 2,720 = 267
T
Cumulative exchange differences RRENBE R A 16 285 774 1,075
in respect of the net assets of 75 i) fRE Ry F A
subsidiaries reclassified from equity ~ WEHHIEZE
to profit or loss on loss of control of BB A
subsidiaries RIEEFEZ
RitEXR=R
Reclassification of other reserve RETEMEEE 11 = = 11
o
Net assets disposal of BEHENEE (39,182) (5,450) (20,087) (64,719)
FE
(Loss) gain on disposal HE (B518) (808) 821 4,087 4,100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HENBESRAEEE
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EBER iapsE 3= RYIEHR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FAT
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 3,341 1,032 4,680 9,053
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BEHERE (699) (4,064) (3,078) (7,841)
disposed of e kBEE
2,642 (3,032) 1,602 1,212
The impact of Shanghai Yunhao results and cash flows in bEEEEE RS R E N A BAEER
current period and prior year is disclosed in note 12. S/EEPABIET ] DI ER o
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

41. REZREE 2 B EYHK

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2021

Financing cash flows

Non-cash changes:
Foreign exchange

New lease entered/lease

modified
Interest expenses

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2021

Financing cash flows
Non-cash changes:
Foreign exchange

New lease entered/lease modified &I M HE & E
Early termination of lease contracts (2 R4 IETHE A 4

Interest expenses

At 31 December 2022

ATERBHIASERASREY (BESRS
MR EY) 2ABE - RESHEABZAR
& AR ERARENES
RERBERTOERKEEREDNASR

T EEB SR

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
BITHEE HEEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FExT
R-—ZE—_—F—F—H 36,000 33,839 69,839
MERERE 3,093 (12,964) (9,871)
RS EE)
SNE 687 918 1,605
FEINAEE
LISETHE = 13,064 13,064
FEZH 2,071 1,148 3,219
HEHTE AR - (21,432) (21,432)
RZE=——F+=—A=+—H 41,851 14,573 56,424
BERDTE 205,088 (8,988) 196,100
R EE)
HNEE (11,099) (1,208) (12,307)
- 9,642 9,642
- (1,417) (1,417)
FESHE 4,400 516 4,916
RZEZ=F+=—A=+—H 240,240 13,118 253,358
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. €T A

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets CRUEE
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at FVTPL
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

BATA
Financial liabilities Y=k
Amortised cost BE A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables
and payables, accruals, amounts due from associates,
consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings (2021: equity instruments at FVTOCI,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade and notes receivables and
payables, other receivables and payables, accruals, amounts
due from associates, consideration receivables, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, lease liabilities and bank borrowings).

BB AT RSB E E
BAFEFABRSNEREE 1,602 4,152
BAFEFT AR R E SR

EXERERE

AEBEEEEAZ BNAEBBILERERDZ
T BRAKEE TS ERER BB
BEEKE  YWRKASRRT KRS EH -
AEBEZEAGBERERFR(RERRT
fEE) RARBHE AREER (BREC TR
- REMREBRN)  BEEEEHNELERE
BeZEERNKAREEREARBBZRER -
Fhit - AEEREBZAE  BITHRIAR
BITHEER R B ES FERBEANGSE
AEE s BERBNAFERERTE -

ST EEF
2022 2021
e —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
657,603 886,056

61,376 63,112
455,227 296,213
M EREEN B RRBE

AEBHZ T2 T ABREAFEF AR
EHNEZBRATE HAFEFABRZ S
BMEE  BRNENEZERERZR  HbfE
WRENERR - BETER - BUREE AT - &
WHRE - BEARITER - EHRTER R
TRERREE BHERBEURRTEE(CE
——F  BaFESF AR EEREZRAT
E BAVEFAEBRZEREE  BRKEE
NEZEFRFE - BRMERREMNER - &
STEM - R A RFOR - [ERRE B
MRITHER - BBRTENR - RITEHRNA
T HEABURRITEE) -
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F-—6+-A=+-ALEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

42. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 47% (2021: 41%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
20% (2021: 23%) of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s functional currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities are trade receivables, bank balances, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, trade payables and
bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed in notes 27,
28, 29 and 31 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

usD Sy

BB EIE i B R BB ()

ZETRTAZFIENBRM EP IR - 8%
ST AMERBRIARBRRBEZZERR
ZHERHEN T - EREEERERZER
%+ DARECRBE B A BUREVE B 1616

BEmERE

REBEZZMBARAIMNEETER - ©48E
BEESNE R o ARBHERNA7%(=F
TF AR AREERETEENYRE

E
BN EHEGHE - MA20% (ZF——% ¢
23%) M AR A B BN EEFHE

R|ERR - AEBUSZESEERBIEER
POMBEREHEN T ZeRMEERAEREK
BHER - |ITHERR - CEPRITER - B8
RITER - BNEBESRALRITEE - H10H
SR RIRMF27 - 28 « 2931 HEEE ©

RBEPR - NEBLIMNEHENTEEER

EEEEMNRABENAT
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2022 2021 2022 2021

g —T-—F ZBZZF —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET FET FHET

233,724 422,852 26,633 65,129
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F--—F+-A=+-ALFE

42. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (coNTINUED)

The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2021: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2021: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2021:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an decrease in post-tax loss where RMB
weakening 10% against USD for the both years. For a 10%
strength of RMB against USD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

Decrease in post-tax loss CREd iV

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the Group at the

end of the reporting period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivables, amounts due from associates, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

Eim e ()
ERERESIINERR  YREAFEREZEY
HREAINERR -

TRANAEBMENARBALELIE A
10%(-%:*@ 1 10%) BYBURRE © 10% (=
T4 10%) KRB R EPTaTHHMNEE X
bﬁfié’]/\iimﬁb o GURE DT EBIEIAIN
ﬁ%aﬂﬁ%ﬂiféﬁf@??ﬁ%lﬁﬁ » WIAE R HIR10%
(ZF=—F 1 10%) 2B HERREHRNE
HERIFLAE - ATHEBRRARKENE
TTEMEF ZERELIOSRTREERD - 1
ARBEHETIHELO% - B2 EEEEHER
BERRNTE  MEHKESEAR -

2022 2021
—E-CHf —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FBT
17,209 27,203

Bfat - TERMAAEERRERRAZTIEZRE
BEIRITHREER - CHEMRITER  WHRITERK
JEUS K AT SRIRIA RARTTIE B 2 RS »

BRI E S
AEENEERBEERABRKESHERLE
& - EEURARR - EUIRRE - U AR
FIE -~ EERTER - EERFRITERUARIR
1THERR ©

RZBEZZFR=ZTE=_—FF+=ZA=+—8 -
AEBEREFHARERITEEMAEHEEER
CRBEMARZZBEAGERR © BZEE
ERRE BB RAR ZRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

42.

SRELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed every year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2022, five
(2021: five) customers amounting to HK$65,367,000 (2021:
HK$66,262,000) comprised approximately 89% (2021:
73%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers
are within the same mobile phone technology industry and
wireless communication modules industry in the PRC. The
management closely monitors the subsequent settlement of
the customers. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Notes receivables

For notes receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of notes
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group assessed the ECL for notes receivables are
insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.
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AEEFEREKREE BHEEEBRAMTR
i MU IR o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

42.

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

SELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
Consideration receivables

For consideration receivables, the management of the Group
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on the historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management assessed the loss
allowance based on 12m ECL, and HK$1,111,000 (2021:
Nil) loss allowance is recognised during the year.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risk on bank balances, short-term bank deposits and
pledged bank deposits are limited because the counterparties
are majority banks/financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by external credit-rating agencies.

Amounts due from associates

The Group regularly monitors the business performance of
the associates. The Group’s credit risks in these balances
are mitigated through the value of the assets held by these
entities and the power to participate the relevant activities of
these entities. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group assessed the ECL for amounts due from associates and
loss allowance of HK$16,499,000 (2021: HK$800,000) is
recognised.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables and loss allowance of HK$4,441,000 (2021:
HK$1,200,000) is recognised.

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

EE R R BEFFE ()

JEYACIE

REKRENS  ~EBTEEREBALE
8% BAEKRIAKRASTE R BIRE S AT
M E 2 I E M A R B Ath 52 5 5K IE 2 AT IR a1 1
HEITERERIFE - BEEIRE12(EATERE
BEEEHEEEE  RAFERRZEBR
#51,111,0008 T (ZFE=—F : T) -

IR7TAERR  REHIIRTT A R EAFFIR T

BN R ZE T AL B BRI E T RS
ARERRFZRITSREE - FURITE
& EHRTER R ERRITERZEER
BRBMR o

V-3 G AUNGT e
AEETHERBERNR 2 EBRR - A&E
RZERER 2 EERRBRAZEEEBREZ
EEEERSHZSEREWRTS ZENK
BB - HE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIF
B RSB EWEE R RENGETERER
E518 - WHERE B %16,499,0008 T (==
——%F : 800,000/ 7T) °

E e E

MEMERZAENS ' EEERBEBEALEHER
8 BAEKHIARAIER BIRE Y 2 ATl
TE 2 R E 1 A FHEH M FE UGN TE 2 AT I B 1 3
TEHERFTE - AEERZLI2MEATEHRE
BEBELRERE B=2—_T—_—F+—_A
=+ —HLFE  AEBFHEMERRIEZ
FEHEEEE - WHERBERESL,441,000%
(=T = —4 : 1,200,000/87T) °

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 42. €@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEERERN B ZEPCR (E)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) =B R R ETS ()
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment AEBHRNBEERRSERTHREATE
comprises the following categories: Al
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
RS E TR i [ ER) HiteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
iyl RHEAMBHRBRE - B EEARHFE FaEREREEEE REARSHEEEE
—LEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
settle after due date not credit-impaired
BELE EBANEERIABRER  EEERIBHBER S FaBHEREEEE REARSHEESE
HE — W EEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
since initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources or overdue by 180 days
or above
A&t FERBEEAREANIIMNIEREHO BRI FaBEBEREEEE FaBREREEESE
RILBEEM  SaH180H M — T EEERE —LEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
or overdue by 360 days or more credit-impaired credit-impaired
E8 AEBXRAEELREERERHC0RHNA E FaBEREREESE EnBRRREEEE
—(=ERE —(=ERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
WisH EEBERBEBEABARENRRE - MASETEK SREEMH SREEME

BRI E IR AT
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42. @I A (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, contract assets and finance lease
receivables which are subject to ECL assessment:

Nofgs
i3
Financia] assets at amortised cost
RESERANENSREE
Bank balances and cash 28
RITEBERE 28
Short-term bank deposits 28
RERITER 28
Pledged bank deposits 28
BEARITER 28
Trade receivables 27
- goods and services
R E ZEH 27
—EnkR%
Notes receivables 27
e 27
Other receivables 27
At IR 27

External
credit rating

SAEEFR

A (Aa3-A3

A (Aa3-A3

B (Baa2-Bal
B (Baa2-Bal
C (Caal

C (Caal

A(Al)
A (A1)
B (Baa2-Baa3)
B (Baa2-Baa3)

EH

A (A1-A3)
A (A1-A3)
B (Baa2-Bal)
B (Baa2-Bal)

N/A
N
/A
NER

Internal
credit rating

R EETR

N/A
TER
N/A
NER
N/A
TER

N/A
NEA
N/A
TER

N/A
Byl
N/A
TER

(Note b)
(Hiitb)
Low risk
ER R
Watch list
BRRE
Doubtful
Ik
Loss

B2

N/A
TER
N/A
@R

(Note a)
Wiita)
Loss

Bi#

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

FE/m R R B e TG ()

TRFNAEFBETHRBEEHRNENS
REE AHNEENEBUREHENEER

A .
oo
PR

12m or lifetime ECL
LR EGANRSEEEE

12m ECL
2EAABHEEER
12m ECL
12EAABHEERE
12m ECL
2EARBHEERR

12m ECL
REARSEEER
12m ECL
REARHEERR

12m ECL
REARSEEEE
12m ECL
REARHEERR

Lifetime ECL (provision matrix)
EhRRAEER (RERR)
Lifetime ECL (ot credit impaired)
ERRRERE BRI RESRE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired)
EonRRRRETEE W RESHE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired)
EHRRERE BRI RESRE)
Creditimpaired

BERE

12m ECL
12EARBHEEER
12m ECL

2EAABHEERE

12m ECL
1EARSEERR
Credit impaired
BERE

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F

2022 2021
—E-CE —Eo-E
Gross carrying  Gross carrying
amount amount
REAE RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERL TAT
40,305 100,489
151,509 221,745
- 75
191,814 322,309
47,891 74,082
120,231 279,095
168,122 303,177
148,934 16,145
16,912 -
165,846 16,145
21,301 24,142
54,452 41,127
1,712 27,351
3,995 17
30,526 25278
111,986 117915
2,674 5529
2,006 2,090
4,680 7,619
8,313 21,893
4,493 1,454
12,806 23,347
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 42. €W I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEERERN B ZEPCR (E)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) =B R EE S ()
2022 2021
—E-CE “E--F
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
i HBEETR ANEETR  12BRRESEHRLEERR REAE REgE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T
Amounts due from associates 27 N/A (Notea) ~ 12m ECL ‘ 21,675 20,485
JEdE S AR 27 TER (i2a)  LEAEBREEFE
Consideration receivables 27 N/A (Notea) ~ 12m ECL ‘ 43,445 57,657
IR E TaR Wita)  12AAESEEER
Notes: B
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group a. RABEERREEMS - NEBERBHER
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has HEEERR B VP HERE S TREEIGM

increased significantly since initial recognition.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

42. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

a. (CONTINUED)
2022
Other receivables FELCEL £th BR 5K
Consideration receivables R AE
Amounts due from associates LB X B RRIE
2021
Other receivables FEUCEL fth BR K
Consideration receivables FEWRAE
Amounts due from associates LB & X BRI
b. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified

approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses
on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by past-due
status.

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

FE/m R R B e TG ()

Biet - (&)

a. (#&)

—E-—F
Past due Not past due Total
bt 3t Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
2,743 10,063 12,806
11,105 32,340 43,445
- 21,675 21,675

—E-—fF
Past due Not past due Total
BHR ES bt Foby
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
6,414 16,933 23,347
- 57,657 57,657
- 20,485 20,485

b. MAEEKE SRR = - ANEEE KA E R %R
SRRESRELENEEmBREAEERER
MEREE - RAAEAREESRAEERE
MEB AN - AERERBIE IR D AR EE
EREEZSHANRBEEER -

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED) 42.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

(CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of
small customers with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix as at 31
December 2022 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit impaired with gross
carrying amounts of HK$72,152,000 and HK$18,533,000 (2021:
HK$90,235,000 and HK$23,139,000) respectively as at 31

December 2022 were assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

Current (not past due) BNER (R HR)
1-60 days past due Fab N ENCOPN
61-180 days past due #EI61 = 180K
181-365 days past due #EI181 2365k

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

BB EIE i B R BB ()

FEm R B E T ()

Hiz : (&)

b.

)

EAAEBEEERREEN—H5  A%EEA
BHEANRRTHEEESORE - DHEHRZSE
BREENEAEHRRARRSENNES - K&
BEFIRBA NGRS FA R AFIEMEE S o T
RIFEERARKE SRR EERRNER - 2%
EWESEZRE-_T-_—F+-_A=1t—H4%
BB EEEE R EERE) AR BEE
REEITRIE - AREEHNR -_T=_—_F+=A
=+—AAREAKREERERREEREREL
B9 5 %472,152,0007% 7T % 18,533,000 7T (=
T = —4 : 90,235,000/ 7T % 23,139,000/ 7T)
BB AT TR RS o

IREAE
2022
—E-—F
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FIIEIEE BEWE SRR
HK$’000
FHET
13,010
1.45% 1,056
2.31% 768
28.13% 6,467
21,301
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42.

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

SELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

b. (CONTINUED)

Gross carrying amount (CONTINUED)

Current (not past due) BUER (R E)
1-60 days past due HEI1ZE60K
61-180 days past due #EI61 = 180K
181-365 days past due #EI181 2365k

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group provided an
impairment allowance of HK$6,562,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000)
and a reversal of impairment allowance of HK$Nil (2021:
HK$2,996,000) for trade receivables, based on the provision
matrix is recognised in profit or loss. A reversal of impairment
allowance of HK$1,658,000 (2021: HK$12,813,000) and an
impairment allowance of HK$8,337,000 (2021: HK$15,809,000)
were made on debtors with significant balances and credit

impaired debtors respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group write off
several trade debtor balances of HK$4,884,000 in which these
debtors are having financial difficulties to repay the trade balances
to the Group.

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

FE/m R R B e TG ()

Biet - (&)

b. (€-))
FRTE 421 ()
2021
—E-—%F
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
S EEER FENE 5 8RR
HK$'000
FET
19,496
0.07% 483
1.42% 3,435
26.19% 728
24,142

HEHEREREBEEB AR FHANELBRENRMG
&t WEBREBTBERARES SR A SRR
ARMEHRE - EBESCHENIMA  URERERHE
TERB AR A RHRITE#T

BE-Z-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE BREZEHESE
FeB ok FE U B 5 PR BT IR 2R (B 7 486,562,000/ 7T (=2
Z—%F : 2,000,000/ 7T) R E 2 HERETHT(ZT
Z—1F : 2,996,000/ 7T) + ERBEER - WHARSE
KSR FE IR X R A= BRU B FE W AR X 2 B8 (Bt (B B
1,658,000/ T (ZF = —4F : 12,813,000/ 7T) K 1E
R (B #88,337,000/8 7T (ZZ = — 4 : 15,809,000/
o) °

BEZ-—F+_HA=+—HLFE  AEEMHEHK
S8 HRNAE#4,884,0008TC © HPZEEBHANEER
REEE F AR EEN N -

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 42. €@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEERERN B ZEPCR (E)

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) =B R R ETS ()

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TREVERBREOEREWE 5 IR FRIE L T
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the RNEDAPEREEBEZ E -

simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EmEES EhBHES
FEFR FEER
(EREERE) (E&WE) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET AT
As at 1 January 2021 R-_E-—%—F—H 3,971 22,519 26,490
— Transfer to credit impaired —BEEEEERE (543) 543 =
~ Impairment losses recognised —-BERRESE 2,000 15,809 17,809
— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESE (2,996) (12,813) (15,309)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR (420) (780) (1,200)
As at 31 December 2021 R_E-—F+-A=1+—-H 2,012 25,278 27,290
— Impairment losses recognised —-BERRRESE 6,562 8,337 14,899
— Impairment losses reversed —-BERAESE - (1,658) (1,658)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 % (237) (1,431) (1,668)
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-A=1+—H 8,337 30,526 38,863
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is EEEHBETEBAEREN BN R EE
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial BRE[EITEER - BN E = HisH B E 5 R
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. o MEBEBEAETEEXEETRERFR
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has (AREE AE) - EHMIENERE 5 RRE
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs AZ BN BB AITIES

earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for other receivables (note 27).

As at 1 January 2021
— Impairment losses recognised
— Write-offs

As at 31 December 2021

— Impairment losses recognised
— Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2022

R —F—HF—H
—BEERRERE
—Jis5H
RZE——F+=A8
==
—ERERREEE
— [ AR
RZZE-_—_F+=A
==

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances

that has been recognised for amounts due from associates.

As at 1 January 2022
— Impairment losses recognised
— Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2022

RZE_—_F—H—H
—BRERREESE

— [ N A

RZEZ_F+=A4
=

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

FE/m R R B e TG ()
TR B E AR AR H AR A B 1R
2z $1fk (FifEE27) -

Lifetime ECL
(not credit Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EmERES  AnBEHES
FEBR FEBER
(Y EEERIE) (E&RE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
- 5,214 5,214
1,200 - 1,200
= (3,760) (3,760)
1,200 1,454 2,654
1,288 3,153 4,441
(47) (114) (161)
2,441 4,493 6,934

TRMFE B A A R SES AR A
I -

Lifetime ECL
(not credit Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EmBHES 4EonBAHES
FEEE FEEE
(A E|EERE) (EERE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAxT
16,499 - 16,499
(596) = (596)
15,903 - 15,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

42.

SRELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for consideration receivables.

BB EIE i B R BB ()

FEm R B E T ()
TR B EKRAE L ER N EREE
ZE

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
F A ARTE Bl B 18
(EERE)
HK$'000
FAT
As at 1 January 2022 RZEZ—_F—H—H
— Impairment recognised —BERERBEEE 1,111
— Exchange adjustments — [ 5 AR (40)
As at 31 December 2022 KRB —_F+-_A=+—H 1,071
Liquidity risk HEELERE

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of
bank borrowings as discussed above and the short-term
liabilities which are required to be repaid within three
months from the end of the reporting period. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022

BERDESRARIH AEEGERIER
RekReFERBRNEEER /T RAK
o LENASBEEERS  LEERSRE
KB FE - ﬁi@?%%‘%fﬂ?ﬂ%%Z@Fﬁ :
VAREGR TS & BSR4

ZREIAREEER RAGRAARKR R (BFE
X ERE R AR T B B R SRR R i O s A
Re=AANEBEENEHES) 2% EFR
BRBECRBER - AEBEMBREERE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42.

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

SELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (conTiNUED)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

REEZERE (H)
TREJAEEESRABENRTIANEMA -
ZRDBBEAEEARANNRERRAZE
BEENARMRRESRERE - ABME - Mt
BREBRERERROBITER - TRiRITEE
TRERNNEE R - DEARRREE
M ERE - RITESRBENIHAR
RHIEER B HME

Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month ~ 1-3months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2022
e St
T=A
RER ATRENE =t+-A
TSR HR1fEA 1837 3EAELE 1558 5% LEHEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TiEn Tin Tin Fim T TR

2022 “E-CE
Trade and notes payables  FETE BEFRERE - 157,160 = = = 157,160 157,160
Other payables and accruals — EtEREFRENBE - 57827 - - - 57,8271 578027
Bank borrowings RfEE 2.28% 47,040 16,864 178,569 - 242473 240,240
Lease liabilties BERE 330% 593 1,778 4741 6,651 13763 13118
262,620 18,642 183,310 6,051 471,23 468345

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 42. €@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEERERN B ZEPCR (E)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (conTiNUED) HEE 2R ()
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month  1-3months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2021
RZE=-%
+-A
BER AERRLRE =1-A
g R SRIER 12308 3EAZLE 125% Fe] b i

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 1000
% THL ThL THEL TEL THL THL

2021 —R--F

Trade and notes payables B EZEZRER - 218,852 - - - 218852 218,852

Other payables and accruals — EftERERZRESBR - 35,510 = - - 3,510 35,510

Bank borrowings BafiE 108 15429 9320 17,553 = 42302 41851

Lease liabiltes HEaR 38 59 1,587 4231 8849 15,195 14573
270320 10907 21,784 8849 311859 310,786

Interest rate risk FIZE R

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its AEBAFENRRBRTEEEETHEMREK

certain other receivables fixed rate consideration receivables, BEZ - EEFREWKAE  BIEEETES

pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank EHASRIT IR AR TS AR - AEE T IZ A

balances, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk FEU (B « SBRITRABREITIEERZE ST

in relation to variable-rate consideration receivables, bank RIE [ o

balances and bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate 7N £2 [ 35 B 3 43R S 7 N SR R EE o

hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors r@f@“"‘“ﬁ* zL.miﬁjﬁJ‘i‘“‘@Jﬁg(y\Z*;K

its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change 84S - IS E E R R Y T e =R

on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes Z%:@j 100{ HEH(—ZT——4F : 100AEE)

in market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 TR E AR RSB MR RA B YA

basis points (2021: 100 basis points) change represents BEE) o

management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-F--—F+-A=+-ALFE

42. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (conTinUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a
result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
and thus variable-rate bank balances are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

If interest rate had been 100 basis points (2021: 100
basis points) higher/lower for variable-rate consideration
receivables and bank borrowings, and all other variables
were held constant, the impact to the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year would be increase/decrease is as follows:

Increase in post-tax loss BT st N

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Price risk

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and unlisted equity securities measured at
FVTOCI. The Group also invested in certain unquoted equity
securities for long term strategic purposes which had been
designated as FVTOCI.

BB EIE Y B R BRI ()

FIE E bz ()
BURZ T
B fil’ RA - ARBETISHREHEES
EHRAR 2 ARBESRARLRTA - Bt - !5(
F’Wﬁﬂﬂﬁ@%ﬁeuﬁﬂﬂ

M EUOZ BRI E RRITIEENFE LA/
TEE100fEEZ (=T ——4 : 100fEEZ) - A
FTEHEMEERETNE  BIEARERERNRH
BEBOFEREN, ROWT

2022 2021
e —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
1,732 231

ERERR - ARNFERERM AL ARRKRER
Bk O - EBERRE DT T RER R EA F K

B

EEERE

R ZFR_T_—F+=—A=+—H"
$$Ilﬁf“$@ﬁkﬁ SET 22 ETRA
BHERBEAFEFAEMBEZERSTE2IEE
mh$ EEmmEmEEMERRR - AEETA
REREENREE TERBRAES - HE
BT RRATEFARLMEERE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

42.

SRELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Price risk (conTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the price of the respective investment in unlisted
equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 would increase/decrease by
HK$4,603,000 (2021: HK$4,733,000). If the prices of the
respective investment in listed equity securities measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
increase/decrease by HK$134,000 (2021: HK$347,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
the Valuer to perform the valuation. The chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with the Valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The chief financial officer reports the findings to the
Directors of the Company at the end of the reporting period
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as
Fair value at hierarch
RUATREZATE AYER
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—EoCE i 3
TZR=t-B  +ZA=f-H
HK$'000 HK$000
Thn Thr
Financial assets
SHEE
1. Equity instruments at FVTOCI 4,368 - Level 3
- Unlisted equity security (10%,
equity interestina pnvate entity
established
in PRC) e
f“?%fAHMQEW =40
— 3 ERAGE 7 (R ElRL
UMIAE ?Zm%&@
- Unlisted equﬁy security (14.97% 25,872 28,300 Level 3
equity interest in a pnvate entity
established in PRC)
B et e
UM EFZMgﬁéi
- unlisted equty security (2.1997% 31,136 34247 Level 3
equity interest in a private entity
established in PRC)
~3f LRARS (AR =4
THHLAEEZ2 19978
61,376 63112
2. Financial assets at FVTPL 1,602 4152 Level 1
- listed equity security "
£

e ?@fkﬁmZﬁﬂﬁE
mAE

B EER B Y B R ER ()

FEEEEERERNFEIBZEMEES

AFHE

AEBBHEREEDNESHREMREZEA
AZETREER

T8 o TRIEHETE

¥
iz

ECCERAER 2 AERT REAZR) -

RARBR ?@Jz%k@ﬁZTQﬁ&ﬁ#”
FEFAENEZATEEBEER(—E=R)Z

Bt o
Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs
Valuation technique(s) to fair value
ind e i) Ek??gﬁ FTESHARE
HERTRERE RS ENTENBE

Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

PEARAEE —BRANZAER  BRENYZ
AENEREREEALTE - e

Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset
book value of assets and liabilities of the  value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

AEAIREL —BREAZEBER  HRENL
BENEAERERAATHE AR
Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset

book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

ﬁ%ﬁ@ééﬁ—ﬁT552§§& iy
EEMEAEREREAATE BELAERE
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. NA
EERTRRRE AR

Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other variables
constant would increase
the carrying amount.
AR L E
i E ﬂﬁ

i

%@E Wﬂ
Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other variables
constant would increase
the carrying amount,
lWEAMES
REpE  ma%
§§/?1§ Elj]
BEELEN -
Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other variables
constant would increase
the carrying amoynt.
Eipkies
REAE  E%
ﬁé@ﬁﬁﬂ
BEEEN

el
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

. SR T A (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (cONTINUED)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

EMTAZAVERE @

FEEEEERERNFEIBZEHMEES

2P (E ()
F=RAHEFEBZHK

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI
BAFERA
Hib 2wk
ZRATHE
HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2021 N-E-_—%—AF—H 12,382
Purchased BE 48,308
Total losses in other comprehensive income Hiv 2 MmN 2 EER5E 1,932
Impairment loss recognised ERERREEE (384)
Exchange adjustment PE X TR 874
As at 31 December 2021 N_E-_—F+-_A=+—H 63,112
Purchased BE 6,972
Total gains in other comprehensive income Hib 2wk 2 W g58 630
Redemption =E| (3,884)
Exchange adjustment PE W R (5,454)
As at 31 December 2022 RN-E-—F+—-A=+—8H 61,376

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$630,000 (2021: HK$1,932,000) relating to unlisted
equity securities classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI
held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMB AT ZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 S —E—F+-A=+—HBXK
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: NElZWBARFROT ¢

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital AAARBRAEE/ HMER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R BETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
if: Pk AERHY R/ RER E# 3 ITEK

2022 2021 2022 2021
—“g-CF R CE-CF “EBo-E

SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% - — Investment holding
Limited British Virgin Islands USD12,233 RERR
("BvI") LRRI2233 5T
ZEEMETAT=A
ABRLHES
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REETTEARAR Samoa USD2,002 RARR
“NANETZATER  EER2000%T
REDHE
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of handsets and
LERERRE The PRC RMB200,000,000 10T terminals business, Electronics
-WAEET-AAR AR manufacturing services business and
f ARE200,000,00070 Property management in the PRC

EBEETHRNBRLERT
ETRERBIERRS

RyzHEER
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets
LEAER The PRC USD5,000,000 and [0T terminals business in the
“EE-E-RRA EfER PRC
HEl 5,000000% 7 PR SR RAR TR RES
sl
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited! 23 September 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
LEBERTEETARAR! The PRC 1SD400,000 marketing of the Group’s products
ZEESENAZTEA HMER and provides logistics services in the
HEl 400,000% 7 PRC
EPERE e HEREEAKE
ERRREmTR
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share USD1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BV B RERER
“EENE-A+=A
RERES
SIM Technology HK Limited® 21 April 2004 Ordinary share HK$1 - - - 100%  Provision of administrative services in
RNEEEERARE Hong Kong LaRIET Hong Kong
“ZEINENACT-R EEBRTIR
&%

EBAMRKERERAT T F4H 293



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EWE A T 2515 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital AAAMERAER/ HRER 2L
Name of subsidiary AL/ R EERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
(il B RERE A/ RER ER B ITEER

2022 2021 2022 2021
—B-CE -Z--£ CZB-CE -E--£

Shanghai Speedcomm Technology 16 November 2005 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited! The PRC RMB7,500,000 RARR
DERUEEARIARAR  —ZERE+-A15E  EMEK
EF ARET 500,000
Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003 Ordinary shares HK$2 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
AeERAH Hong Kong LER2ET RERR
ZERSENATLA
&
Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited" 8 December 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
KT (LS ARAT! The PRC 1SD200,000 marketing of the Group’s products
“FE-FCRNR EfER and provides logistics services in the
'? 200,000%7 PRC
ERERS M HERERASE
ERREMRRS
Shanghai SIM Technology Limited” 2 August 2006 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
B (L) BRAR The PRC RMB40,000,000 the PRC and property management
ZEERE/\AZA Al B TR RARR IR
H ARE40,000,0007T HEEE
Shenyang SIM Technology Limited? 25 October 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
B L) AR AR The PRC 1SD10,000,000 the PRC and property management
ZEREETACTRA AR B TR RARRRNE
e 10,000,000% 7 HEER
Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited 8 November 2007 Registered capital - - 60% 60%  Properties development in PRC
(“SYRE"? The PRC USD4,300,000 ERERENEER
RAEZ (1h) GRARY ZERYET-ANE EfER
i 4300 00057
Shenyang SIM Simcom* 24 July 2008 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
HGRAAERE The PRC RMB30,000,000 terminals business in the PRC and
ZRR\ELAZTER  EBER Electronics manufacturing services
7 AR#30,000,0007 business in the PRC

EEEETRRIBRRGEER
ETRERBRERRS
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e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EM B R T ZF15 @)

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AOAMERAER/HRER 2L
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R BETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
KEARZE RERES R/ RER EE ] TEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-CF -EI--F CECCE OCEC-F
Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
Limited* The PRC RMB5,000,000 and 10T terminals business in the
MIFRERRERAR! ZFE\§\A=T/\B AR PRC
i ABH5,000,0007 RS RRETHR S
Binzi
Simcom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RAARERBRAR Hong Kong HKS1 RARR
“FE\ENA-TCH  ERRLER
&%
Shanghai iLove Limited 27 February 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEUSAEERNERAR  ThePRC USD3,000,000 RERER
ZEENEZACTER  HER
hE 300000057
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Limited The PRC RMB20,000,000 RERR
EERREFHRARAR ZEE3NE-RAA AR
# AR20,000,00070
Smartwireless Technology Limited” 13 February 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets
I RER R IR ARAR! The PRC RMB20,500,000 and 10T terminals business i the
ZERHECATER EftER PRC
i ABRH20,500,0007T RPERG R AR F AR AR
37
Shanghai Mobile Phone Public 21 December 2009 Registered capital - - 87.5% 87.5%  Design and development of handsets
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMB20,000,000 and |0T terminals business in the
PEFHEHALRETEER  “STAETA=T-R H#fEA PRC
A H ABRH20,0000007T B et KRR TR R
%
Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited® 7 March 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
FNRAEERRAT The PRC RMB20,000,000 EREfENZER
ZE-=E=RtR AR
Gl AR%20,0000007

EARKEEBRAR —T - 555
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t-ALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EME R T ZF15 @)

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AOAMERAER/ HRER 2L
Name of subsidiary AL/ R EERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
if: PNk REREE s/ EhER ¢ [ ITEH
2022 2001 2022 2021
“E-CF -F--F CECCE OCECF
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
THRARARRARD! The PRC RMB50,000,000 AR
“E-SEMACTEA  AREAR
i ARE50,0000007
Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things 7 June 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
Technology Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 and online-to-offline equipment in the
IHZENBENEERAT —T-=ERALA Al PRC
i AEH10,000,0007 ErEREIBRRZIRERE
Shanghai Wide-Top Financial 17 July 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Finance lease service in the PRC
Leasing Co, Ltd.! The PRC USD17,000,000 R SR
LRERHARERRAT! Z2-CEEATER  EfiER
‘? 17,000,000%7C
Alpha Apex Limited 26 October 2012 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Samoa Usp1 RERR
g2 ey = 3 VN ST
EETHS
Shanghai Yunmao [OT Limited* 11 October 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
DEZEMBENEARAT  ThePRC RMB10,000,000 and online-to-offiine equipment in the
Z2-METAT-B EftER PRC
i ABRH10,000,0007 EPERBRAZERESR
Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech 28 October 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Limited* The PRC RMB30,000,000 equipment in the PRC
MR LSRR RARAT ZE-METAZTAR AR ErERZEDRERE
t ARE30,000,0007T
Shanghai Simcom System Limited* 17 March 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Building design and construction of
FEBRRAREN(LE) The PRC RMB20,000,000 smart home in the PRC
BRAF Z2-WESATEE  EfER B REER I R
H AR%20,0000007T
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-S-—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

43. T EMBEA T 2F1F @

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital ARARBRAEE/ HMER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R BETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAREH AERHY R/ RER EE A ITEH
2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-CF -EI--F CECCE OCEC-F
Guangdong Chentuo Robot 11 March 2015 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
BESAMEANRERAR -E-TfZAt-BH  iffAK ERERE B RARE
GilE ARE10,000,0007C
Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015 Registered capital - - 60% 60%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited? The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
IBREAEBEIERAR —F-RAFN\A-THA #REL ERERE SRR E
e ARE10,000,00070
Shenzhen Yunding Vending 16 January 2015 Registered capital - - 70% 70%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Operators Co., Limitedt The PRC RMB7,000,000 AHEREZRES
MITEREHESREEER —3-15-At A #fER
NG # ARET 000,000
Shanghai Bachen Inteligent 14 October 2015 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB5,500,000 and 10T terminals business in the
HREREHBMBRAR ZE-RETATER EfER PRC
H ABRH5,500,0007 EREfSRARAETHR S
Binsh
Shanghai Pami Intelligent 14 March 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
LEEREER AR ZEEZRTER EfER ERERE B RARE
Gl ARE10,000,0007C
Guangdong SIM Technology 29 June 2021 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights
Co., Limited" The PRC USD105,000,000 in the PRC
ERRANRERAA ZET-ERAZTAR EfER ERE THERE RARR
i 105,000,000% 7
1 Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. d ERREM 2z ZINGRERE -
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 ERRFMzFINEBDE -
3 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 3 BEFRERETEFMZ 2R ERE -
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC. g EREKEZZRERE -
5

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting

The Company was de-registered at 4 February 2022.

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

g ZARRZE=—F = AMABUHEEM °

W EAE IR A AR A E R AF EREMR
A EREMNEBES
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A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMBE AR ZF1E (@)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in handsets and 10T ZEWBATIRE DN EHEFH R ELR
terminals business and Property Management. The principal ERARYEREESIE - ZEWB AR ZE
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: TR IO

Principal place of

Principal activities of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEWR FTEEEMB MEARRAE
2022 2021
—E- 8 T4
Handset and I0T terminals business PRC 7
F e I s A o T H
Property management PRC 4 4
MEREETE FE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREFIANEBERE P A EARIEERERZ
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling IE2EMB AT -
interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests Profit
and principal and voting rights held by allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests
FRRERME AREFERES
HRARER IRRIREEEEHS BRERERRERLA il R FERER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-CE S St S —ECCE 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TR TEn
SYRE PRC 40% 404 1,095 909 10,377 9,99
FlEx Giléi
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 3,746 2937
R R BRI EATEAT
14,123 12931
Summarised financial information for the years ended REBHEAS AR ER 2B ARIREZR
31 December 2022 and 2021 in respect of the Group’s B —E R —E - —HF+—_A=+—HIIF
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is ErHEERBENT « NXFE T MEER
set out below. The summarised financial information below TR Y Sk fE B A B R 5 o

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—HItFE

43. T EMBEA T 2F1F @

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total equity

Revenue

Other income
Expenses

Income tax refund

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating

activities

Net cash inflow (outflow)

FRBEE
MBEE
FRBAE
A=Y

e

e AREE

YA
HApg A
B3
RIS

R A
AEEE M2 R

AEERHENEEE

TR BREEAFE 5 F
—RABXZHAA
—RAER 2R

R A

TR REEAREEEA
ESEI
—RABEZHEEA
—RAMERZ TR ES

AEEEM 2 E R

MBS EEEARFERH
Wes B ER
—RABXZHEBA
—RAEEZ IR ES

AEEEHNEER

REEBRMFRSRA(RH)
Pt

BERACRH) FE

SYRE
BB

2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T
13,486 15,770
12,703 13,324
(765) (44)
519 (3,599)
25,943 25,451
815 1,773
2,598 1,053
(812) (822)
137 269
2,738 2,273
684 466
3,422 2,739
1,643 1,364
1,095 909
2,738 2,273
410 280
274 186
684 466
2,053 1,644
1,369 1,095
3,422 2,739
1,095 (8,650)
1,095 (8,650)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44, AR T BN TR K #
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—ECf T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEHB AR ZIRE 179,803 179,803
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI RE] 1,129,476 1,162,859
1,309,279 1,342,662

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H Ath e FRIE 3,962 9,223
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABEZEMEE 1,602 4,152
Bank balances RITHERR 1,492 796
7,056 14,171
Current liabilities RBAE

Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 11,700 11,700
Other payables and accruals E A R BR R FERT FUE 1,983 1,657
13,683 13,357
Net current (liabilities) assets B (BB EEFHE (6,627) 814
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAE 1,302,652 1,343,476

Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital &R 219,852 227,977
Reserves Ees 1,082,800 1,115,499
Total equity EREsE 1,302,652 1,343,476

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RER M

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-F-—F+-A=t+—BLFE

44, DB AR R K A (D)

45.

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2021

Loss and total comprehensive
expense income for the year

Exercise of share options

Share options lapsed

Purchase of shares under the
share award scheme

Repurchase of ordinary shares

At 31 December 2021

Loss and total comprehensive
expense income for the year

Exercise of share options

Repurchase of ordinary shares

At 31 December 2022

R=B-—4-A-A
AEEEERZE
RxiEg
IEERE
BRELN
G HE
RERA
BOLTER
R-E--%
+-h=1-A

AERFEREA
[T

1TEERE

BEEER

AARRBEEE
Share

Capital based Employee (Accumulated

Share  redemption payment share trust Special  loss)/retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

WRH EERH (BithR)/
RiVEE EXREGRE DE (e ] hlE REER Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TER
795,004 21983 18,554 (3,187) 193848 137,985 1,164,277
= = = = = (8,776) (8,776)
917 = (387) = = - 50
= = (107) = = 107 -
- - - (13436) = = (13436)
(27,0%) 8492 - - - (8,492) (27,0%)
768915 30475 18,060 (16,623) 193848 120824 1,115499
- - - - - (10,054) (10,054)
449 - (189) - - - 260
(22,905) 8,230 - - - (8,230) (22,905)
746,459 38,705 17,871 (16,623) 193,848 102,540 1,082,800

EVENT AFTER THE PERIOD END DATE

45, iR B R EE

In February 2023, the PRC Government issued a notice
of house expropriation and compensation work to

Shanghai Sunrise Simcom. The properties of Shanghai

Sunrise Simcom, including certain property, plant and

equipment, right-of-use assets and investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$50,693,000, HK$4,153,000
and HK$148,109,000 respectively, will be expropriated. In
accordance with the notice, it is expected that the process of
the house expropriation will be completed within 2023.

RZZZ=F=—F HEBFREERES
WAREEEHNEMETERM - £F
FRESNBZMESEGR  BEEREE
2 5 A&50,693,000/ 7T * 4,153,000/ 7T &
148,109,000 L 2 & T35 - BE K& -
FREEERKEME - REZBM @ EiTE

EEEHRFEEIN T _=FATHK °

BANMEEBERAR — T —FF3F
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Principal Properties

As at 31 December 2022
RZZE-—F+=-A=+—8

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Group’s effective

interest in the Approximate gross Category of

Location properties floor area Usage lease
AEBRYEH
1th 2 2B R BRBEEER Az HLER
(sq. m)
(E7K)

Block A, SIM Technology Building, 100% 12,415 Commercial Medium-term
No. 633 Jinzhong Road, [SES lease
Changning District, AR EAFEAY
Shanghai, the PRC
HE PERER S EK633 5t
RABHEABAS
Block B, SIM Technology Building, 100% 11,262 Commercial Medium-term
No. 633 Jinzhong Road, [SES lease
Changning District, HREAFEAY
Shanghai, the PRC
HE PERER S EK633 5t
RABHEAEBE
An industrial complex located at 100% 31,893 Industrial Medium-term
No. 888 Shengli Road, I% lease
Qingpu District, FREATE Y
Shanghai,
the PRC*
F B 18 5 0R = B  #2 8885k
M—EATERERE?
An industrial complex, located at 100% 50,157 Industrial Medium-term
No. 37 Shenbei Road, IT% lease
Shenbei New District, R ERTEAY
Shenyang,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
PERZE &G LR
ALEE37 e — AT X E R
Shop 32, Block 1, 60% 2,279 Commercial Medium-term
The Riverside Country, [EES lease
location at No. 32 FREAFE 4D
Shenbei Road,
Shenbei New District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province, the PRC
FEIEEREG LR
WLAEER 325k IE MK BE 113257 P
# Classified as assets held for disposal during the year. For detail please # DEEBRRFEEZRER 2 EE - HI5B28ME13 -

refer to note 13.
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RESULTS
Revenue

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Prafit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ES
LN

BBATE R (B1R)
B

REREM (B18)
AT AL :

AREERA
El2Rlby S

BEHER
BEE
RaMR

RRFRA ARG R

FER R

Financial Summary
HBREE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-BLEFE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—T-N\F “T-NF —ECEF —EC-F nt- et -3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT FTHT T
2,312,230 1,281,505 1,073,218 755,994 638,017
299,646 (91,497) (56,652) (252,310) (499,315)
(84,607) 16,636 9,459 6,788 (8,507)
215,039 (74,861) (47,193) (245,522) (507,822)
238,012 (76,938) (38,323) (245,800) (509,453)
(22,973) 2,077 (8,870) 278 1,631
215,039 (74,861) (47,193) (245,522) (507,822)
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—T-N\F “T-NF —ECEE —EC-—F —EC-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THT THT THT THT
2972,011 2,866,930 2,801,636 2,583,180 2,053,854
(749,572) (756,259) (653,771) (688,997) (745,518)
2,222,439 2,110,671 2,147 865 1,894,183 1,308,336
2,159,034 2,092,341 2,132,402 1,881,252 1,294,213
63,405 18,330 15,463 12,931 14,123
2,222,439 2,110,671 2,147 865 1,894,183 1,308,336
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Corporate Information

DA ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr WONG Cho Tung (President)
Mr LIU Jun (Chief technical officer)
Mr ZHU Wenhui
Mr GAO Jun (Chief executive
officer) (resigned as Executive
Director and Chief executive
officer with effect from
30 September 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr WONG Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung
Mr WU Zhe
Mr LI Minbo

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr WU Zhe

Mr LI Minbo

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr WU Zhe

Mr LI Minbo

Mr WONG Cho Tung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr LI Minbo

Mr WONG Cho Tung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms CHAN Chi Yin

AUDITORS

Certified Public Accountants

Registered public interest
entity auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

LCH Lawyers LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HONG KONG REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre
31 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong

Hong Kong

SHANGHAI HEAD OFFICE

Building A, SIM Technology Building
No. 633 Jinzhong Road

Changning District

Shanghai

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.sim.com

STOCK CODE

2000
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